
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Please ask for: Katey Johns, Democratic Support Officer  
T: 01752 307815 E: katey.johns@plymouth.gov.uk 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Date:     Friday 23 September 2011 
Time:    10.00 am 
Venue:     Marlborough Committee Room, Council House 
 
Members: 
Councillor  Dr. Mahony, Chair. 
Councillor  Stevens, Vice-Chair. 
Councillors Evans, Stark and Thompson. 
 
Independent Members: 
Mr. Clarke and Mr. Stewart, plus one vacancy. 
 
Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf. 
 
Members and officers are requested to sign the attendance list at the meeting. 
 
Please note that unless the chair of the meeting agrees, mobile phones should be switched off 
and speech, video and photographic equipment should not be used in meetings. 
 
 
Barry Keel 
Chief Executive 

 

 

 Barry Keel 
Chief Executive 
 
Plymouth City Council 
Civic Centre 
Plymouth  PL1 2AA 
 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 
 
Date  15 September 2011 

Public Document Pack



 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

AGENDA 
 

PART I – PUBLIC MEETING 
  
1. APOLOGIES    
  
 To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Committee Members. 
  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
  
 Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this 

agenda. 
  
3. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 8) 
  
 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 27 June 2011. 
  
4. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS    
  
 To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 

forward for urgent consideration. 
  
5. EQUAL PAY/ JOB EVALUATION OUTSTANDING 

ISSUES   
(To Follow) 

  
 The Committee will receive for information a briefing paper on outstanding issues relating 

to equal pay / job evaluation. 
  
6. DIVERTING CHILDREN FROM CARE PROJECT 

INITIATION DOCUMENT   
(Pages 9 - 20) 

  
 The Committee will receive for its information a copy of the Diverting Children from 

Care Project Initiation Document. 
  
7. FUTURE OF LOCAL AUDIT   (To Follow) 
  
 The Head of Finance will present an update on the Future of Local Audit. 
  
8. STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER MONITORING REPORT   (Pages 21 - 36) 
  
 The Committee will consider the Strategic Risk Register Monitoring Report. 
  
9. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS   (Pages 37 - 58) 
  
 The Committee will receive for consideration and formal sign-off the Statement of 

Accounts for 2010/2011. 



 

  
10. ANNUAL REPORT TO THOSE CHARGED WITH 

GOVERNANCE (ISA 260 REPORT)   
(Pages 59 - 84) 

  
 The Council’s external auditor, Grant Thornton, will submit the Annual Report to those 

Charged with Governance (ISA 260 Report). 
  
11. PROJECT MANAGEMENT REVIEW   (Pages 85 - 100) 
  
 The Council’s external auditor, Grant Thornton, will submit a report on Project 

Management Review. 
  
12. 2010/11 AUDIT PLAN UPDATE   (Pages 101 - 102) 
  
 The Council’s external auditor, Grant Thornton, will submit an update on the 2010/11 

Audit Plan. 
  
13. THE BRIBERY ACT 2010    
  
 The Committee will consider a report on The Bribery Act 2010. 
  
14. AUDIT COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PLAN   (Pages 103 - 106) 
  
 The Committee will note its work plan for the forthcoming year. 
  
15. EXEMPT BUSINESS    
  
 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 

1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) of 
business on the grounds that it (they) involve the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended by the 
Freedom of Information Act 2000. 

  
PART II (PRIVATE MEETING) 

 
AGENDA 

 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE 
that under the law, the Committee is entitled to consider certain items in private.  Members of 
the public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are discussed.  
 
NIL 
  
 



This page is intentionally left blank



��������		���

�����
��������
������

��������		���

�
�

����
��������
������
�

���������
�
����������	
��	�
�����	��	���	��
���	
����������	��������	�������
���	
�����������	��
���	��
��	
��	���������	
	
�����������	������� 		���	��
���	
��	���	���!
���	
	
"���	 ��	
�����
��� 	 	����������	#��������	�
�����	������	 $��	��
��$���
�����	%��$���
���	
��	
&�����
����	 '
��	 (�$$������	 &�
��	 ���������	 )������	 �
�����	 "�����
��	 
�������	 $��	 ����	 "�
�	
*������	
�������	$��	������
��	��������	����	+�����,�	+�
�	�$	������
��	#���	
��	�����
����	
(����	+�����,�	#���	�
�
,�����	
��	�����
���	-$$�����	���	.
����	"�����
��	+�
�	�$	
����	"����	
%
����������	 �
����	 &�����	 +�
�	 �$	 
����	 "����	 %
����������	 

���	 )�������	 +�
�	 �$	 /��
����	

��	'
���	(�����	
�����
���	�������	-$$�����	
	
���	������,	��
����	
�	01	
�	
��	$�������	
�	0�12	���	
	
�����������	
�
�������
������������
������
�������
�����������
������	����������	���
�
�����������������
����
������������������������������������
�
�����	����������
���������	
������������������
�
���������
��������������
	

��� �������������������������������
	
�������	 �����	 ���	 
����������	 �$	 ����������	 
��	 �
����	 
�	 ��
��	 
��	 ����������	 �������	 
�	
�������
��	$��	���	�������
�	3�
�	4100504�	
	

��� ��� ����������!������������
	
�����	!���	��	����
�
�����	�$	��������	�
��	��	
�����
���	!���	���	����	�$	��������	
	

��� ���"������
	
",����	 ���	 �������	 �$	 ���	 ������,	 ����	 ��	 42	 �
���	 4100�	 ���6���	 ��	 ���	 ���������	 �$	 ���	
$����!��,		
	
�
	
� �����
���#�
�����$%
&�� �

'��� ���
(
'��
����������	��������	 78�		������
�	"����	%�
�	 ������	&�������	 %�����
�	
	

��� �����)��"�*����+"���������
	
���
,
��
����
	$
(�-��(#��.
(/
�
�
���	���������	!
�	
������	��
�	���	��
���9�	$������
�	����	�$	
����������	
�	
�	�����������	
������	!����	�:����	
�	���	���	�$	���	������	
	
",����	 ��
�	 ���	 ��
���	 ��	 
��������	 
�	 
�	 �����������	 ������	 �$	 ���	 "����	 ���������	 $��	 
	
$������	$������
�	�����	

Agenda Item 3Page 1



��������		���

�����
��������
������

	
��� ����"��������!����������������+�����

	
���	
�����
���	�������	-$$����	��������	��
�	�����	�
�	����	
�	�����
�	���
�	��	���	�����������	
�������	 ��	 �����	 ��	 ���	 
��	 ��������
��	 
�����������	 $��	 �����	 �����������	 �������	 ��	 ���	
��
��
���	����������	;��
�	"�����	/����	
��	���	#������
����	%
����		+�!�����	$����!��,	
�	
���
��	
���������,	�
��
�,��	����	�!�	�:���������	�$	��������	�
�	����	���������	
	
",����	��
��	��	�����	��	������	�����������	��	���	����	��$���	���	��:�	������,	<	
	

=0>	 	 ���	 ��
��	 ,����	 ��������
����	 ��	 ������
���,	 
	 �
���	 ��������!	 ��	 �������	 ���	
�
�
���?	
	

=4>	 	 
�	
�����	��	��
���	��	���	������	
	

��� ������� ��"�������"� ������������0�����
	
���	���������	����������	���	������	!����	����
�����	���	!���	������
���	��	
����	"����	
%
���������	 �����,	 4101500�	 �����!��	 ���	 ���$���
���	 
��	 �$$����������	 �$	 ���	 ������
�	 "����	
�������	
��	��������	
�	
����	�������	�$	���	
��@�
��	�$	������
�	���������	
	
��	��������	��	@��������	�
����	�������	!���	
������	��
�	<	
	

=
>	 	 
	 ������	 �$	 ��������	 ��
�����	 �
�	 ����	 �����������	 �����,����	 ���	 
���������	
��������,	 ���	 ����
��
����	 �$	 ��,��
�	 �����	 ��	 �$$���	 �����	 
��	 ���	 ������������	 �$	
���������?	
	

=�>	 	 8A	 ���	 ����	 �$	 ���	 ��
�	 �
�	 ����	 ����������	 ��!�����	 ���	 ��	 
	 �����
,�	 �$	 ��
$$	
!���	 ���	 ������
��	 �������	 B	 ���	 ����	 �$	 ���	 ��
����	 !���	 ���
����	 �����
����,�		
�����	
��
�	�
�	��!	����	�����������	$��	����������	!�����	4100504�	

	
",����	��
�	<	
	

=0>	 	 ���	������	��	�����?		
	

=4>	 	 ���	 
��@�
��	 
��	 �$$����������	 �$	 %�������9�	 ������
�	 
����	 $��	 ���	 ��
�	 �����	
C0�
���	4100	��	��������?	
	

=C>	 	 !������	���������	��	���	$����!��,	@��������	
��	������
���	��	���������	�������	

$���	���	������,	<	
	

•� ���	������	�$	���������	����
����	��	�������	�������,�	
•� 
������
���	��������,	��
������	$��	���	������	�����!�	��$�����	��	4100504�	

�
����	<	

�� �
��/����	<	��������	�����������	%�
�������	
�� �
$�,�
����,	"�����	
�� ������������,	
��	�����
����,	<	"����	����
�	�
��	

	
	

Page 2



��������		���

�����
��������
������

	
	�� ���"� �*������������������������0�����

	
���	 +�
�	 �$	 ������
��	 #���	 
��	 �����
���	 ���������	 ���	 "���
�	 &�����
���	 ��
������	 $��	
4101500�		
	
.���	 ��,
��	 ��	 ��������	 #��
������	 �������	 !
�	 �:�������	 
�	 ���	 $
��	 ��
�	 �����	 �
�	 ����	 ��	
����������	���
���	��	
	������	�$	�����
����,	�
�	��
����	�������	���	6��	��
��
����	�������	�
���,	
����	������
���	$���	��
��	
,��	
	
",����	��
�	<	
	

=0>	 	 ���	 ���������	 
������	 $��	 ���	 ����������	 �$	 ���	 4101500	 "���
�	 &�����
���	
��
������	
��	�����?	
	

=4>	 	 ���	
��@�
��	
��	�$$����������	�$	���	������	�$	������
�	
����	��	��������?	
	

=C>	 	 ���	 "���
�	 &�����
���	 ��
������	 ��	 
�������	 �����	 ��	 ��,�
����	 ��	 ���	 ;�
����	
����$	�:�������	
��	
�������	$��	������
��	�������?	
	

=A>	 	 
	 ������	 ��	 ���������	 ��	 ���	 ��:�	 ������,	 �$	 ���	 ���������	�:��
����,	 ���	 ������	
���
���	��	��������,	�@�
�	�
��	

	

�� ���������� ����1�����*������2�"���������������

	
���	+�
�	�$	������
��	#���	
��	�����
���	���������	���	-���
����
�	#���	�
�
,�����	D��
��	
#������		���	������	<	
	

=
>	 	 ��������	 ���	 ���������,	 ���,����	 ����,	 �
��	 
�����	 ��������	 ��	 ���������,	
����
����
�	����	��,������?	
	

=�>	 	 
������	��
�	 ���	���
�	������	�$	����
����
�	�����	�
�	 �����
���	 $���	00E	��	0C0�	
���������,	4	��,�	=���>	������	70	������	=
����>	�����	
��	2E	��!	=,����>	�����?	
	

=�>	 	 ��������	
	�������
��	��	���	��,�	����	
��
�	��,�����	!���	���
���	�$	���	�������	

������5����,
����	��	��
���	

	
�������	 !
�	 �
����	 
�	 ���	 �������9�	 $
�����	 ��	 
������	 �
����	 ���������	 �
�,���	 
��	 �������	
@������	!������	���	���
��	�$	
�	�����
���,	������	�$	�������	�����,	��	���	����	��	�������	!
���	
��	���	��������	!
���	��	����,�	��
��	�
�	����	�����������	
	
",����	��
�	<	
	

=0>	 	 ���	�������	��������	!���	��,
��	��	����
����
�	����	�
�
,�����	��	�����?	
	

=4>	 	 
	 !������	 ��������	 ��	 ��������	 ��	 ���������	 �������	 ��	 ��������
��	 ���	
������
�����	 ��	 ���	 �������9�	 �
����	 ���������	 �
�,���	 �$	 
�	 ����,�	 $���	 !
���	
��
��	
���,	!���	���	$��
���
�	����$����		

	
	
	

Page 3



��������		���

�����
��������
������

��� ���1�����*������2����"� ����������
	
���	+�
�	�$	������
��	#���	
��	�����
���	���������	���	#���	�
�
,�����	"���
�	#������		���	
������	����
�����	���	!���	�
�����	���	�����,	4101500	��	�������	���	�������9�	
����
��	��	����	
�
�
,�����	
��	�������	<	
	

•� ������
��	
��	-���
����
�	#���	�
�
,�����	&�����	
•� #���	#�,������	
•� %��$���
���	�
�
,�����	
��	*�������	%�
����,	
•� "���
�	&�����
���	��
������	
•� #���	�
�
,�����	
��	���	����������	/�
��!���	
•� %
����������	&�����
���	
•� ����
���	#���	�
�
,�����	&���
���	
•� ��$���
����	&�����
���	
•� ";"#�	*�����
����,	
•� #���	�
�
,�����	�
������	#����!	��	+�
��	;
�����	
•� /����	$��	410054104	

.���	 ��,
��	 ��	 %
����������	 &�����
����	 �������	 @������	 !������	 ���	 ���
���
����	 �����!���	
�����!	�
�	����������		"�	���	
��!��	��	����	@�������	�����	���	��	��������	
�	���	������,�	
	
!������	��������	!
�	���,���	
�
",����	��
�	<	
	

=0>	 	 ���	"���
�	#�����	��	�����?	
	

=4>	 	 
	 !������	 ��������	 ��	 ���	 @�������	 �
����	 
����	 %
����������	 &�����
���	 !���	 ��	
������
���	��	���������	�������	

	
���� ���"� ����������������"�3�����*�����������������!�������0�����

	
���	
�������	$��	������
��	�������	���������	$��	��������
����	���	"���
�	#�����	��	���
����	
�
�
,�����	 "���������	 $��	 4101500�	 	 ��	 
�����
���	 ��	 �������	 ���	 ������	 !
�	 ���	 ������
��	
"������
���	
��	/��
���	�
�
,���		���	������	<	
	

=
>	 	 ��������	 ��$���
����	 ��	 ���	 ���,����	 
��	 ��������	 
,
����	 ���	 ���
����	
�
�
,�����	���
��,�?	
	

=�>	 	 ���
����	���	$��
�	��������	��	���	��
������	%�������
�	�����
����?	
	

=�>	 	 ��������	 
	 ������	 �$	 ������
����,	 �����
����	 $��	 �����������	 ��������
���,	 ��
�	
���	����	�������9�	����������	���$���
���	����
���	$
����
���	!���	�����	����
��	

����������?	
	

=�>	 	 ��������	��$���
����	��	���	�������9�	�����	
��	���,	����	�����!��,	������	
��	���	
���
��	��	���	�������	���,���	

	
",����	<	
	

=0>	 	 ��	����	���	���
����	�
�
,�����	"���
�	#�����	$��	4101500?	

Page 4



��������		���

�����
��������
������

=4>	 	 ��	��$��	���	������	��	/���	�������	
�	��@�����	��	���	��%/"	���
����	�
�
,�����	
����	�$	%�
�����	=��%	����	B>?	
	

=C>	 	 ���	��
�,��	��	���	���
����	�
�
,�����	%�
������	
�	��������	��	"������:	2	��	���	
�������	

	
���� �����������!�����"��������0�������

	
���	 ������
��	 "������
���	 
��	 /��
���	 �
�
,��	 ��������	 ��
�	 ���	 
�������	 !����	 ��	
����������	��	
�����
���	!���	���	��!	������
����
�	/��
���	#�������,	��
��
���	=�/#�>	$���
��	��	
���	���������	��
��	
��	
�������	$��	������
��	�������	��	.������
�	$��	��,�	�$$�		�������	
!���	$������	
������	��
�	
	��
����,	�������	�
�	����	
��
�,��	
�	04�C1	��	��	B	(���	4100	��	�����	
��	����	����	������	�������
��	���	��!	
��������,	$���
��	
	

���� �������������������"���������!������� ��"����� �������0�������
	
���	����	�������9�	�:����
�	
�������	&�
��	���������	���������	
�	�������	������	
��	���
��	��	
���	/��
���
�	"����	%�
�	$��	4101500�			
	
���	������	!
�	�������
	

���� �4����� ��"����� ������*��������������
	
���	 ����	 �������9�	 �:����
�	 
�������	 &�
��	 ���������	 ���������	 
	 ���,����	 ���
��	 ��	 ���	 "����	
%�
�	$��	4101500�	
	
���	������	!
�	�������
	

���� �!�������5��!���������"��������3�����������
	
���	����	�������9�	�:����
�	
�������	&�
��	���������	���������	 ���	�
���	/��	�����	#����!	�$	
���	 %������	 ��	 %
�	 %��6����	 	 ���	 ������	 ���
����	 ���	 ���	 $�����,�	 �$	 ���	 �����!	 
��	 �
��	 
	
������	�$	���������
�����	!����	!���	����
�����	��	���	$���	�$	
�����	��
��	
	
��	��������	��	@��������	�
�����	�������	!���	��$�����	��
�	<	
	

=
>	 	 ��	 !
�	 ���	 �������	 �$	 ���	 �:����
�	 
������	 ��
�	 ���	 �������9�	 �
�,��	 �$	 FA�	
�����������	�
���,�	!
�	����	�������	
��	��
������?	
	

=�>	 	 %������	 ��	 %
�	 ���
���	 ��	 �:���������	 ��	 ��������
�	 �����	 !����
�	 �
��,���	
�
�
,�����	���
���	��	�:���������	��	�����	!����	�����	��	,������	��,������	

	
���	������	!
�	������	
	

���� �"�����������������
	
���	+�
�	�$	/��
���	���
���	���	���������	��	���	�
����	����
����	��,
����,	���	$�����	�$	���
�	
������	
�����		�������	!���	
������	��
�	<	
	

=
>	 	 !���	��,
��	��	������
�	
����	
��
�,������	
	������	�$	���������
�����	�
�	����	
���	�$	;���	��
��
�9�	�������	�
����		<	

Page 5



��������		���

�����
��������
������

	
•� ���	 "����	 ���������	 ��
��	 
��	 �������
��	 ������	 ��	 �����������	 �$	 ���	

���
�	������	����	
•� ���	 �
6�����	 �$	 ���	 ���������	 ����������	 ������	 ��	 �����������	 �$	 ���	

���
�	������	����	
•� �������	�������	��	���	
����	���������	������	��	<	

�� �����:��������	�����
�����	�������	
�� 
�	��
��	���	������	�
��	������	
��	�����
��	$��
���
�	�:��������	
�� �����������	 ��
�	 
	 �����	 �$	 �������	 �
��	 ������	 
��	 �����
��	

$��
���
�	�:��������	
	

=�>	 	 !���	��,
��	��	�:����
�	
����	<	
	

•� ���	 "����	 ����������	 �
�	 
����	 
�	 ���	 ��,��
����	 ������������	 
��	
��������	�$	���
�	
����	��������	=
��������	
�������>	

•� �����	 !
�	 
	 �
��	 �$	 ��
���
�����	 
��	 ��
����	 
�	 !���	 
�	 �������
�	 ���$�����	
���!���	���	�����	

•� ��	 "�,���	 4101	 ���	 ������
��	 �$	 ��
��	 $��	 �����������	 
��	 ;��
�	
&���������	
��������	��
��	��	����
��	���	"����	����������	

•� ���
�	 
����������	 !���	 �����	 ��	 ���6���	 ��	 ������	 
������,	 
��	 !����	 
������	
�����	�!�	
�������	���6���	��	<	

�� ���	��������	����,	�
��	��	/���	�������	
�� 
�����	$���	
�	�������������	��
����	"����	���������	
�� ���	
������	����,	��	���	��,�����	�$	���
�	������	��
������	
�������	

	

���������	����	��
��	��	���	��������	��
�,��	��	���	���������	����������	
��	���	������	�$	
���
����,	���	������	��,��	��	��
����,�	���
�	
��������	
��������		"	����	!
�	��������	��	�������	�$	
�
��	�$	�����	�
�����	
�	$����!�	<	
	

•� ������
�	$��	
�	�����������	��
��	<	���	���������	��	���	���������	
•� ������
�	$��	
	�
6�����	�����������	����������	<	���	���������	��	���	���������	
•� ������
�	��	���
��	���	������	��,��	��	��
����,�	���
�	
��������	
�������	<	���������	��	���	

���������	
	
",����	��
�	<	
	

=0>	 	 ���	���������9�	��������	��	���	�����������	
��	;��
�	&���������	�������
����	
��	����,
���	��	���	+�
�	�$	/��
����	��	�������
����	!���	���	��
��	
��	�������
��?		
	

=4>	 	 
	 !������	 ����
��	 �$	 ���	 ���
��	 ��	 ������
���	 ��	 ���������	 �������	 
$���	 ���	
������,�	

	
���� �������������������2�����������!���� �����!���������2��!!������3�

��������
	
/������	 ��	 ������	 7B�	 ���	 ���������	 ����������	 ���	 ��������	 $���	 ��������9�	 ��������	 ��	 ���	
��������	�
����	��,
����,	���	���������	�$	��������	 ��	�
��	
��	���	 ������
�����	�$	 $
�����	��	���	
���,���		
	

Page 6



��������		���

�����
��������
������

",����	 ��
�	 
	 ����	 ���
����	 ��������	 ��	 ���,��	 ��	 
��
���	 �$	 ���	 ��:�	 ������,�	 !���	 
	 ��@����	
����,	 �
��	 $��	 ���	 "�����
��	 
�������	 $��	 ��������9�	 ����
�	 �
��	 ��	 
�����	 ������	 ���	 ���
��	
���
��	����$$�������	
	

�	�� �"��������������!��5����5��1�� �������0�����
	
���	���������9�	/��!
��	.���	%�
�	$��	4100504	!
�	������	
	

�
�� �4�����+"���������
	
�����	!���	��	�����	�$	�:����	���������	
	
	
	
	
	

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



 

  1

DIVERTING CHILDREN 
FROM CARE 
Project Initiation Document (PID)

 
Produced by Dave Simpkins, Joy Howick, Jonathan Fry Version 2 (1revised 14/9/11) 

To give to Commissioning & Finance Board Date 21 Sept 2011 

The aim of a project, and its PID, is to ensure that the work is delivered to time, within budget and scope and to the required 
quality 

Purpose (Briefly describes the overall purpose of the project and which person or body has asked for it to be undertake –
sometimes called the mandate) 

This project aims to divert more children from care and thereby make significant efficiency 
savings and provide better outcomes for the children concerned. It is a key strand within the 
council’s efficiency programme to reduce costs over the next three years and is central to the 
medium term financial strategy and Corporate Plan. Within this specific area costs are expected 
to be reduced by £2.4m by the end of 2013/14, including £400K in staffing costs as a result of the 
planned reduction of children in care. Significant initiatives to lead children away from care will, 
therefore, have to be successfully developed and in place over the next two years if these 
efficiencies are to start to kick in at the required time. 

Some key challenges for this PID: (a) Do the actions amount to more than business as usual? (b) 
Are there any ‘game changer’ objectives/actions? (c) Given trends in children’s social care, is 
there an efficiency plan B that may at some stage need to run alongside this project? – Audit 
Committee query (d) Is the project robust enough to deliver to time, budget, scope, quality and 
to achieve its outcomes? Is the ‘localities’ project, where there are strong dependency links, 
likely to deliver in a synchronised way with this project? 

Scope (Outlines the areas that the project will be focused on and what it will not cover – sometimes called the brief) 

The project comprises six key work streams which contain a number of time limited initiatives, 
as well as adjustments to business as usual practices that can be managed through existing 
delivery mechanisms – but which are crucial to the overall success of the project and must be 
captured here. The six work streams cover: 

§ Improving shared safeguarding intelligence - hub 
§ Early intervention improvement 
§ Child protection improvement 
§ Youth provision improvement 
§ Post 16 care service improvement 
§ Placement improvement 

It is important that a project like this focuses on those pieces of additional work that need to be 
done to make a difference to the numbers of children diverted from care, rather than become 
submerged into mainstream delivery. 

The focus is on improving shared intelligence as a trigger for early intervention; improvements in 
case management and partner engagement to support early intervention; provision of better 
support packages for adolescents and improvements in commissioning placements. 

Agenda Item 6Page 9



 

 2

Background and business case (Outlines any key drivers for the project and the business reasons for doing it in 
the way proposed – business case needs to be referred back to during project, so that we ensure it is still valid) 

Last year the average cost of residential care was £3,143 per week, equating to £163k per year 
for a child in care throughout the year, with total spend £4,086,246. Significant progress in 
reducing the use of residential care has been made over the last year, with the numbers dropping 
from a high of 23 in spring 2010 to 14 currently. 

2010 also saw a surge of pressure on the service through the effects of Baby P and the 
Southwark Judgement, covering responsibility for homeless young people. This is a critical area of 
potentially mushrooming expenditure that must be controlled and reduced where possible. 

At any one time we have around 380 children in care, which is significantly higher than the 
national average proportionate to our population. However, 2010/11 saw a drop of 12% of those 
in care, which is bringing us nearer our comparator authority average.  

We are also operating from a good base having implemented a robust strategy in the city to 
manage the cost of providing placements for children in care, including:   

§ A strong resource and joint funding panel working to clear criteria   
§ A clear framework of quality evaluation for each placement and evaluation of placements 

individually on quality and price through a mini-tender process   
§ A Cost and Volume contract for fostering services for the last 4 years has achieved £500k 

savings on market rates - and has just been re-tendered and awarded to seven providers   
§ The Diversion of Children from Care 2010 PID targeted prevention services to divert 

children from care and an additional EIG resource has been identified to ensure that there is 
further targeted capacity 

§ Over that last 5 years we have seen a significant improvement in the provision of in-house 
fostering and our adoption service is one of the highest performing on NI 61. Therefore we 
can expect this service to diversify to cover a range of complimentary services such as: 
parent and child placements, placements for children with disabilities.  The provision of 
these services will need to be kept under review to ensure we continue to achieve VFM 
against market rates for specialist provision. 

§ There is potential for a cost and volume contract in residential care 

Benefits to be achieved (Outlines the material difference the project is expected to make – e.g. increase in 
performance, reduction in costs, creation of an amenity) 

§ Our targets for children in care are 345 by the end of 2011/12, 330 by 2012/13 and 320 by 
2013/14. 

§ The efficiency targets are outlined in the table below: 

Efficiency deliver plans 

Area of saving Efficiency savings Comment 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 

£000 FTE £000 FTE £000 FTE 

Re-commissioning 
Placements 

400  750  1,500  Cost and volume contract re-negotiated, number of 
children in care reducing with a decrease in the use of 
the independent sector. In-house fostering recruitment 
assessments continuing. £0.260m market rate savings and 
£6k savings on existing frameworks.  Performance 
scorecard developed to track Diversion of Children from 
Care strategy. Residential down to 15 and to 13 by April 

Staff Reductions 0 0 100  400  Supernumery posts (over establishment) now deleted and 
agency staff reduced. Permanent front-line staff 
recruitment continuing successfully 

Page 10



 

 3

Caution - above table from original council efficiency delivery plan – RAG rating in some cases reflecting fact that 
outcomes not yet due to be completed and given green, rather than achieved, so can be misleading   

The main tangible products that will result from this project are: 
§ Safeguarding hub established 
§ Cost and Volume contract for residential care established 
§ Reduction in the number of children in care 
§ Reduction in number of children coming to the social care system 
§ Increased VFM in independent placements 

Court Ordered 
Placements & 
Transport 

180 0 180 0 180 0 

 

No secure placements used 

Youth Offending 
Service 

50 1 50  50  Achieved realigning service - integrating preventative 
service with youth service 

Care Leavers 130 0 130 0 130 0 Achieved WEF 1/4/2011 

Childcare Services 
Integration 

0 0 70  140  Intensive support service diverting children from care 

Project organisation (Outlines how the project will be organised – e.g. project board, project delivery team, specific 
work streams either run as projects or using existing arrangements to deliver) 

 

Project communication (Outlines who needs to know about the project and its progress 

§ Determine the type and regularity of communications between the project delivery group 
and programme board, as well as between the work streams and the project delivery group 
– project delivery group to meet monthly, others to attend it as required, monthly 
scorecard as part of set agenda focused on progress, barriers and consequent actions – 
JH/DS/JF to liaise more regularly  

§ Determine the type and regularity of communications, if any, to staff generally, key partners, 
members and corporate/senior managers within the council – good communications will 
need to feature within work streams if actions are to be successful  

Quality assurance (States how quality will be assured during the life of the project and who will be responsible) 
§ Need to quality assure safeguarding hub; identify/mitigate any unintended consequences of 

diversion 

C&YP Commissioning & Finance Programme Board 

Diversion of children from care 
Project delivery group  

Dave Simpkins, Joy Howick, Nicki Scutt, Siobhan Wallace, Richard Porter, John Miller, Richard Yellop,  Anne 
Osborne, Jonathan Fry 

Improving 
shared 

safeguarding 
intelligence 

Early 
intervention 
Improvement 

 

Youth 
provision 

improvement 
provision 

Placements 
improvement 

 

Lead 

Siobhan 
Wallace 

+ 
Support team 

Lead 

John Miller 
 
+  

Support team 

Lead 

Nicky Scutt 
 
+  

Support team 

Lead 

 Anne 
Osborne 

+  
Support team 

Child 
protection 

improvement 

 

Lead 

Richard 
Yellop 
+  

Support team 

Post 16 care 
service 

improvement 

 

Lead 

 Richard Porter 
 
+  

Support team 

Page 11



 

 4

Risk assessment (Identifies the major risks attached to delivering the project on a Probability 1-5 (unlikely to certain) 
and Impact 1-5 (insignificant to massive) Rating and the response, or mitigation, to address the risk – focus on major risks) 
Risks and pre mitigation assessment P I R Mitigation 

Rise in numbers of children presenting/being presented at gateway to Children’s Social 
Care 

3 4 12 Robust gate keep-
ing/assessment 

Rise in number of court ordered placements in opposition to our care planning. 2 4 8 Continued liaison 
with the judiciary 

Possible impact for Children’s Social Care if budget/service level reduced to local 
preventative services. 

3 3 9 Smarter working; 
locality work 

Potential rise in young people whose needs are so complex they require secure beds. 2 2 4 Manageable 

Risks associated with lack of capacity in in-house Band 4 foster placements could lead to 
rise in use of the independent sector. 

3 4 12 Recruitment of 
Band 4 carers 

Risk of stagnation for C&YP in longer term residential placements – without continuing 
market development of foster placements, in-house and in independent sector, those in 
residential placements will be hard to move to family placements. 

3 4 12 Development of 
local fostering 
market 

Parent and child invest to save project  – risk of not achieving savings 2 5 10 Manageable 

Rise in number of children in care 4 5 20 This Project 

CAF/localities not implemented effectively leading to rise in children  at A&A 3 4 12 Early intervention, 
dev. of CAF 

Risks are assessed over the lifetime of the project  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12



 

 5

Diverting children from care – action plan 

What do we want 
to achieve? 

What are we going to do to achieve it? How will we 
measure success? 

When will we 
do it by? 

What resource 
support do we need? 

Who will be 
responsible? 

Work stream - Improving shared safeguarding intelligence  
Creation of 
safeguarding hub 

§ Governance and implementation groups in place 
§ Hub initiative being run as project that will feed into diversion 

from care one and report accordingly 
§ Confirm business case 
§ Sort IT issues and Carefirst links 
§ Establish hub team in Midland House and a threshold 

manager, make new team work 
§ Develop multi-agency protocol 
§ Get everything agreed through Trust, Safeguarding Board 
§ Establish baseline, continuous evaluation 
§ Ensure, clear pathways, threshold understanding, links with 

CAF/localities 

Multi-agency 
partnership dealing 
with all enquiries of 
concern, regarding 
children with additional 
needs 

Work being 
progress with a 
Hub start date 
Jan 2012 
 
 

§ Agreement on IT 
solutions for receiving 
referrals 

§ Funding agreed 
§ Continued partner 

support – police led 

Siobhan 
Wallace 

Work stream - Early intervention improvement 
Improve the  
provision of 
universal and 
targeted services to 
vulnerable children 
and young people at 
an earlier stage  

§ The reorganisation of key staff into multi-disciplinary locality 
teams 

§ Key integrated processes to include information sharing, CAF, 
the role of Lead Professional and Referral systems 

§ CAF person in each team; inputs social work expectations to 
support CAF 

Improved outcomes for 
vulnerable children and 
young people(detailed 
performance indicators 
to be developed)  
 

Reorganisation 
of teams to be 
completed by 
September 2011 

Appropriate links and 
collaboration with 
colleagues not currently 
in scope for re-
organisation e.g.  health, 
VCS 

Carol 
Henwood 

Roll out of the 
DASH assessment 
for domestic abuse 
in all agencies 

§ Ownership of this issue by the safer and strong corporate 
body. 

§ PDAP plan to roll out and train staff. Agree operational date 
for implementation. 

DASH assessments 
routinely received and 
used by the Police 

Agreement 
from PDAP  

Training  Nicky Scutt 
Mark Collings 

Secure multi agency 
funding for the 
delivery of “Making a 
Change” programme 
for Perpetrators of 
domestic abuse 

§ Funding just secured 
§ Ensure availability of treatment services for children’s social 

care cases 

Courses are run. 
Perpetrators attend 
and their behaviour 
modifies   

Currently being 
pulled together 

§ £10,000 has been 
secured from 
children’s services 

§ Need other agencies 
to match fund.  

Mark Collings 
Nicky Scutt 

P
age 13



 

 6

What do we want 
to achieve? 

What are we going to do to achieve it? How will we 
measure success? 

When will we 
do it by? 

What resource 
support do we need? 

Who will be 
responsible? 

Where assessed 
needs can be met 
purely by family 
support interv-
ention, close social 
care processes  

§ Develop processes through the HUB and the common 
assessment framework to transfer the case to a lead 
professional whilst the 12 week intervention is provided by 
social care 

No cases are kept open 
to social care purely to 
enable family support 
interventions  

On-going from 
Sept  2011 

Officer time Nicky Scutt 
Amanda 
Paddison 
Karen Morris 

Develop FGC 
service to deliver in 
the early 
intervention arena  

§ Secure funding to extend the current service % of FGC’s per annum 
are dedicated to early 
intervention  

Sept Funding to develop intra 
structure 

Nicky Scutt 
Mark Collings 
Mabel Edge 

Develop family 
support 
interventions in the 
localities 

§ Place FSW’s from the virtual team for fixed period of time in 
localities to provide parenting interventions and help develop 
this resource among other support staff 

§ Train and mentor support staff  

Family support 
interventions are 
provided via the CAF 
plan 

Sept  -ongoing Officer time Locality 
managers 
Nicky Scutt 
Lesley Horrell 
Amanda 
Paddison 

Strong inputs from 
children’s centres to 
diversion from care 

§ Establish bespoke programmes in line with centre contracts Less very young 
children entering care  

Programme 
during autumn 
2011 then on-
going 

Officer time Jo Hall/Sue 
Smith, Nicky 
Scutt 

Workstream – Child protection improvement 
Ensure appropriate 
level of support to 
Children in Need 
(CIN) cases 
currently open 
within Children’s 
Social Care (CSC) 

§ Service Managers and CAF coordinator to carry out an audit 
of long term CIN cases to assess whether a case can be held 
by lead professional in a locality or held within CSC 

§ Build in process to ensure a CAF is considered when a child 
comes off a CPP and that all agencies actively follow the CAF 

 

§ Reduction in the 
number on caseloads 
in CitC 

§ Children receive 
appropriate support 
from agencies best 
suited to provide it 

Sept 2011 Officer time 
 
 

Richard Yellop 
and Amanda 
Paddison 

To ensure that 
community based 
assessments are 
used where it is safe 
to do so, rather than 
Mother and Baby 
Residential Foster 
Care 

§ Ensure that all staff understand the availability of the battery 
of tools within the Family Support Services and that the 
package is considered at the earliest opportunity – ongoing 
training. 

 
 
 

Increase in the number 
of community based 
assessments and a 
significant reduction in 
terms of cost of 
purchasing assessments 
from the independent 
sector 

Immediate  Officer time 
 
 
 
 

Richard Yellop 
and Nicky Scutt 

P
age 14



 

 7

What do we want 
to achieve? 

What are we going to do to achieve it? How will we 
measure success? 

When will we 
do it by? 

What resource 
support do we need? 

Who will be 
responsible? 

Effective input from 
other agencies 
including: Adult 
Mental Health; Drug 
& Alcohol Services; 
Adult Learning 
Disability Services. 

§ Commissioning appropriate services 
 
§ Ensure that there is a focus on the need of the child rather 

that the adult client and that adult parenting skills are 
understood appropriately by other agencies. 

 
 

More adults ale to care 
for their children 

TBA Resource issue to be 
raised with Safeguarding 
Board with a view to 
addressing these issues 
within SGB context 

Fiona Fleming 
and Dave 
Schwartz 

In order to prevent 
drift in Child 
Protection cases 
ensure that all 
previous history is 
included in case 
planning. 

§ Develop and use an electronic tool for collating chronological 
information 

All cases have high 
quality chronologies 
with analysis showing 
chronology used to 
inform assessment. 

Oct 2011 Officer time and 
CareFirst Team support. 

Richard Yellop, 
Karen Morris 
and Karen 
Porte 

Work stream - Youth provision improvement 
Divert 11 – 17 year 
olds with multiple 
vulnerabilities from 
care 

§ Develop Intensive Support capacity, within locality delivery 
arrangements, to contribute to meeting the needs of young 
people with multiple vulnerabilities in the 11-17 age group 

§ Intensive Support Teams integration with locality teams 
§ Targeting those most at risk using CAF and Hub 

Reduction in numbers   
of 11-17 year olds who 
enter care 
Increased number of 
young people 
supported at Tier 3 
through CAF 
 

Start from Sept 
2011 
 
 
 
 

§ Team capacity being 
strengthened to 8 

§ Appropriate family & 
parent support 
resources e.g. FGC, 
FIP, mediation 

John Miller 

Divert 16-17year 
olds from care 
(SouthwarkG) 

§ Develop capacity to deliver intensive support intervention 
before young people present to Advice and Assessment 

§ Realigned service in locality teams as above 
 

Reduction in numbers   
of 16-17 year olds who 
enter care following an 
intensive support 
intervention. 

As above § As above John Miller 

Workstream – Post 16 care service improvement 
Robust services to 
provide advice and 
support to young 
people who are or 
may become 
homeless 

§ Supporting People and Housing re-procuring a homeless 
advice service with a revised specification focused on advice 
and prevention via direct work and mediation with young 
people and their families 

 

Increase in numbers of 
CAF completed 
A reduction young 
people requiring 
support from IST or 
Children’s Social Care 

New contract 
to be in place 
from 1st Feb 
2012 

Project board in place 
and finance agreed 

Richard Porter 
Sophie Slater 
Supporting 
People 

P
age 15



 

 8

What do we want 
to achieve? 

What are we going to do to achieve it? How will we 
measure success? 

When will we 
do it by? 

What resource 
support do we need? 

Who will be 
responsible? 

Education and 
awareness raising of 
the impact and 
dangers of youth 
homelessness – 
‘myth busters’ 

§ Use ‘off the shelve’ toolkit  in educational and other settings 
to explore the issues of youth homelessness and help young 
people and their families make better choices about leaving 
home 

 

A reduction in the 
number of homeless 
young people  

To be in place 
by 1st April 2012 

Funding for toolkit Richard Porter 
Dave Schwartz 
John Miller 

Quality provision of 
accommodation and 
structured 
transitional support 
for young people 
with medium to high 
needs  

§ Develop pre qualified list of appropriate providers Preferred provider list 
with lower costs  

Still in 
timetabling 
stage 

No resource 
requirements 

Richard Porter 
Emma 
Crowther 

Improve quality of 
supported living 
providers for young 
people with low to 
moderate needs  

§ Review and agree commissioning intentions for the future and 
re-procure the existing partnership service with Devon 

We will have a 
supported lodgings 
service available for 
people with low to 
moderate need 

1st April 2012 No resource 
requirements 

Richard Porter 
Emma 
Crowther 

Work streams – Placements improvement 
Reduction in use of 
independent sector, 
foster care & 
residential care by 
increase in use of in 
house provision 

§ Fortnightly placement review meetings will review, on a 
rolling programme, all children not in permanent placements, 
with a focus in those in the independent sector to: 
a) identify those who can return to  
b) an in house placement 
c) Identify those at risk of escalating to more costly place-

ments, to ensure risk reduction strategies are put in place 

Reduction in the 
independent sector 
population and a 
reduction in budget 
commitment to achieve 
this years themed 
savings 

Ongoing Service Managers, Team 
Managers and 
commissioning teams 
attendance at the 
fortnightly meetings 

Anne Osborne, 
Tony Marchese 

Establish more cost 
effective residential 
care placement 
either ‘in city’ or 
closer to Plymouth.  
Each to have a clear 
step down process 
to home or foster 
care within 6 mths 

§ Explore commissioning options for up to 4 placements initially 
with an agreed step down to foster care.  This could be with a 
single provider 

§ Provide training for Social Worker’s in planning for Children 
and Young People, to include step down provision and 
options 

Significant savings 
achieved on individual 
placements and a 
reduction in the length 
of time young people 
spend in residential 
care 

December 2011 Head of Service, Service 
Managers and 
commissioning team 

Dave Simpkins, 
Anne Osborne, 
Tony Marchese 
and Emma 
Crowther 

P
age 16



 

 9

What do we want 
to achieve? 

What are we going to do to achieve it? How will we 
measure success? 

When will we 
do it by? 

What resource 
support do we need? 

Who will be 
responsible? 

Improved sufficiency 
by increasing the 
number of in house 
foster placements 

§ Allocate all assessments of prospective foster carers upon 
application to avoid delay – use independent assessors if 
required 

 
 
§ Run a monthly advertising and information evenings as 

required 
 
§ Create a separate fostering assessment team, with named 

Team Manager oversight 

Increase the number of 
fostering households 
who are able to actively 
take placement 
 
In place booked for the 
year 
 
Separate team in place 

31st December 
2011 
 
 
 
In place 
 
 
1st Aug 2011 

§ Social Workers to 
undertake assessment 
work.  Additional 
fostering panels as 
required 

§ Team Manager and 
fostering assessment 
team 

§ Part time Team 
Manager to be filled.  
Current team 
resources split 

Anne Osborne 
 
 
 
 
 
Anne Osborne 
 
 
 
Anne Osborne 

Parent and Child         
Placements 

§ Recruit team – manager recruited but 3 months notice 
§ Recruit foster carers 
§ Develop project and attendant systems and processes 
§ Deliver in house parent and child placements   

In house parent and 
child placements 
delivered – insert figs 
Credibility gained from 
the court    
Delay in care 
proceeding reduced  
Good child outcomes 

Team to be fully 
functional by 
April 2012 

Invest to save bid. 
 
 

Nicky Scutt  
Anne Osborne 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 17



 

 10 

 

Background note - Early Intervention and Child Protection 

Last year the budget saw a surge of pressure due to the effect of Baby P and Southwark Judgement.  Learning from 
this has shown that the multi agency teams were not set up to address this surge and so the Social Care front door 
felt the impact.  We were then able to show the impact of the volume increases in referrals to A and A by an 
increase in volumes of Children with a Plan and to Children coming into Care.  A key strand of activity has therefore 
been to strengthen the diversion from care agenda and particularly the CAF.  The intention for this year is to see 
the implementation of the MASH including the co-ordination, monitoring and tracking of the early intervention arm 
of this.  

To ensure the Diversion of Child from Care there must be a multiagency workforce aligned to this agenda.  It will 
also be important for the Social Care workforce to be ready to de-escalate and divert to these agencies when 
appropriate for the circumstances of the family.  There are families however for whom the level of risk will peak and 
they will need to move into and out of the Social Care Service over a period of time. An example being parental 
mental health, where there are periods of crisis and parental capacity is therefore affected.  The remaining group of 
families is where social care intervention will show quite quickly the need to remove the children and then the need 
for permanency to ensure minimal disruption for the child and less time in a care environment. 

Currently all Cases where a Plan has been in place for 12 months are reviewed and Child Protection Plans do not 
normally exceed 18 months in duration.  A new case review will be undertaken for Children in the Community 
where a plan has been in situ for more than 9 months.  This review will establish performance against the categories 
below and tracking arrangements will be developed to ensure that the appropriate action can be taken without any 
barriers to this.  A full review will also be undertaken for all children returning to a Plan.  To better understand the 
management of risk group and if any could have moved to de-escalation and diversion. 

 

 
1. Rapid resolution 

 
2. Management of risk 

 
3. De-escalation and diversion  

Family Group Conferencing and Family Mediation 

We will continue to maintain at the current high levels the use of Family Group Conferencing.  The EIG has 
identified resources within the Complex Families allocation for the development of Family Mediation and increasing 
the capacity of the FGC Service.  This will be through the use of the VCS Provider market. 

Alcohol and Domestic Abuse 

Continue to invest in specialist services which are preventative for children entering the care system.  Alcohol and 
Domestic Abuse Services need greater investment and co-ordination.  The Business Case is being developed for the 
EIG resources that have been identified. 

Early Years  

Early years provision needs to be continually aligned to achieving the priorities of this PID.  This includes the re-
tender of children’s centres and the re-focus through that on targeted work with the most vulnerable families.  The 
continued investment by the pct in family nurse partnership is positive and efficacy of this must be tracked to play 
into future business cases. 

Predictors of Parental Capability  

There is a need to better co-ordinate access to multi-agency skills in experts prior to the Court process.  In order 
for the Social Care team to appropriately assess and predict parental capability where there are issues such as 
Mental Health and Learning Disability is important for the service to have swift access to a professional who can 
formally assess the adults capability and then a parental capability assessment can be undertaken.  Where the 
concern arises from substance, alcohol, violence or criminal activity it is imperative for the Social Care Team know if 
the adult is capable of change. 

Access to this type of expert skill can only normally be achieved once in Court proceedings.  This is a more costly 
route. Specifically access to psychiatry and psychology input. We must also see improvements in our own 
performance and timely referrals form midwives for pre-birth risk assessments. 

Page 18



 

 11 

 

Background – Youth provision and post 16 care services 

Supported Lodgings and other provision 

Ongoing review of the capacity in Supported Lodgings with the need to pre-qualify the 16plus accommodation 
marketplace.  This is an action to be taken through the Peninsula Commissioning Board as a priority for 2011/12.  B 
and B review in line with Supporting People and housing to ensure sufficiency in the market for this provision. 

Statutory payment Review 

This task will be undertaken in line with a review of all provision to Care Leavers. 

Intensive Support Team 

The Team have been set up with three staff.  EIG and youth funding has been identified to increase capacity for the 
team to eight staff.  The management of the team is moving to the Youth Service and is a key part of the journey 
towards Integrated Youth Support.  It will be important for a clear focus for this service continues to be the 
diversion of young people from becoming a Child in Need.  During 2010/11 the focus was on CIN by virtue of their 
homelessness (Southwark G).  However the service will diversify during 11/12 to consider all young people with 
multiple vulnerabilities aged 11-17.  A targeting of services to young people most at risk of entering care will ensure 
a clear focus on diversion from care.  The expansion of this team and effectiveness in diversion will need to be 
monitored through this PID. 

Secure 

Many of the placements for secure are young people where risk taking behaviour puts them at significant risk 
through offending or high harm behaviours.  Our use of secure has been very low, which is a success of de-
escalation services. However to ensure that our target of £180k reduction in budget is achieved this needs 
continued focus.  Through this work stream analysis will be undertaken to better understand routes to secure 
placements and therefore how we can systematically prevent escalation to this level of need. 

Participation 

The monitoring of the EIG allocation for the provision of participation support to the Listen and Care Council to the 
Corporate Parenting Group will be undertaken though this work stream area.  The provision of advocacy and 
mentoring to young people is an important part of managing complex needs, consideration will be given to the 
existing advocacy contract and youth provision to explore how this can be aligned. 

 

Background notes - Placements 

Residential Care 

The eligibility for residential care is for those young people who are a significant risk as a result of their own 
behaviour.  This can be due to repeated absconding, drug use, fire setting, violence and criminal activity.  This results 
in challenging behaviour which challenges foster carers and schools to keep the children safe and to continue to 
achieve good outcomes for them.   The Commissioning Intentions in Plymouth are to ensure that Young People do 
not remain in residential care for long periods of time but rather that residential care ensures that young people are 
safe and de-escalates the behaviours that prevent those accessing mainstream services and foster care.  It is then 
very important that the young people are returned to a family environment as soon as is possible.  One driving force 
for this is that young people are more able to create attachments to carers in a family environment than in an 
institutional environment and good attachment leads to many positive outcomes in self esteem and friendships and 
relationships.  Then impacting on health and financial outcomes. 

The profile of the children placed in residential care in Plymouth is predominantly young people with challenging 
behaviour with 4 children currently placed in residential settings due to their level of disability (under the CDT 
team).  

Significant progress has been made on reducing the use of residential care in the last year.  This has resulted in 
numbers dropping from a high of 23 in Spring 2010 to 12 currently.   

This has been achieved by a full review of all of the young people placed in residential settings and plans being 
initiated and monitored to ensure they are moved when appropriate to fostering or alternative provision.   

The average cost per week for residential care was £3,143 which is £163k per annum.  The total spend last year 
being £4,086,246.  Last year the actions taken resulted in a reduction on the Independent Sector Budget of £898,000 
(This included fostering spend) 

Page 19



 

 12 

Volume of Residential Placements is now 12 and has a target of 13 for 2011/12 and 11 for 12/13 This will have to 
accommodate fluctuations in demand. 

Placement Review  

A review of all of the needs of young people accessing residential settings continues on a two weekly basis to ensure 
that provision continues to meet need and that the provider and the social worker are working together in a timely 
way to ensure de-escalation and therefore an appropriate move on plan can be achieved. 

Gatekeeping 

The gate keeping for placements was already robust but this has also been strengthened.  Drift on placements is 
minimised through regular review and challenge and panel continue to review progress for each placement. 

Price Negotiations 

Each residential provider has been visited and discussions regarding the type of service packages and pricing 
structures have resulted in more tailored provision and cost and volume reductions alongside preferential prices 
being put in place.   The next steps are to consider the market place and our demand profile when stable to set the 
business case for residential step down provision in fostering.  A number of fostering providers have partnered with 
a residential provision to be able to offer a single de-escalation service.  This needs to be considered alongside the 
success of the wrap around packages.  There is a gap in the market for residential provision in the City.  The 
provision we purchase is on the border.  A number of providers are keen to consider setting up here and we will 
progress these discussions.   

Fostering 

Fostering placements dropped during last year from a high of 63 to 59 however has risen again as we move into the 
new financial year.  The target for 2011/12 is to reduce to 56 placements.  This is alongside the Children in Care 
population overall needing to drop from 385 to 345. 

Cost and Volume 

A Cost and Volume Tender for the provision of Fostering Placements was undertaken in 2010/11.  This did not 
achieve the levels of savings we were hoping for however small savings were still made and existing rates were still 
achieved.  Market intelligence from this has shown that ongoing work to consider the service models offered by 
Fostering providers is needed and that by better use of the Options Appraisal process the lower cost placements 
can be chosen when the match is appropriate. 

Invest to Save 

The Team were successful in the Invest to Save bid for the development of Parent and Child Placements.  This is a 
high cost area with prices continuing to increase among a number of key providers.  The development of in-house 
capacity will ensure diversion from this expense. 

Placement Review and Gatekeeping 

As with residential the ongoing review of the high cost fostering placements will continue to ensure that the highest 
quality is being achieved for that resource.  In addition tight gate keeping to high cost placements will continue 
through resource panel.  To try to avoid independent sector placements for children where care proceedings are 
being initiated as they can last in excess of 40 weeks.  During Care proceedings children cannot be moved.  Thus 
tying us to high cost packages. 

Wrap Around Packages 

Ensure that Wrap Around Packages continue to divert children and young people from care.  Cascade the learning 
from this to ensure that the model here can influence the shape of other service design that will divert.  

Adoption 

Continue to invest in adoption service to ensure fast tracking of children to permanency.  To track any 
barriers to proceedings.  To make good use of the Court User Forum to achieve this.  We also intend to 
explore Concurrency registration where a carer is registered as a foster carer and works to reunify the 
child and the birth family but where this is unsuccessful they will undertake to adopt the child. 

CAMHS 

Put in place a CAMHS protocol to ensure access to therapeutic services out of the city.   

 

Page 20



 

 

  
 

CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
 
 
Subject:    Strategic Risk Register - Monitoring Report 
 
Committee:    Audit Committee 
 
Date:     23 September 2011 
 
Cabinet Member:   Councillor Ricketts 
           
CMT Member:   Director for Corporate Support  

Author:    Mike Hocking, Head of Corporate Risk and Insurance
  

Contact:    mike.hocking@plymouth.gov.uk 
     Tel: 01752 - 304967     
 
Ref:     CRM/MJH 

Key Decision:   No    

Part:     I  
  
 
 
Executive Summary:  
This report provides a summary of the latest formal monitoring exercise completed for the 
Strategic Risk Register for the period March 2011 to August 2011. 
 
The total number of strategic risks reported has reduced from 32 to 30 with the addition of 1 
new risk and the deletion of 3 and the number of red risks has reduced from 6 to 3. 
 
Appendix A to the report provides a traffic light summary showing the current status of 
each risk, the movement in risk scores compared with previous monitoring periods and 
explanatory commentary on the key issues for each risk.  
 
 
 
 
Corporate Plan 2011/14: 
 
The Strategic Risk Register includes links to the Corporate Plan objectives – monitoring of 
control action for strategic risks therefore contributes to the delivery of the Council’s core 
objectives.  
 
          
 

Agenda Item 8Page 21



 

  

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications: 
Including finance, human, IT and land:  
None arising specifically from this report but control measures identified in risk registers 
could have financial or resource implications. 
 
   
 
Other Implications: e.g. Section 17 Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk 
Management and Equality, Diversity and Community Cohesion: 
None arising specifically from this report but community safety and health and safety issues 
and risks are taken into account in the preparation of risk registers.  
 
  
  
Recommendations  & Reasons for recommended action: 
The Audit Committee is recommended to: 
• Note and endorse the current position with regard to the Strategic Risk Register.  
 
 
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 

Effective risk management processes are an essential element of internal control   and as 
such are an important element of good corporate governance. For this reason alternative 
options are not applicable. 
 
  
 
Background papers: 
Plymouth City Council Risk Management Strategy and Policy Statement 
Strategic Risk Register and associated working papers 
Previous reports on risk management to Audit Committee  
 
 
 
Sign off: 
 
Fin 
 

SW 
 

Leg DS 
 

HR  Corp 
Prop 

 IT  Strat Proc  

Originating SMT Member: Tim Howes, Asst Director, Democracy & Governance 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



 

  

Report of Director for Corporate Support to Audit Committee  
23 September 2011 

 
Strategic Risk Register Monitoring 

 
 

1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The position with regard to the Strategic Risk Register was last reported to this 

Committee on 25 March 2011 and this report now provides a summary of the latest 
monitoring exercise covering the position at 31 August 2011. 

 
2. Strategic Risk Register – Monitoring Summary 
 
2.1 In accordance with the strategy requirement for twice-yearly monitoring, the latest 

monitoring exercise was completed in August 2011 with the results discussed and 
agreed by CMT and Cabinet Planning on 6 September 2011 and 13 September 2011.  

 
2.2 Attached to this report at Appendix A is a summary showing the current status of each 

risk and any movement in risk scores compared with previous monitoring periods 
together with explanatory commentary on the key issues for each risk. 

 
3. Headline Issues 
 
3.1 The number of strategic risks has reduced from 32 to 30 with the addition of 1 new risk 

and the deletion of 3 and there has been a reduction in red risks from 6 to 3. 
 

New Risk 
 

• Amber Risk 82 – Potential legislative non-compliance within Council 
buildings due to fragmented ownership and responsibility – (Row No. 
11) 
-  Identification of property responsibility is needed following initiatives such as 
stock transfer and future potential operational changes arising from the 
accommodation strategy.  Adoption of a Corporate Landlord model is therefore 
planned to implement responsibility for all land and buildings and extend current 
agreements for legislative compliance to all property. 
 

 Deleted Risks 
 

• Risk 69 – Contribute and support the development of the Plymouth 
Life Centre at Central Park – (Row No. 31) 
- Project on programme and on budget. 
 
 

• Risk 71 – To outsource the management of the Plymouth Life Centre 
and existing leisure facilities – (Row No. 32) 
- Contract awarded and presently being mobilised for February 2012 opening. 

Page 23



 

  

 
• Risk 44 – Financial & liability implications of Members & Officers 

serving on outside bodies – (Row No. 33) 
- Issues are covered under the Indemnity Scheme for Members and 

 Officers.  
 

3.2 The table below shows the movement in the number of red, amber and green risks over 
the last two monitoring periods:  

 
 
Risk Category No. of Risks – 

Feb 11 
No. of Risks 
– Aug 11 

Deleted 
Risks Aug 11 

New Risks 
Aug 11 

Red 6 3   
Amber  17 21  1 
Green 9 6 3  
TOTAL 32 30 3 1 

 
 
3.3 The summary at Appendix A gives a more detailed commentary on the key issues 

affecting each risk as at 31 August 2011. 
 
3.4 The headline issues are:- 
 

3.4.1   Risk Scores Unchanged 
 

• Red Risk 21 – MTFS Issues – (Row No. 1) 
- CMT & SMT held a Delivery Plan 11/12 challenge session to highlight areas of 
most concern.  CMT & DMT continue to monitor via monthly and quarterly 
reporting. 
 

• Red Risk 49 – Future of Civic Centre & Council House– (Row No. 2) 
-  Expressions of interest have been received from developers which are being 
considered and further professional advice has been taken on the options 
available to rationalise and improve the council’s office accommodation.  A 
report on the preferred option considered by Cabinet. on 23 August 2011. 
 

• Red Risk 74 – Social Care – Client Management IT Systems (Carefirst) 
– (Row No. 3) 
- The last few months have seen a number of significant improvements to the 
tool to support frontline services but work is on-going.  As the new products go 
live considerable effort needs to be invested in the monitoring of the benefits 
realisation.  The implementation of mobile technologies and introduction of new 
functionality within Adult Social Care will need careful review to ensure that the 
piloted way of working is successful.  New work streams are being introduced in 
line with business pressures, which although being managed, are creating 
considerable additional work.  Budget is on target as are approved 
implementation target deadlines. 
 

Page 24



 

  

• Amber Risk 81  – Academy Schools – (Row No. 5) 
- SLA and contracts have been drafted.  The effect to-date on LA budgets has 
been modelled and fed into the Dedicated Schools Grant budgets both within 
schools and the LA.  To-date only one further primary school has expressed an 
interest in becoming an Academy. 
 

• Amber Risk 72 – Significant pressure on Adult Social Care budget – 
(Row No. 6) 
- The Programme Board continues to regularly monitor performance and 
delivery plans.  Milestone of 30% of service users receiving a personal budget by 
end of March 10/11 was reached. 
 

• Amber Risk 52 – Delivery of Capital Programme – (Row No. 13) 
-  There has been a delay to the new Project Management Procedures due to a 
delay in approval of the new Constitution of which they form part.  A further 
review of the delivery of capital projects in on-going. 
 

3.4.2 Risk Scores Increased 
 

• Amber Risk 33 – Capital for Education Infrastructure – Increased from 
12 to 16 (Row No. 7) 
-  Cabinet paper presented in March was approved and funding for Wave 1is in 
place.  There is a potential shortfall in funding of Wave 2 subject to Central 
Government confirming available allocation.  Feasibility work is underway and a 
further Cabinet paper will be submitted in September. 

 
• Amber Risk 60 – Economic downturn affecting treasury management – 

Increased from 9 to 15 (Row No. 17) 
-  Treasury Management Board is monitoring any potential impact from the 
current global economic situation.  It will monitor institutions used on a weekly 
basis and continue to seek advice from independent advisors. 
 

3.4.3 Risk Scores Decreased 
 

• Amber Risk 77 – Carbon Reduction Commitment (CRC) Energy 
Efficiency Scheme – Decreased from 20 to 15 (Row No. 8) 
-  The tax burden has been reduced by over £100k by migrating street lighting 
from active to passive HH metering.  Energy Management system acquired to 
improve carbon data management capability.  65% of the Early Action Metric has 
been fulfilled through achieving the ISO 14064 (CEMARS) standard and installing 
AMRs across schools and corporate buildings.  This will improve our ranking in 
the first Performance League Table published in October 2011.  The annual and 
footprint reports for 2010/11 have been submitted to the Environment Agency 
on the 28th July after the successful completion of an internal audit to provide 
assurance that PCC has fulfilled its obligations to the CRC EE scheme. 
 

• Amber Risk 73 – Employee Relations – Decreased from 20 to 15 (Row 
No. 19) 

Page 25



 

  

- Negotiations with Unite and GMB completed and new Terms & Conditions to 
start on 1st September 2011. 
 

• Amber Risk 68 – Failure to reach recycling targets and divert waste 
from landfill – Decreased from 16 to 12 (Row No. 20) 
- The total biodegradable municipal waste landfilled in 2010/11 is 6% less than in 
2009/10.  Subject to final confirmation of the figures, we hold a surplus of 10,700 
LATS permits which can be carried forward to use in 2011/12.  It has been 
announced that the LATS system will cease in April 2013.  Currently there is 
uncertainty on what will be put in its place as the EU targets on minimising 
biodegradable waste to landfill still stands. 
 

• Amber Risk 55 – Failure to deliver waste PFI Procurement for SW 
Devon Waste Partnership (by 2014) – Decreased from 16 to 12 (Row 
No. 21) 
- Contracts signed and PFI credits formally secured from Defra in March 2011.  A 
planning application was submitted in May 2011 by the contractor which is the 
most significant remaining hurdle.  If planning permission is granted and to 
current programme this should result in solution being operational during 2014. 
 

• Amber Risk 79 – Reduced government grant investment into new 
affordable homes, renewal & regeneration programmes – Decreased 
from 25 to12 (Row No. 22) 
- PCC has supported our Housing Development Partners with their bids, 
including factoring in PCC housing sites and awaiting Ministers’ decisions.  For 
private sector housing we have changed the Assistance Policy rules to reduce 
grants and introduce loans to target our reduced resources where it is most 
effective. 
 

• Amber Risk 76 – Not getting government funding to build Efford 
Gypsy site – Decreased from 16 to 8 (Row No. 29) 
- A plan to identify a preferred bidder to develop the site was agreed by Cabinet 
in August. 
 

4. Summary and Conclusion 
 
4.1 The Council’s success in dealing with the risks that it faces can have a major      impact 

on the achievement of key promises, objectives and ultimately, therefore, the level of 
service to the people of Plymouth. 

 
4.2 The movement in risk scores and the consequent changes to the Council’s overall 

strategic risk profile outlined in this latest review provides good evidence of the 
dynamic nature of the Strategic Risk Register and the maturity of the Council’s approach 
to the identification and management of strategic risk. 

 
4.3 The inclusion of risk management considerations is now a key feature in the Council’s 

key corporate processes featuring in the Corporate Plan preparation, the Business 
Planning Framework, Budget Planning and Monitoring and Performance Management. 

Page 26



 

  

 
4.4 Managing Risk is also one of the five core management competencies in the Council’s 

Competency Framework ensuring that the success of managers in managing risk in their 
area of responsibility is assessed as part of their annual performance appraisal. 

 
4.5 This embedded approach now acts as an effective early warning system for the 

recording, monitoring and management of risks that threaten the delivery of the 
Council’s strategic objectives and plans. 

 
4.6 The next formal review of the Strategic Register will take place in February 2012. 
 
 
5. Recommendation 
 
 The Audit Committee is invited to: 
 
5.1    Note and endorse the current position with regard to the Strategic Risk Register.  

 
  
 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER THIRTEEN AUGUST 2011 - Summary by Risk Rating APPENDIX A

Row 
No.

RISK 
REF POTENTIAL RISKS IDENTIFIED

CHANGE 
IN RISK 
RATING

COMMENTS

LEAD OFFICER
RISK 
CHAMPION

*P *I *P *I *P *I *P *I

1 21 MTFS issues. 5 5 25 5 5 25 5 5 25 5 5 25 COMMENTS FEB 11: Robust delivery plans have been developed to underpin the 2011/12 
Revenue budget and the significant change agenda.  As at December 2010 we are still 
forecasting an end of year overspend which needs to be addressed and we need to ensure 
robust regular monitoring of Delivery Plan progress.  COMMENTS AUG 11: CMT & SMT 
have held a Delivery Plan 11/12 challenge session to highlight areas of most concern.  
On going CMT & DMT monitoring via monthly/quarterly reporting. 

Malcolm Coe Angie 
McSweeney

2 49 Future of Civic Centre & Council House 4 5 20 4 5 20 4 5 20 4 5 20 COMMENTS FEB 11: Expressions of interest from developers have now been received 
following a formal marketing exercise and a number of development options are being 
considered in the context of the Council’s overall Accommodation Strategy. COMMENTS 
AUG 11:  Expressions of interest in the Civic Centre have been received from 
developers.  These have been considered and further professional advice has been 
taken on the options available to the Council to rationalise and improve its office 
accommodation.  A report on the preferred option for the Civic Centre was considered 
by the Council's Cabinet on 23 August 2011 and approval given for a formal 
procurement process to be instigated.

David Draffen Anthony 
Davis

3 74 Social Care - Client Management IT Systems (Carefirst) 5 4 20 5 4 20 5 4 20 5 4 20 COMMENTS FEB 11:  Significant progress has been made over the last month with the Ian Gallin Lynn Clark

Feb-11

CURRENT 
RESIDUAL RISK 

RATING

 RESIDUAL RISK 
RATING

 RESIDUAL RISK 
RATING

Feb-10 Aug-11

 RESIDUAL RISK 
RATING

Aug-10

3 74 Social Care - Client Management IT Systems (Carefirst) 5 4 20 5 4 20 5 4 20 5 4 20 COMMENTS FEB 11:  Significant progress has been made over the last month with the 
implementation of infrastructure and software to support better management reporting and 
client facing outputs.  A governance structure has been established enabling open discussions 
to take place and agree what functionality is required.   There are a number of technical risks 
at present that the teams are working to address. COMMENTS AUG 11:  The last few 
months have seen a number of significant deliverables and improvements to the tool 
to support frontline services but work is ongoing; as the new products go live 
considerable effort needs to be invested in the monitoring of the benefits realisation.  
The implementation of mobile technologies and introduction of new functionality 
within ASC will need careful review to ensure that the piloted way of working is in fact 
successful.  However, new workstreams are being introduced in line with business 
pressures, which although being managed, are creating considerable additional work.  
Budget is on target as are approved implementation target deadlines.

Ian Gallin Lynn Clark

4 46 Information Governance (compliance with statutory 
requirements for information use, security, exchange, storage 
and to comply with Intellectual Property obligations)

4 4 16 4 4 16 4 4 16 4 4 16 COMMENTS FEB 11:  Action plan arising from Information Management internal audit report 
will enable Information Risk Officers from each Directorate to identify risks and co-ordinate 
mitigating actions in order to manage the overall impact of security incidents and working 
practices that may compromise the Council.  Information Management now included as a 
mandatory item on all operational risk registers and the Operational Risk Management Group 
is developing a common approach to identification and management of the key risks. 
COMMENTS AUG 11:  Information Management is now included as a mandatory item 
on all Operational Risk Registers, this includes Information Governance requirements.  
Responsibility for the assessment of all council information activity is held by the 
Senior Information Risk Officer (SIRO) who is seeking appointment of an Information 
Lead Officer from each Directorate in order to achieve a consistent approach across 
the council, in order to reduce the likelihood of regulatory penalities and promote 
citizen and intellectual property rights.

Neville Cannon Richard 
Woodfield

1 Strategic Risk Register Thirteen - TLight - Draft

P
age 29



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER THIRTEEN AUGUST 2011 - Summary by Risk Rating APPENDIX A

Row 
No.

RISK 
REF POTENTIAL RISKS IDENTIFIED

CHANGE 
IN RISK 
RATING

COMMENTS

LEAD OFFICER
RISK 
CHAMPION

*P *I *P *I *P *I *P *I

Feb-11

CURRENT 
RESIDUAL RISK 

RATING

 RESIDUAL RISK 
RATING

 RESIDUAL RISK 
RATING

Feb-10 Aug-11

 RESIDUAL RISK 
RATING

Aug-10

5 81 Academy Schools New 4 4 16 4 4 16 COMMENTS FEB 11:  The corporate impact of the Government Academy Programme needs 
to be assessed to ensure there are sufficient resources to support remaining schools.  Those 
managing services to schools are drafting Service Level Agreements and Finance staff are 
currently modelling the effect on Local Authority budgets. COMMENTS AUG 11: SLA and 
contracts have been drafted.  The effect to date on LA budgets has been modelled and 
fed into the Dedicated Schools Grant budgets both within schools and the LA.  To date 
only 1 further primary school has expressed an interest in becoming Academy - no 
fixed date for transfer.  If further schools expressed an interest then more work would 
need to be carried out on the future resourcing of maintained schools.

Gareth Simmons Andrea 
Langman

6 72 Significant pressure on Adult Social Care budget 4 4 16 4 4 16 4 4 16 4 4 16 COMMENTS FEB 11:  The Programme Board continues to regularly monitor budget 
performance and delivery plans.  CQC 09/10 judged ASC as performing well in all 7 Outcomes 
including Outcome 4 – Increased choice and control i.e. supporting more people to remain at 
home. COMMENTS AUG 11: The Programme Board continues to regularly monitor 
performance and delivery plans.  Milestones of 30% of service users receiving a 
personal budget by end of March 10/11 was reached.

Pam Marsden Lynn Clark

7 33 Capital for Education Infrastructure (Formerly Building schools 
for the future (BSF) programme (formerly Schools re-
organisation.)

2 3 6 5 4 20 3 4 12 4 4 16 COMMENTS FEB 11:   Funding for 2 Academies has been achieved.  A Cabinet paper was 
presented in October 2010 on the Demographic growth.  Basic Need liability defined for Wave 
1 schools and incorporated in to the capital programme with Cabinet papers due to be 

Gareth Simmons Andrea 
Langman

organisation.) 1 schools and incorporated in to the capital programme with Cabinet papers due to be 
presented in March. COMMENTS AUG 11: Cabinet paper in March was approved and 
phase 1 of Wave 1 is being delivered to the first five schools to achieve the Sept 2011 
cohort.  A further Cabinet paper detailing Wave 2 (Sept 2012 cohort) and outlining 
Waves 3-5 will be submitted in September.  It is estimated that £6m funding will be 
required for this next phase and the government has indicated that additional money 
may be available but this has not been clarified which is why the risk score has 
increased.  Feasibility work is underway.  The Cabinet Paper to obtain approval for 
Waves 3-5 will be submitted in December 2012.

8 77 Carbon Reduction Commitment (CRC) Energy Efficiency 
Scheme

New 4 5 20 4 5 20 3 5 15 COMMENTS FEB 11:  The CRC is now a tax rather than a bonus/penalty incentive scheme.  
The first tax payment is due in April 2012 for carbon emissions during 2011/12.  At current 
carbon emission levels PCC will have to pay around £450,000 in April 2012 - as a worse case 
scenario.  The league table remains as a reputational driver. COMMENTS AUG 11: Tax 
burden has been reduced by over £100k by migrating street lighting from active to 
passive HH metering.  This loop hole will be closed in April 2014.  Energy Management 
system acquired to improve carbon data management capability.  65% of the Early 
Action Metric has been fulfilled through achieving the ISO 14064 (CEMARS) standard 
and installing AMRs across schools and corporate buildings.  This will improve our 
ranking in the first Performance League Table published in October 2011.  The annual 
and footprint reports for 2010/11 have been submitted to the Environment Agency on 
the 28th July after the successful completion of an internal audit to 'provide assurance 
that PCC has fulfilled its obligations to the CRC EE scheme'.

Chris Trevitt Angie 
McSweeney

9 42 Health & Safety Management system 3 5 15 3 5 15 3 5 15 3 5 15 COMMENTS FEB 11:  Audit plan to cover entire system in development, proposal to be 
complete end of March 11. COMMENTS AUG 11:  Senior managers completed IOSH 
Managing Safely course.  Focussed audit in waste and recycling completed by 
Gallagher Bassett in Jan 2011 evidencing good levels of compliance but still need to 
address audit programme to maintain that assurance.

Mark Grimley Helen Cocks

2 Strategic Risk Register Thirteen - TLight - Draft

P
age 30



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER THIRTEEN AUGUST 2011 - Summary by Risk Rating APPENDIX A

Row 
No.

RISK 
REF POTENTIAL RISKS IDENTIFIED

CHANGE 
IN RISK 
RATING

COMMENTS

LEAD OFFICER
RISK 
CHAMPION

*P *I *P *I *P *I *P *I

Feb-11

CURRENT 
RESIDUAL RISK 

RATING

 RESIDUAL RISK 
RATING

 RESIDUAL RISK 
RATING

Feb-10 Aug-11

 RESIDUAL RISK 
RATING

Aug-10

10 28 Increase in the of number of looked after children and cost 
pressures on Independent Placements.

4 5 20 4 5 20 3 5 15 3 5 15 COMMENTS FEB 11: Team managers’ management information tool in place.  Reviews on all 
placements are undertaken on a fortnightly basis.  These measures are reducing drift and 
throughput of work from the Advice and Assessment Service. The Project Team are prioritising 
modelling around future numbers coming into care and considering innovative ways of working 
to divert children from care and from escalating through the care system. We are now seeing 
numbers of children in care beginning to reduce with plans to reduce further over the coming 
year to bring us in line with statistical neighbour averages. COMMENTS AUG 11: There have 
been minimal increases in the total number of children in care.  The diversion from 
care project and supporting mechanisms among Children's  Social Care managers are 
working to ensure fewer children are placed with independent sector providers.  
However, in terms of future risks, new fostering regulations have the potential to 
impact negatively on the number of children going into the independent sector.  This is 
because foster carers can no longer go over numbers (more than 3 children) their age 
approval profile for more than 6 days. We are actively managing this situation by 
reviewing the age approval profile of all current in house foster carers.

Mairead MacNeil Angela 
Langman

11 82 Potential legislative non-compliance of PCC buildings due to 
fragmented ownership and responsibility

New 3 5 15 COMMENTS AUG 11:  Consideration of centralising  the internal ownerhsip of Council 
land and buildings following initiatives like stock transfer to ensure continuing 
legislative compliance and provide a clear and efficient service to customers.  With 
further future potential operational changes arising from the Council's accommodation 

Chris Trevitt Angie 
McSweeney

further future potential operational changes arising from the Council's accommodation 
strategy a consistent approach to management of council property is required to 
ensure opportunities for efficiencies are maximised and potential risks are minimised. 
Adoption of a Corporate Landlord model is planned to take on responsibility for all 
land and buildings and extend current agreements for legislative compliance to all 
property.

12 59 Financial Risk associated with contaminated land 3 5 15 3 5 15 3 5 15 3 5 15 COMMENTS FEB 11:  Inspections on going based on highest priority sites. COMMENTS AUG 
11: The highest priority site was investigated, found to be contaminated and the land 
remediated.  We are currently in the process of returning it to a condition it can be 
used as before.  The next top priority site requires intrusive investigations subject to 
grant funding from Government.

Jayne Donovan / 
Robin Carton

Lynn Clark

13 52 Delivery of Capital Programme 4 5 20 4 5 20 3 5 15 3 5 15 COMMENTS FEB 11:  Capital Delivery Board with Terms of Reference established with 
greater representation and Board chaired by a Service Director.  Good proportion of reps 
across the board.  Dedicated “Capital and Major Projects” Team within Finance structure.  
Additional training to be rolled out to all Project Officers on Project Management Procedures to 
incorporate new Governance Procedures. COMMENTS AUG 11: There has been a delay to 
the new Project Management Procedures due to a delay in approval of the new 
Constitution of which they form part.  A further review of the delivery of Captial 
Projects is on going.

Malcolm Coe Angie 
McSweeney

14 67 Violent extremism 3 5 15 3 5 15 3 5 15 3 5 15 COMMENTS FEB 11:  Action plan broadly on target.  Work in this area will be reviewed after 
the outcome of the government's review of Prevent is known. COMMENTS AUG 11: Draft 
Prevent Action Plan produced.  2nd Counter Terrorism Local Profile produced and 
responded to.

Peter Aley Lynn Clark

15 36 Management of Employee Stress 3 5 15 3 5 15 3 5 15 3 5 15 COMMENTS FEB 11:  Review individual service area action plans. COMMENTS AUG 11:  
Introduction of employee assistance programme to address issues at an earlier stage 
and encourage colleagues to take control of their situation giving them the tools to do 
this.  Targeted stress reduction plan.  New business plan templates updated to include 
commitment to assessing risk in each service area.

Mark Grimley Helen Cocks

3 Strategic Risk Register Thirteen - TLight - Draft

P
age 31



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER THIRTEEN AUGUST 2011 - Summary by Risk Rating APPENDIX A

Row 
No.

RISK 
REF POTENTIAL RISKS IDENTIFIED

CHANGE 
IN RISK 
RATING

COMMENTS

LEAD OFFICER
RISK 
CHAMPION

*P *I *P *I *P *I *P *I

Feb-11

CURRENT 
RESIDUAL RISK 

RATING

 RESIDUAL RISK 
RATING

 RESIDUAL RISK 
RATING

Feb-10 Aug-11

 RESIDUAL RISK 
RATING

Aug-10

16 24 Violence to staff/lone working. 3 5 15 3 5 15 3 5 15 3 5 15 COMMENTS FEB 11:  PVP policy consultation concluded and ICT design being finalised.  
Awaiting funding decision by CMT. COMMENTS AUG 11:  Policy drafted, some funding 
identified and development planned.  Awaiting installation of Dynamics 2011 subject to 
CMT financial capital approval.

Mark Grimley Helen Cocks

17 60 Economic downturn affecting treasury management.  3 5 15 3 5 15 3 3 9 3 5 15 COMMENTS FEB 11:   Significantly reduced the risk of Treasury Management activity since 
October 2008 through changing our strategy and borrowing and investment portfolio. Audit 
Committee formally oversees Treasury Management Strategy.  Revised Strategy formally 
approved and Audit Committee updated on progress every 6 months.  On track to achieve the 
£600K revenue savings target that was set for Treasury Management in 2010/11. 
COMMENTS AUG 11:  Treasury Management Board is monitoring any potential impact 
from the current global economic situation hence the increase in risk from green to 
amber.  It will monitor institutions used on a weekly basis and continue to seek advice 
from independent advisors.

Malcolm Coe Angie 
McSweeney

18 51 Failure to deliver sustained and accelerated economic and 
population growth.

3 5 15 3 5 15 3 5 15 3 5 15 COMMENTS FEB 11:  LDF programme in place and being actively implemented.  Action 
plans for each theme being reviewed and implemented and monitored by Plymouth Growth 
Board.  Risk of shortage of funding due to Government changes in funding policies for major 
schemes which could impact on infrastructure in place. COMMENTS AUG 11: Awaiting 
information on agreed sub regional gov and growth fund.

David Draffan Maria Smith

information on agreed sub regional gov and growth fund.

19 73 Employee Relations 4 5 20 4 5 20 4 5 20 3 5 15 COMMENTS FEB 11: Extensive and meaningful negotiations with trade unions have taken 
place over a package of proposed changes to staff Terms and Conditions. Trade Unions also 
continue to be consulted on proposed delivery plans to achieve budget reductions following 
Government spending cuts.  COMMENTS AUG 11: Negotiations with GMB and Unite 
agreed.  New Terms & Conditions to start on 1st September 2011.

Mark Grimley Helen Cocks

20 68 Failure to reach recycling targets and divert waste from landfill 
(Ex Failure to implement new initiatives to increase recycling 
rate, due to budget pressures.  Initatives agreed as part of PFI 
funding arrangements.)

4 4 16 4 4 16 4 4 16 3 4 12 COMMENTS FEB 11:  The tonnage of biodegradeable waste to landfill fell by around 5,000 
tonnes in the first 3 quarters of 2010/11 compared with the same period in 2009/10 and it is 
estimated that PCC will remain within available allowances for 2010/11 but will need to 
purchase additional credits for 2011/12 onwards until the new residual waste solution is in 
place (expected during 2014 subject to contractor and planning).  LATS (Landfill Allowance 
Trading Scheme) position being monitored and forward purchase strategy to be reviewed for 
early 2011 following Government waste policy review.  The expanded garden waste collection 
service has diverted an additional 790 tonnes from landfill and performance has increased by 
2.1% over the first 3 quarters of 2010/11compared with the same period in 2009/10. The 
Council remains on course to meet its OBC targets but will not meet the earlier LAA recycling 
targets.  Financial pressures and budget constraints are slowing delivery of identified PFI 
recycling initiatives which may impact on achievement of future targets. 

Jayne Donovan / 
Mark Turner

Lynn Clark

4 Strategic Risk Register Thirteen - TLight - Draft

P
age 32



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER THIRTEEN AUGUST 2011 - Summary by Risk Rating APPENDIX A

Row 
No.

RISK 
REF POTENTIAL RISKS IDENTIFIED

CHANGE 
IN RISK 
RATING

COMMENTS

LEAD OFFICER
RISK 
CHAMPION

*P *I *P *I *P *I *P *I

Feb-11

CURRENT 
RESIDUAL RISK 

RATING

 RESIDUAL RISK 
RATING

 RESIDUAL RISK 
RATING

Feb-10 Aug-11

 RESIDUAL RISK 
RATING

Aug-10

COMMENTS AUG 11: The total biodegradable municipal waste landfilled in 2010/11 is 
3,800 tonnes (or 6% less) than 2009/10.  We landfilled 200 tonnes more biodegradable 
waste than the LATS permits allocated to us for the year but had pre-purchased 
sufficient additional permits to cover our needs.  Subject to final confirmation of the 
figures, we hold a 10,700 surplus of permits which can be carried forward to use in 
2011/12.  It is estimated that in 2011/12 we will need 6,600 permits above our allocation, 
which the surplus will cover.  Any surplus credits at the end of 2011/12 (Est 10,500) 
cannot be carried over to 2012/13 as it is a target year.  Current projections estimate 
14,500 credits will need to be purchased in 2012/13.  It has been announced that LATS 
will be abolished following the next target year; the system will cease in April 2013.  
Currently there is uncertainty on what, if anything, will be put in its place as the EU 
targets on minimizing biodegradable waste to landfill still stand.

21 55 Failure to deliver waste PFI Procurement for SW Devon Waste 
Partnership (by 2014)

4 4 16 4 4 16 4 4 16 3 4 12 COMMENTS FEB 11: Procurement completed to programme in Dec 10.  MVV have engaged 
early with statutory planning authorities in pre-application enquiries.  SWDWP to monitor 
progress. COMMENTS AUG 11: Contracts signed and PFI credits formally secured from 
Defra in March 2011 which has reduced this strategic risk.  A planning application was 
submitted in May 2011 by the contractor which is the most significant remaining 
hurdle.  If planning permission is granted and to current programme this should result 

Mark Turner Anthony 
Davis

hurdle.  If planning permission is granted and to current programme this should result 
in solution being operational during 2014 and risks would again be reduced.

22 79 Reduced government grant investment into new affordable 
homes, renewal & regeneration programmes (Ex Reduced Homes 
and Communities Agency (HCA) investment into new affordable housing 
and regeneration programmes.)

New 5 5 25 5 5 25 4 3 12

_

COMMENTS FEB 11:  Soft market testing of sites complete.  Framework released by 
Communities & Local Government on 14th Feb to help evaluate new affordable rent proposals 
and agree how they could be used to continue development pipeline. COMMENTS AUG 11:  
We have supported our Housing Development Partners with their bids - including 
factoring in PCC housing sites and await ministers decisions.  For private sector 
housing we have changed the Assistance Policy rules to reduce grants and introduce 
loans to target our reduced resources where it is most effective.

Stuart Palmer Anthony 
Davis

23 47 Concessionary Fares 3 5 15 3 5 15 3 4 12 3 4 12 COMMENTS FEB 11:   Reimbursement has been kept within the prescribed budget for 
2010/11.  A new reimbursement mechanism has been established for implementation April 
2011 designed to meet obligations for operating company's reimbursement and meet 
proposed Council budgets. COMMENTS AUG 11:The reimbursement scheme was 
accepted by operating companies and no challenge was made during the prescribed 
period to the end of May 2011. This reduces the risk of increases in costs to the 
Council for the current financial year. Monitoring will continue on a monthly basis to 
actively manage and report trends.

Clive Perkin Anthony 
Davis

24 54 Data Quality Management/Providing inaccurate information 3 4 12 3 4 12 3 4 12 3 4 12 COMMENTS FEB 11:  There has been no further progress in addressing this risk. 
COMMENTS AUG 11:  There has been no further progress in addressing this risk.

Giles Perritt Mohamed 
Muganzi

5 Strategic Risk Register Thirteen - TLight - Draft

P
age 33



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER THIRTEEN AUGUST 2011 - Summary by Risk Rating APPENDIX A

Row 
No.

RISK 
REF POTENTIAL RISKS IDENTIFIED

CHANGE 
IN RISK 
RATING

COMMENTS

LEAD OFFICER
RISK 
CHAMPION

*P *I *P *I *P *I *P *I

Feb-11

CURRENT 
RESIDUAL RISK 

RATING

 RESIDUAL RISK 
RATING

 RESIDUAL RISK 
RATING

Feb-10 Aug-11

 RESIDUAL RISK 
RATING

Aug-10

25 30 Unavailability of ICT 3 3 9 3 3 9 2 5 10 2 5 10 COMMENTS FEB 11:  The likelihood is lower due to infrastructure improvements, but the 
impact of losing ICT services as the result of an unplanned event has increased. Disaster 
Recovery Plans being reviewed and mitigation proposals being developed and costed. 
COMMENTS AUG 11:  The likelihood is lower due to infrastructure improvements, but 
the impact of losing ICT services as the result of an unplanned event has now 
increased.  However funding is now in place for network upgrade which will improve 
resilience.  A business case has been put forward for a second data centre which will 
improve Disaster Recovery.  Further lessons to be learnt following a recent failure.

Neville Cannon Richard 
Woodfield

26 14 Fraud 2 5 10 2 5 10 2 5 10 2 5 10 COMMENTS FEB 11:  The National Fraud Initiative matches are back from the Audit 
Commission following data extracts submitted in October.  Devon Audit Partnership have been 
in contact with departments to discuss how they are going to investigate the matches and the 
timescales.  Where an investigation has identified control weaknesses, further work will be 
timetabled and monitored. COMMENTS AUG 11:  The NFI matches are now back from the 
Audit Commission following the data extracts submitted in October 2010.  Council 
departments have been working with Devon Audit Partnership to investigate the 
matches and the results of these are being collated.  Devon Audit Practice continues to 
monitor progress and be a point of contact for queries/further action.  The Bribery Act 
came into force in July 2011 and a briefing paper will be issued to Audit Committee and 

Malcolm Coe Mike Hocking

Council staff on its implications.

27 08 Business continuity planning in line with Civil Contingencies Act 
2004 statutory responsibilities.

2 5 10 2 5 10 2 5 10 2 5 10 COMMENTS FEB 11:  Business Continuity embedded across organisation and all plans 
subject to sign off by Assistant Directors and Heads of Service. COMMENTS AUG 11:  All 
plans have now been signed off.

Giles Perritt Scott Senior

28 80 Planning Obligations - implications of new legal framework and 
current economic circumstances.

New 3 4 12 2 4 8 2 4 8 COMMENTS FEB 11:  Governance arrangements established and reported to Scrutiny in Oct 
10. Detailed guidelines issued to planning case officers. Planning Obligations Forum 
established. COMMENTS AUG 11:  Good progress being made towards Community 
Infrastructure Levy, with Cabinet approving timetable on 12 July 2011; ongoing liaison 
with PINS and CLG regarding planning inspector's interpretation of tariff approaches 
to mitigating development impacts.

Paul Barnard Maria Smith

29 76 Not getting government funding to build Efford Gypsy site 3 4 12 4 4 16 4 4 16 2 4 8 COMMENTS FEB 11:  Exploring options for alternative ways of funding building, discussions 
with stakeholders and consideration of new government policy COMMENTS AUG 11: A plan 
to identify a preferred bidder to develop the site was agreed by Cabinet in August.

Peter Aley Lynn Clark

30 70 Delivering the transformation of Adult Social Care through 
Putting People First framework

2 3 6 2 3 6 2 3 6 2 3 6 COMMENTS FEB 11:  Target 2009/10 met and current target 2010/11 also expected to be 
achieved. COMMENTS AUG 11: Target of 30% of service users receiving a personal 
budget was achieved March 2011.  New operating system currently being rolled out.

Pam Marsden  / 
Julia Penfound

Lynn Clark

31 69 Contribute and support the development of the Plymouth Life 
Centre at Central Park

2 3 6 2 3 6 2 3 6 Delete COMMENTS FEB 11:  Delay resulting from utilities works now instructed (4wks extension of 
time).  Further delay due to inclement weather presently being evaluated.  Planning permission 
secured for transport hub. COMMENTS AUG 11: Project on programme and on budget.

James Coulton / 
Tony Hopwood

Lynn Clark

32 71 To outsource the management of the Plymouth Life Centre and 
existing leisure facilities

3 5 15 2 3 6 2 3 6 Delete COMMENTS FEB 11:  ISDS and CFT stages completed with the CFT returns submitted on 
28th January as per programme.  Evaluation underway from 31st January with preferred 
bidder selected end of March. COMMENTS AUG 11: Contract awarded and presently 
being mobilised for February 2012 opening.

James Coulton  / 
Tony Hopwood

Lynn Clark

6 Strategic Risk Register Thirteen - TLight - Draft

P
age 34



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER THIRTEEN AUGUST 2011 - Summary by Risk Rating APPENDIX A

Row 
No.

RISK 
REF POTENTIAL RISKS IDENTIFIED

CHANGE 
IN RISK 
RATING

COMMENTS

LEAD OFFICER
RISK 
CHAMPION

*P *I *P *I *P *I *P *I

Feb-11

CURRENT 
RESIDUAL RISK 

RATING

 RESIDUAL RISK 
RATING

 RESIDUAL RISK 
RATING

Feb-10 Aug-11

 RESIDUAL RISK 
RATING

Aug-10

33 44 Financial & liability implications of Members & Officers serving 
on Outside Bodies.

3 3 9 3 3 9 3 3 9 Delete COMMENTS FEB 11:  Draft report further delayed as it did not go to Council in October 2010 
as planned. COMMENTS AUG 11:  Issues are covered under the Member's Insurance 
Indemnity Scheme.

Tim Howes Rosie 
Clahane

* P = Probability Rating  (1 = Low, 5 = High)

* I =  Impact Rating  (1 = Low, 5 = High)

Maximum Score 5 x 5 = 25

NB. Risks scored 12 or above will be the subject of priority monitoring

7 Strategic Risk Register Thirteen - TLight - Draft

P
age 35



P
age 36

T
his page is intentionally left blank



CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
 

Subject: Statement of Accounts 2010/11 
 
Committee: Audit Committee 
 
Date: 23 September 2011 
 
Cabinet Member:  Councillor Bowyer 
     
 
CMT Member: Director for Corporate Support 
 
Author: Sandra Wilson (Corporate Finance and Accountancy 

Manager) 
 
Contact: Tel:  01752 (30)4942 
 e-mail: sandra.wilson@plymouth.gov.uk  
 
Ref: ACCT/SW 
 
Key Decision: No 
 
Part: I  
 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
The Council’s draft Statutory Statement of Accounts were prepared and approved 
ready for audit by the Director for Corporate Support on 30 June 2011. A training 
and awareness session, reviewing the draft statements, was held for Audit Committee 
Members on 6 July 2011.  
 
The Accounts have now been audited and are being presented to Audit Committee 
for approval. 
 
The Accounts and Audit Regulations require the accounts to be formally approved and 
published by 30 September.  
 
Issues raised by the auditor are outlined in the report, including a summary of the 
changes made to the main statements and notes since the draft accounts were 
produced.  In particular the auditor has asked the authority to work with Cornwall 
Council and the respective sets of auditors to review the treatment of Tamar Bridge 
and Torpoint Ferry in the Authorities accounts.  
 
The final quality review on the document is now being undertaken. The main 
statements, including the group account statements for 2010/11 are attached and the 
full document including all the notes to the accounts will follow prior to the Audit 
Committee meeting.  
 
            

Agenda Item 9Page 37



 
Corporate Plan 2011- 2014 
 
The Council’s expenditure forms the basis on which the Corporate Plan can be 
delivered. 
            
 
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications: 
Including Finance, Human IT and Land: 
 
The 2010/11 final accounts will have implications on the Medium Term Financial Plan.  
The level of Working Balance and reserves will affect the level of funding available in 
future years and variations in Service Expenditure will also need to be reviewed to 
assess the effects on future years.  
            
 
Other Implications:  e.g.  Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk 
Management and Equality, Diversity and Community Cohesion: 
 
N/A 
            
 
Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 
 
1. Audit Committee note the amendments made to the Statement of Accounts for 

2010/11 as agreed with the Auditor, and outlined in this report. 
 
2. The Statement of Accounts for 2010/11 be approved. 
 
3. The letter of representation attached at Appendix B is authorised and submitted 

to the Auditor. 
 
4. Officers work with colleagues in Cornwall Council and the respective auditors to 

review the treatment of Tamar Bridge and Torpoint Ferry in the Authorities 
accounts.  

  
            
 
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
 
None – Statutory requirement to produce and approve the Statement of Accounts 
 
             
 
Background papers: 
 
Final Accounts Working Papers 2010/11 
Budget Papers 2010/11 
The Local Authority Code of Accounting Practice 2010 (The Code)  
Best Value Accounting Code of Practice2010 (BVACoP) 
Outturn Report to Cabinet 7 June 2011 
 
 

Page 38



 
 
Sign off:   

 
 

Fin DJN111
2.012 

Leg TH0023 HR n/a Corp 
Prop 

n/a IT n/a Strat 
Proc 

n/a 

Originating SMT Member: Malcolm Coe 
 

Page 39



Statement of Accounts 2010/11 
 
 

1. Introduction 
 
1.1    The draft Statement of Accounts was approved by the Director for Corporate 

Support on 30 June 2011. The formal audit commenced on 5 July 2011 and has 
been ongoing until now. The External Auditor’s Governance Report, including 
the findings on the annual accounts audit, is being presented to this meeting.   
The Accounts and Audit Regulations require the Statement of Accounts to be 
approved by the Council by 30 September 2011. For Plymouth, this 
responsibility has been delegated to the Audit Committee. The final quality 
review on the document is now being undertaken. The main statements, 
including the group account statements for 2010/11 are attached and the full 
document including all the notes to the accounts will follow prior to the Audit 
Committee meeting. 

 
1.2 A number of changes have been made to the Statements following discussions 

with the auditor and these are outlined in the report.  
 
1.3 The Council is also required to identify and report on any post balance sheet 

events that have occurred since 31 March 2011.  The Statement of Accounts 
therefore includes all post balance sheet events up to and including the 14 
September 2011.  

 
1.4 As part of the final audit requirement, and prior to the issue of the audit 

certificate, the Council is required to complete and sign a formal letter of 
representation and submit this to the auditor. In line with last year this letter 
may be signed by the Director for Corporate Support and the Chair of Audit 
Committee and is attached at Appendix B. 

 
1.5 The Accounts for 2010/11 have been produced on an IFRS basis for the first 

time and details of the main changes are outlined in section 2 of this report. 
The auditor has outlined in the ISA 260 report being presented to this 
Committee that he is satisfied that the Accounts have been complied in 
accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting  2010/11 
(The Code). 

  
1.6 Council Officers would like to express their thanks to the Audit staff for their 

help and assistance in producing and finalising the Council’s Statement of 
Accounts.  

 
2. The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2010 (The 

Code) 
 
2.1 The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2010 is the first to be 

produced on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and is based on 
approved standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB) and interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Committee 
(IFRIC) except where these are inconsistent with specific statutory 
requirements.  

 

Page 40



2.2 The move to an IFRS-based Code from a UK GAAP-based SORP has resulted 
in a number of significant changes in accounting practice. The key changes 
applicable to Plymouth’s accounts include: 

 
2.2.1  Main Financial Statements 
 

The main financial statements have changed both in format and name. The 
Statements have generally been simplified with a greater reliance on the detail 
within notes to the accounts. There is a greater focus on long term and short 
term assets and liabilities on the Balance Sheet. Short term assets and liabilities 
represent those expected to be received or settled in the next 12 months 
after the reporting period. This has led to a number of assets and liabilities 
having to be split on the Balance Sheet.  Examples include insurance and 
general provisions. 
 
A third Balance Sheet is required in order to present the restated balances as 
at 1 April 2009 and to support the movement in year of the comparative 
figures in disclosure  
notes. 

 
 The main statements are attached at Appendix A. 
  
2.2.2 Key Accounting Changes 
 
a. Grants and Contributions 

· Grants and contributions for capital purposes are recognised as income 
immediately rather than being deferred and released to revenue to match 
depreciation providing there are no outstanding conditions that might 
result in grant repayment. Regulations do not permit capital grants and 
contributions to score against the Council Tax and these are required to 
be reversed out to Balance Sheet reserves in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement; 

· Revenue grants with no outstanding conditions that are earmarked for 
expenditure but not utilised at year end are posted to an earmarked 
reserve rather than carried forward through an accrual;  

· Revenue and capital grants with outstanding conditions that may require 
repayment are not released to revenue but carried on the Balance Sheet as 
a creditor. 

 
b. Accounting for Leases 

· Property leases are classified and accounted for as separate leases of land 
and buildings; 

· The ‘90%’ test previously applied to determine the classification of a lease 
between operating and finance lease has been replaced by more subjective 
analysis. This has resulted in the reclassification of a small number of 
property leases where the Authority is a lessee and resulted in many of the 
Council’s vehicle and equipment leases being reclassified from operating to 
finance leases; 

· There is a need to examine the substance of long term contracts to see if 
they meet the criteria of service concessions or contain an embedded 
lease. Embedded leases have been identified in the Amey and Virador 
contracts. The annual payments under these contracts have been analysed 
to separate the lease elements from the service payment where 
appropriate. 

Page 41



c. Accounting for Non-Current Assets 
· Operational assets have been renamed as Property, Plant and Equipment;  
· Investment properties are now recognised as a separate asset category and 

are measured at fair value, with gains or losses, including rental income, 
recognised as financing and investment income. Previously gains or losses 
on revaluation were recognised through the Revaluation Reserve and rental 
income through the relevant service line. There is a much tighter definition 
of an investment property resulting in a reclassification of a number of the 
Council’s properties as Property, Plant and Equipment and attracting an 
annual depreciation charge;  

· There is a new asset category for Assets held for Sale. This category 
generally only applies to those assets actively being marketed for sale. 
Assets that have been declared ‘surplus’ but are being held pending an 
improvement in market conditions are classified as surplus assets but  
continue to be held within Property Plant and Equipment;  

· There is a greater emphasis on component accounting and on 
derecognising parts of an asset that are replaced; 

· Impairment losses are now taken to the Revaluation Reserve, and only to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when there is no 
balance on the reserve relating to that asset. Previously impairment losses 
relating to a decline in economic conditions were taken straight to the 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 
d. Employee Benefits 

· All employee benefits are accounted for as they are earned by the 
employee. This has resulted in accruals for items such as holiday pay where 
annual leave has not been taken by 31 March. Regulations allow the impact 
to be reversed out to a holiday pay accrual account;  

· There is a requirement to account for all termination benefits, e.g. 
redundancies, when they are agreed rather than when they are paid. This 
has resulted in additional charges to the 2010/11 accounts but this has been 
met from the redundancy reserve.  

 
e. Group Boundary 

· There is a change to determining the group boundary and the definition of 
associates is based on the ability to control rather than actual control.  This 
impacts on the related party disclosure as well as the formal consolidated 
group accounts. 

 
The changes in accounting practice are required to be applied retrospectively 
and the accounts for 2009/10 together with the relevant disclosure notes have 
been restated.  Note 2 to the Accounts provides more detail of the changes 
and the impact on the reported figures.   

 
2.2.3 Disclosure Notes 
 

A number of new disclosure notes have been introduced and for others the 
format has changed. There is a greater emphasis on looking forward rather 
than the traditional retrospective look at the year just passed. The most 
significant new notes include: 
 

Page 42



· Disclosure of future accounting standards that have been published but not 
yet approved outlining the impact of the accounting change on future years 
accounts; 

· Assumptions about the future and other major sources of estimation 
uncertainty; 

· Disclosure of judgments made by management in applying the accounting 
policies; 

· Segmental reporting which reconciles the Council’s Management Accounts 
to the Statutory Accounts; 

· Termination Benefits. 
 
There are also a number of extended or amended notes, the key areas being: 
 
· Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis; 
· Property Plant and Equipment; 
· Investment Properties; 
· Intangible Assets; 
· Assets Held for Sale; 
· Impairment losses;  
· Leasing; 
· Pensions; 
· Notes supporting the Cash Flow Statement. 

 
3. Other issues affecting the Accounts for 2010/11 - Group Accounting 

Boundary 
 
3.1 There have been changes to the Council’s group boundary for consolidated 

group accounts as follows: 
 

· The Theatre Royal has been removed as a subsidiary with effect from 1 
October 2010 following the resignation from the Board of all Council 
Members. The group accounts therefore include a six month income and 
expenditure position for the Theatre and Pavilions and all assets and 
liabilities have been written out of the group Balance Sheet.  

· The Council entered a Joint Venture agreement with the University to 
manage Tamar Science Park in March 2010. This company has now been 
included within the group accounts and the group Balance Sheet for 
2009/10 has been restated to include the relevant assets and liabilities of 
the Company. 

 
4. Key Messages 2010/11 

 
4.1 Comprehensive Income and expenditure statement (CIES) 
 
4.1.1 Pensions: 

· The change of the valuation of pension liabilities from RPI to CPI- a 
favourable £72m,  

· A transfer back of notional pension fund assets from Plymouth Community 
Homes of £15m  

 
Both entries are shown in the CIES under the Non distributable costs service, 
resulting in a large variation when compared to the previous year. 

Page 43



4.1.2 Capital grants: 
 Capital grants of £44m have been released to revenue.  
 
4.1.3 Net deficit for the year: 
 A deficit of £72.947m,  a net decrease of £444.344m from 2009/10, mainly the 

impact of the stock transfer asset write-out in 2009/10, offset by the pensions 
changes outlined above and write-out and impairment of schools transferring 
to Academies in 2010/11. 

 
4.2 Balance Sheet 
 
 Net increase in Balance Sheet worth of £89.138m, mainly due to a pensions 

liability reduction of (£230.068m), offset by asset write-out and impairment  for 
Academy transfers of £81.859m. 

  
4.3 Reserves and Provisions  
 
 Overall general reserves remain healthy: 

· Working Balance of £11.5m, 5.7% net revenue spend 
· Earmarked reserves £33.157m 
· Usable capital receipts £22.491m 
· Provisions £10.878m 

 
5. Post Balance Sheet Events 
 
5.1 Although the Statement of Accounts shows the financial outturn position for 

2010/11 and Balance Sheet position as at 31 March 2011, the Council is 
required to take into account items occurring after 31 March 2011 if they 
would have a material effect on the figures. Note 7 outlines those events 
arising after 31 March 2011. The note has been updated to reflect the position 
as at 14 September 2011, being the date these accounts were authorised for 
release to Audit Committee. In summary the accounts have been adjusted for: 

 
· Plymouth Community Homes post completion pension Valuation 
· Academy Transfers. 
 
The latest position on Plymouth City Airport continues to be reported as a 
post Balance Sheet event, but the note has been updated to reflect the 
acceptance by Cabinet of the notice of non-viability from the lessee. As there is 
a possibility that the operator may decide to sell the airport site in the future, 
in which case the Council would receive 75% of the sale proceeds, a 
contingent asset has been added to the Notes to the Accounts.   

 
6. Audit Amendments to the Accounts 

 
6.1 The auditor’s report outlines a number of changes they are recommending be 

made to the Accounts. These have been discussed and agreed with Council 
Officers, and are reflected in the final statements being presented for approval. 
In summary the amendments, and the impact on the reported position, are as 
follows: 

 
 
 

Page 44



6.2 Non Current Assets 
· The removal of £60.217m from the Balance Sheet in respect of Schools 

that transferred to Academy status in 2011/12. A corresponding 
adjustment has been made to the CIES (Children’s Services service line) to 
reflect the removal of the assets as an impairment.  This has increased the 
deficit on the CIES by £56.648m, and Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure by £3.569m. However as these charges are reversed out via 
the Movement in Reserves Statement there is no overall impact on the 
reported final deficit for the year. The net worth on the Balance Sheet has 
been reduced by £60.217m. 

· The reclassification of £4.268m of Community Assets to Infrastructure and 
£0.664m to Vehicle, Plant and Equipment. No impact on Balance Sheet net 
worth. 

· The reversal of £7.970m relating to revaluation of Community Assets 
based on insurance value. Decrease in Balance Sheet net worth of 
£7.970m. 

· Clarification that £2.356m of community assets had been added to the 
Balance Sheet as an addition, not as a result of a revaluation. No impact on 
net Balance Sheet worth. 

 
6.3 Pensions 

An adjustment to the value of pensions assets at year end of £2.899m to 
reflect Plymouth’s share of the final valuation of the assets in the pension fund. 
The adjustment will reduce the deficit on the Balance Sheet and thus increase 
the Council’s net worth on the Balance Sheet. 

  
6.4 Current Assets/Liabilities 

· An adjustment of £0.400m to short term debtors and creditors relating to 
a credit note issued after year end against a section 106 invoice 

· An adjustment of £0.378m between short term debtor and cash for 
overpaid schools funding.  

 
No impact on overall Balance Sheet net worth from these adjustments. 

 
6.5 CIES 

An increase in Expenditure on Cultural, Environmental, Regulatory and 
Planning services of £0.212m, offset by a reduction in Taxation and non specific 
grant income. No overall impact on net deficit for year. 

 
6.6 Restatement 2009/10 

The inclusion of Tamar Science Park in the restated single entity accounts for 
2009/10.  As included in long term investments with a matching long term 
liability representing the deferred payment of the Councils contribution, there 
is no overall impact on net Balance Sheet worth.   

 
6.7 Disclosures 

The inclusion of a contingent asset in respect of Plymouth airport and an 
update to the post Balance Sheet note. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



7. Future Treatment- Joint Committee Accounts 
 
7.1 At the start of the audit, Cornwall Council was advised by its external auditors 

that following legal advice, joint committees were not able to take advantage of 
the statutory overrides relating to depreciation, pensions etc that local 
authorities enjoy and whilst Cornwall’s auditors have agreed a work around 
solution for 2010/11, Plymouth’s external auditors have requested that a full 
review of the treatment of the Tamar Bridge and Torpoint Ferry Joint 
Committee’s accounts by the respective authorities should be undertaken in 
advance of the 2011/12 Statement of Accounts. 
 

8. Recommendations 
 
8.1 Audit Committee note the amendments made to the Statement of Accounts 

for 2010/11 as agreed with the Auditor, and outlined in this report. 
 
8.2 The Statement of Accounts for 2010/11 be approved. 
 
8.3. The letter of representation attached at Appendix B is authorised and 

submitted to the Auditor. 
  

8.4 Officers work with colleagues in Cornwall Council and the respective auditors 
to review the treatment of Tamar Bridge and Torpoint Ferry in the Authorities 
accounts.  

 

Page 46



APPENDIX A

Note

General 

Fund 

Balance

Earmarked 

General 

Fund 

Reserves

Housing 

Revenue 

Account

Earmarke

d HRA 

Reserves

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Major 

Repairs 

Reserve

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

Total 

Usable 

Reserves

Unusable 

Reserves

Total 

Authority 

Reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2009 11,739 34,952 2,042 0 5,376 237 19,045 73,391 650,068 723,459 

Movement in Reserves during 2009/10
Surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services (517,292) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (517,292) 0 (517,292) 
Other Comprehensive Income and  Expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (72,422) (72,422) 
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (517,292) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (517,292) (72,422) (589,714) 
Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under 

Regulations 8 510,792 0 0 0 15,982 (9,492) 1,177 518,459 (519,978) (1,519) 

Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked 

Reserves
(6,500) 0 0 0 15,982 (9,492) 1,177 1,167 (592,400) (591,233) 

Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves 23 6,279 (6,366) (250) 0 0 9,255 0 8,918 (8,921) (3) 
Increase/Decrease in 2009/10 (221) (6,366) (250) 0 15,982 (237) 1,177 10,085 (601,321) (591,236) 

Balance at 31 March 2010 carried forward 11,518 28,586 1,792 0 21,358 0 20,222 83,476 48,747 132,223 

Movement in Reserves during 2010/11
Surplus or (deficit) on provision of services (72,947) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (72,947) 0 (72,947) 
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 162,085 162,085 
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (72,947) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (72,947) 162,085 89,138 
Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under 

Regulations 8 75,987 0 0 0 931 0 (6,451) 70,467 (70,467) 0 

Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked 

Reserves
3,040 0 0 0 931 0 (6,451) (2,480) 91,618 89,138 

Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves 23 (3,145) 4,571 (1,792) 0 201 0 0 (165) 165 0 
Increase/(Decrease) in 2010/11 (105) 4,571 (1,792) 0 1,132 0 (6,451) (2,645) 91,783 89,138 
Balance at 31 March 2011 carried forward 11,413 33,157 0 0 22,490 0 13,771 80,831 140,530 221,361 

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 MARCH 2010 AND 2011

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the authority, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (ie those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other 

reserves. The Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing the authority’s services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance and the Housing Revenue Account for council tax setting and dwellings rent setting 

purposes. The Net Increase /Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows the statutory General Fund Balance and Housing Revenue Account Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from 

earmarked reserves undertaken by the Council.

P
age 47



APPENDIX A

2009/10
Gross 

Expenditure
£000

2009/10
Gross

Income
£000

2009/10
Net 

Expenditure
£000

2010/11
Gross 

Expenditure
£000

2010/11
Gross Income

£000

2010/11
Net 

Expenditure
£000

91,782 (19,003) 72,779 Adult Social Care 93,735 (20,005) 73,730 
5,401 (88) 5,313 Corporate & Democratic Core 5,425 (81) 5,344 

84,355 (23,723) 60,632 Cultural, Environmental, Regulatory & Planning Services 84,985 (24,015) 60,970 
26,921 (22,133) 4,788 Central Services to the Public 28,014 (23,485) 4,529 

328,384 (216,349) 112,035 Childrens And Education Services 414,363 (220,293) 194,070 
102,939 (97,071) 5,868 Housing Services 108,254 (94,700) 13,554 
32,113 (30,139) 1,974 Housing Revenue Account (753) (28) (781) 
29,580 (11,373) 18,207 Highways & Transport Services 28,906 (11,455) 17,451 
7,523 0 7,523 Non Distributable Costs 6 3,534 (92,112) (88,578) 

708,998 (419,879) 289,119 (Surplus)/Deficit on Continuing Operations 766,463 (486,174) 280,289 

463,819 (3,134) 460,685 (Gain) or Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets 12.7 26,265 (1,437) 24,828 
757 (1,445) (688) Other Operating Expenditure 9 114 (2,029) (1,915) 

66,214 (45,809) 20,405 Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 10 78,316 (47,430) 30,886 
0 (252,229) (252,229) Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 11 0 (261,141) (261,141) 

517,292 (Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services 72,947 

(28,782) (Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of Fixed Assets 23.4 (7,278) 
101,204 Actuarial gains / losses on pension assets / liabilities 37 (154,807) 
72,422 Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (162,085) 

589,714 Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (89,138) 

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Authorities raise 
taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT AT 31ST MARCH 2011

P
age 48



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

1 A
pril 2009

31 M
arch 2010

N
ote

31 M
arch 2011

£000
£000

£000
2

1,241,907
693,990

Property Plant and Equipm
ent

12
570,243

88,635
87,296

Investm
ent Property

13
78,025

1,860
1,783

Intangible A
ssets

14
1,583

51,342
30,588

Long Term
 Investm

ents
16

11,920
969

1,335
Long Term

 D
ebtors

17.1
731

1,384,713
814,992

N
on current A

ssets
662,502

149,134
46,288

Short Term
 Investm

ents
16

61,122
991

429
Stock

569
39,298

47,874
Short Term

 D
ebtors

17.2
35,151

26,508
79,448

C
ash and C

ash Equivalents
19

92,566
502

2,510
A

ssets H
eld for Sale

20
3,057

0
0

LA
TS allow

ances
18

875
216,433

176,549
C

urrent A
ssets

193,340

(113,250)
(76,918)

Short Term
 Borrow

ing
16

(96,952)
(67,952)

(71,835)
Short Term

 C
reditors

21.1
(59,902)

(3,583)
(1,624)

Short Term
 Provisions

22
(2,907)

(184,785)
(150,377)

C
urrent L

iabilities
(159,761)

(17,691)
(20,661)

Long Term
 C

reditors
21.2

(18,757)
(8,255)

(9,146)
Long Term

 Provisions
22

(7,879)
(263,405)

(160,348)
Long Term

 Borrow
ing

16
(193,991)

(330,530)
(449,381)

Long Term
 Liabilities Pensions

37
(219,313)

(73,021)
(69,405)

Long Term
 Liabilities O

ther
21.3

(34,780)
(692,902)

(708,941)
L

ong T
erm

 L
iabilities

(474,720)
723,459

132,223
N

et A
ssets

221,361

73,391
83,476

U
sable Reserves

23.1, 23.2
80,831

650,068
48,747

U
nusable Reserves

23.3
140,530

723,459
132,223

T
otal R

eserves
221,361

The Balance Sheet show
s the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the authority. 

The net assets of the authority (assets less liabilities) are m
atched by the reserves held by the authority. Reserves are 

reported in tw
o categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, ie those reserves that the authority m

ay 
use to provide services, subject to the need to m

aintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory lim
itations on 

their use (for exam
ple the C

apital Receipts Reserve that m
ay only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). 

The second category of reserves is those that the authority is not able to use to provide services. This category of 
reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for exam

ple the Revaluation Reserve), w
here am

ounts 
w

ould only becom
e available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold tim

ing differences show
n 

in the M
ovem

ent in Reserves Statem
ent line ‘A

djustm
ents betw

een accounting basis and funding basis under 
regulations’.

B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 SH

E
E

T
 A

T
 31ST

 M
A

R
C

H
 2011

P
age 49



A
P

P
EN

D
IX

 A

2009/10
2010/11

£000
N

ote
£000

(517,292)
N

et (Surplus) or D
eficit on the Provision of Services

72,947

1,950,828
A

djustm
ent to N

et (Surplus) or D
eficit on the Provision of the 

Services for N
on C

ash M
ovem

ent
24.1

349,962

(64,671)
A

djustm
ent for Item

s included in the net (Surplus) of D
eficit on the 

provision of services that are investing and Financing A
ctivities

24.1
(415,395)

1,368,865
N

et C
ash Flow

 from
 O

perating A
ctivities

7,514

(1,266,594)
Investing A

ctivities
24.2

(19,730)
(49,331)

Financing A
ctivities

24.3
25,334

52,940
N

et Increase or D
ecrease in C

ash and C
ash Equivalents

13,118

26,508
C

ash and C
ash Equivalents at the beginning of the R

eporting Period
24.3

79,448

79,448
C

ash and C
ash E

quivalents at the end of the R
eporting 

P
eriod

92,566

C
ash F

low
 S

tatem
ent for year ended 31 M

arch 2011

P
age 50



APPENDIX A

Note G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

 B
al

an
ce

E
ar

m
ar

ke
d

 G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

 
R

es
er

ve
s

H
o

u
si

n
g

 R
ev

en
u

e 
A

cc
o

u
n

t

E
ar

m
ar

ke
d

 H
R

A
 R

es
er

ve
s

C
ap

it
al

 R
ec

ei
p

ts
 R

es
er

ve

M
aj

o
r 

R
ep

ai
rs

 R
es

er
ve

C
ap

it
al

 G
ra

n
ts

 U
n

ap
p

lie
d

T
o

ta
l U

sa
b

le
 R

es
er

ve
s

U
n

u
sa

b
le

 R
es

er
ve

s

T
o

ta
l A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 R

es
er

ve
s

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

's
 s

h
ar

e 
o

f 
R

es
er

ve
s 

o
f 

su
b

si
d

ia
ri

es
 

an
d

 J
o

in
t 

V
en

tu
re

s

T
o

ta
l R

es
er

ve
s

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 April 2009 11,739 34,952 2,042 0 5,376 237 19,045 73,391 650,068 723,459 117,331 840,790 
Movement in reserves during 2009/10

Surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services (517,345) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (517,345) 0 (517,345) 0 (517,345) 

Other Comprehensive Income and  Expenditure 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (72,422) (72,422) 6,427 (65,995) 

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (517,345) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (517,345) (72,422) (589,767) 6,427 (583,340) 

Adjustments between Group Accounts and Authority 
accounts

53 0 0 0 0 0 0 53 0 53 (3,593) (3,540) 

Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers (517,292) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (517,292) (72,422) (589,714) 2,834 (586,880) 

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis 
under regulations 8 510,792 0 0 0 15,982 (9,492) 1,177 518,459 (519,978) (1,519) (1,519) 

Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked 
Reserves

(6,500) 0 0 0 15,982 (9,492) 1,177 1,167 (592,400) (591,233) 2,834 (588,399) 

Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves 9
6,279 (6,366) (250) 0 0 9,255 0 8,918 (8,921) (3) 0 

(3) 

Increase/Decrease in 2009/10 (221) (6,366) (250) 0 15,982 (237) 1,177 10,085 (601,321) (591,236) 2,834 (588,402) 

Balance at 31 March 2010 carried forward 11,518 28,586 1,792 0 21,358 0 20,222 83,476 48,747 132,223 120,165 252,388 

Movement in Reserves during 2010/11

Surplus or (deficit) on provision of services (79,259) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (79,259) 0 (79,259) 0 (79,259) 

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 162,085 162,085 1,756 163,841 

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
(79,259) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (79,259) 162,085 82,826 1,756 84,582 

Adjustments between Group Accounts and Authority 
accounts 6,312 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,312 0 6,312 (10,012) (3,700) 

Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers (72,947) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (72,947) 162,085 89,138 (8,256) 80,882 

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis 
under regulations 8 75,987 0 0 0 931 0 (6,451) 70,467 (70,467) 0 0 0 

Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked 
Reserves

3,040 0 0 0 931 0 (6,451) (2,480) 91,618 89,138 (8,256) 80,882 

Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves 9 (3,145) 4,571 (1,792) 0 201 0 0 (165) 165 0 0 0 

Increase/Decrease in Year (105) 4,571 (1,792) 0 1,132 0 (6,451) (2,645) 91,783 89,138 (8,256) 80,882 

Balance at 31 March 2011 carried forward 11,413 33,157 0 0 22,490 0 13,771 80,831 140,530 221,362 111,909 333,271 

Group Statement of Movement in Reserves 31 March 2010 and 31 March 2011

P
age 51



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

2009/10

N
et E

xpenditure

2010/11

G
ross 

E
xpenditure

2010/11

G
ross Incom

e

2010/11

N
et 

E
xpenditure

£000
£000

£000
£000

72,779
A

dult Social C
are

93,735
(20,005)

73,730
5,313

C
orporate &

 D
em

ocratic C
ore

5,425
(81)

5,344
60,272

C
ultural, Environm

ental, Regulatory &
 Planning Services

3
85,139

(24,107)
61,032

4,788
C

entral Services to the Public
28,014

(23,485)
4,529

112,035
C

hildrens A
nd Education Services

414,363
(220,293)

194,070
5,868

H
ousing Services

108,254
(94,700)

13,554
1,974

H
ousing Revenue A

ccount
(753)

(28)
(781)

14,433
H

ighw
ays &

 Transport Services
28,906

(11,455)
17,451

7,523
N

on D
istributable C

osts
3,534

(92,112)
(88,578)

284,985
Surplus/D

eficit on C
ontinuing O

perations
766,617

(486,266)
280,351

460,685
G

ain or Loss on D
isposal of F

ixed A
ssets

26,265
(1,437)

24,828
(692)

O
ther operating Expenditure

114
(2,029)

(1,915)
10,329

 - other Incom
e (Loss of C

ontrol of Subsidiary)
9,275

0
9,275

(6,232)
 - other Incom

e (G
ain on consolidation of joint venture)

0
0

0
20,618

Financing and Investm
ent Incom

e and Expenditure
78,021

(47,430)
30,591

0
Surplus or D

eficit of discontinued O
perations

5,830
(7,304)

(1,474)
(252,229)

Taxation and N
on-Specific G

rant Incom
e

0
(261,141)

(261,141)
517,464

Surplus or D
eficit on P

rovision of Services
886,122

(805,607)
80,515

(80)

Share of the surplus or deficit on the provision of services by 

associates
(1,411)

0
Tax expenses of subsidiaries

0
(39)

Tax expenses of associates
155

517,345
G

roup Surplus / D
eficit

79,259
(28,782)

Surplus or deficit on revaluation of fixed assets
(6,415)

0
A

ctuarial gains / losses on pension assets / liabilities
0

101,204
A

ctuarial G
ains / losses on pension assets / liabilities

(156,994)
0

M
RP

(432)

0

Share of other com
prehensive incom

e and expenditure of 

associates and joint ventures
0

72,422
O

ther C
om

prehensive Incom
e and E

xpenditure
(163,841)

589,767
T

otal C
om

prehensive Incom
e and E

xpenditure
(84,582)

G
roup C

om
prehensive Incom

e and E
xpenditure A

ccount for year ended 31 M
arch 2011

Note

P
age 52



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

R
estated 31st 
M

arch 2010
31st M

arch 2011 

£000
N

ote
£000

703,680
Property Plant and Equipm

ent
4

570,243

88,476
Investm

ent Property
79,020

1,783
Intangible A

ssets
1,583

0
A

ssets held for sale
480

30,588
Long Term

 Investm
ents

11,920

109,265
Investm

ents in A
ssociates &

 Joint Ventures
110,238

1,335
Long Term

 D
ebtors

5
731

935,127
L

ong T
erm

 A
ssets

774,215

46,288
Short Term

 Investm
ents

61,122

533
Stock

569

48,651
Short Term

 D
ebtors

5
35,175

84,396
C

ash and C
ash Equivalents

92,750

2,510
A

ssets H
eld for Sale

3,057

0
LA

TS
875

182,378
C

urrent A
ssets

193,548

(76,918)
Short Term

 Borrow
ing

(96,952)

(76,482)
Short Term

 C
reditors

6
(59,913)

0
H

olding A
ccounts to Sort

0

(2,001)
Short Term

 Provisions
(2,907)

(155,401)
C

urrent L
iabilities

(159,772)

(20,661)
Long Term

 C
reditors

7
(18,757)

(9,921)
Long Term

 Provisions
(7,879)

(160,348)
Long Term

 Borrow
ing

(193,991)

(69,405)
O

ther Long Term
 Liabilities

(34,780)

(449,381)
Long Term

 Liabilities Pensions
(219,313)

(709,716)
L

ong T
erm

 L
iabilities

(474,720)

252,388
N

et A
ssets

333,271

83,476
Total U

sable Reserves
80,831

168,912
Total U

nusable Reserves
252,440

252,388
T

otal R
eserves

333,271

G
R

O
U

P
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 SH
E

E
T

 A
T

 31ST
 M

A
R

C
H

 2011

P
age 53



A
P

P
EN

D
IX

 A

2009/10
2010/11

£000
£000

(517,464)
N

et (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services
(79,259)

1,951,511

A
djustm

ent to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-cash 

m
ovem

ents
497,249

(65,518)

A
djustm

ent for item
s included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of 

services that are investing and financing activities
(415,395)

0
Incom

e tax paid
155

1,368,529
N

et cash flow
s from

 operating activities
2,750

(1,266,451)
Investing A

ctivities
(19,730)

(48,627)
Financing A

ctivities
25,334

53,451
N

et increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents
8,354

30,945
C

ash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period
84,396

84,396
C

ash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period
92,750

G
roup C

ash Flow
 Statem

ent for the Y
ear E

nded 31 M
arch 2011

P
age 54



Letter of Representation    Appendix B 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Please ask for: Adam Broome 
 
 
Date 23 September 2011 My Ref ACCT/SW Your Ref       
 
Dear Sirs 
 
Plymouth City Council 
Financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2011 
 
This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial statements of 
Plymouth City Council and the group for the year ended 31 March 2011 for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards. 
 
We confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief that the following representations are made on the 
basis of appropriate enquiries of other officers and members with relevant knowledge and experience 
(and, where appropriate, of inspection of supporting documentation) sufficient to satisfy ourselves that 
we can properly make each of the following representations to you in respect of your audit of the above 
financial statements. 
 
Financial statements 
 
i We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance 

with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in Great Britain ("the Code") as adapted for International Financial Reporting Standards; 
in particular the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance therewith. 
 

ii We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions and these matters have been 
appropriately reflected and disclosed in the financial statements. 
 

iii We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of internal control to 
prevent and detect error and fraud. 
 

iv Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair 
value, are reasonable. 
 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 
Hartwell House 
55-61 Victoria Street 
Bristol BS1 6FT 

 
 

Finance, Assets and Efficiencies 
Department for Corporate Support 
Plymouth City Council 
Civic Centre 
Plymouth  PL1 2AA 
 
T 01752 01752 304940  
F 01752 01752  
E adam.broome@plymouth.gov.uk 
www.plymouth.gov.uk 
 

Page 55



Letter of Representation    Appendix B 
 
v We are satisfied that the material judgements used by us in the preparation of the financial 

statements are soundly based, in accordance with the Code, and adequately disclosed in the 
financial statements.  There are no further material judgements that need to be disclosed. 
 

vi We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the valuation of pension 
scheme liabilities for IAS19 disclosures are consistent with our knowledge.  We confirm that all 
settlements and curtailments have been identified and properly accounted for.  We also confirm 
that all significant retirement benefits have been identified and properly accounted for (including any 
arrangements that are statutory, contractual or implicit in the employer’s actions, that arise in the 
UK or overseas, that are funded or unfunded). 
 

vii Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in 
accordance with the requirements of the Code. 
 

viii All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the Code requires 
adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 
 

ix There are no unadjusted misstatements that were brought to our attention through the course of 
the audit, and the financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. 
 

x Except as stated in the financial statements: 
a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent; 
b. none of the assets of the Council or group have been assigned, pledged or mortgaged; 

and 
c. there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or non-recurring 

items requiring separate disclosure. 
 

xi We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or classification of 
assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 
 

xii We believe that the Council and group’s financial statements should be prepared on a going 
concern basis on the grounds that current and future sources of funding or support will be more 
than adequate for the Council and group’s needs.  We believe that no further disclosures relating 
to the Council and group's ability to continue as a going concern need to be made in the financial 
statements. 
 

Information provided 
 
xiii We have provided you with: 

a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the 
financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters; 

b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your audit; 
and 

c. unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determine it necessary 
to obtain audit evidence. 
 

xiv We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements 
may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 
 

xv We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which management is aware. 
 

xvi All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial 
statements. 
 

 

Page 56



Letter of Representation    Appendix B 
 
xvii We have disclosed to you our knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving: 

a. management; 
b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 
c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

 
xviii We have disclosed to you our knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting 

the entity's financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, 
regulators or others. 
 

xix We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance 
with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing financial statements. 
 

xx We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity's related parties and all the related party 
relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 
 

Other statements 
 
xxi We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects the Council and 

group's risk assurance and governance framework and we confirm that we are not aware of any 
significant risks that are not disclosed within the AGS. 
 

Approval 
 
The approval of this letter was minuted by the Council at its Audit Committee meeting on 
23 September 2011. 
 
 
Signed on behalf of the Council 
 
 
 
 
Adam Broome  Cllr Dr J Mahoney 
Director of Corporate Support  Chair of Audit Committee 
Date    23 September 2011  Date 23 September 2011 

 

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



� � �

��
��

��
�	
�

���
�

��
�

���

�
��

��
���
�	


�
���

�
��




��
��

��
��

��
�
���

��

�

��
��

��
��
��
��

��
��

��
� � �
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
	


�
�
�

� � ��
Agenda Item 10Page 59



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
 C

o
u

n
ci

l -
A

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 (
IS

A
 2

60
)

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

�

�

��
��



�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
��

�
���
��
��
�
�
��
��

��

��
�
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
�

��

��
�
��
��
���
���

��
��
�

��
�

 
�

�
	�
���
!�
��
��
"�
��
#�
��
��
��
��
��
��$
� 
��
%&
�

�%
�

'
�

 
��
���
��
(�
��
�
��
��
�

�)
�



�

 

�
��
��
!�
��
�

��
�

� �

Page 60



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
 C

o
u

n
ci

l -
A

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 (
IS

A
 2

60
)

1

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

��
�
��

��
���

��

�

�
�
��
 �

�


��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��

� !�
�
�

��
	


��
��
�

�"
��
��
	�

�	
��
��

�#

���

�
�
�



�

��
"�

��
��
��
$
��
��
�!

�

��

�

��
%
&
�'
'(

��
��

�
��
��
�
��

���
�

�

�
���
��
�

#�(

� 
�

�

��
��

�� 
��


�
��

���
���

��
�

�

��
���
)��
!�

��
	�

�	




��

#
���

�
�
��
	


��
��


��

��
��
��
��
��
���

��
*�

 �
�



��

��

��

��
��
#�

�

���
��
�

�

��
��+

�#

��
��

��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

�#


��
��
��
 �
��
��
��

��
��
,�

�-
��
��

��
��

�)
�

!�
�
�

��
	


��
��

��
�

���

��
�
��

��
�

� 
���

.�
���

�
��

�

�

#��

��
��
��

��

��

���
��
��

��
��

�

��
��

���
��

�
��

��
��
��

��
��

���

�
��
	


���
��
��

�

��

�

��

#
���

��
��

��
���

�
+��




��
��

��
��

��
�
���

��

�

��
��

��
�+/
�

��

��

��
��
��
�

���

��
�
��

���
�

�

�
���
��
)��
!�

��
��
.�

���
�
��

�

�

#��

��
��
��

/��
��

��

�

��
��
��

��
�

��

�
��

��
��

���
��

/��
��
�
�

��

��
���

��

�

��
��

��
���
��
��

		
��

��
��
�
)�

!�
��
�

�

��
���
�
�

��

	


�

�"

��
�#


���
��

�	
��
	�

��
��


��

#

�#�
��

��
���

�
�
��
��

��
�

��

��
��

���
�


��
���

�

#��
��

��
��
�	




���

�

��

��

��,
��
-
��
��

��
��

�/
��
��

���

��

��

�

��
��

��
��

	�
��

���
��
�#


���
��

� 
��
��

��
��

��
��

��
)��
0

��
��
��
��

	


�

�"

��
�#


���
��

��
��
*�
��

��
��
��

��
���

��
���

	

���

��
��

��
��
��
/��
��


�
��


	�
��

�

/��
��

��

�

��
��1

�#

��
��

��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

�	
��

�
��
��
���

��
��
��

�#�
���
��
��

�

#��

��
�

#��
��

��
��
�	




���

�

)�

%
��

��
���

��
�
��

���
�

�

�
�



�

�1

��


�
��

#
��

��
���
(�

��
���

��
�
��
��
��
��




���
.�

���
��
�

���

��
��
��

#

��

��
��

�

��
�


�

��

�

��
��

��
��
���

��
�

�

��
���
��


�	
��
���

�	
���

��
	�


	
��
��
��
��

��
�
��

�

��


�

�
��

��
��
�


�

�
 /
��
##
��
��
��

 �
��

��
�#
#�
��
��
��

�


��

��
��


��

�
�

#��

�


�

��
�

)�

�


�
��
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�

� �
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�

� 0
��
�
��
��
	�

�

��

��
��
�
���

��
��
#��

#��
��

��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

�

	�
� 

��
��
�

�

*�
��

�	
�	

��

�


�
�,
��
2�
��

��
��

�/
���

��

�
��
��

�

 �
��

��
���

�)
��!

��
��


�
*�
��

�	
�	

��

��

��
��

#
��
��
��

�.
��

��
�


�
��

��
��

��
��

���
��
#��

��
��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
"�

��
��

�

	�
��
��
��
��
��

�

��
��

��
�
���

���
��

�

�

��

#

�(
��
��
��
��

�

�'

�

��
��

��
�


���
 �
�
��

�

��
��
��
��
���

��
%
��
��
��
&
��
��


�
��
��

�3
��

���
��

�
�

�

��
/�"

�

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
�

��

��4
��
��

��
��
�5

�	

�

���
��
��
��

��
��


��
�4

5
��
)�

6�

�
��

�

�

��
��


�
*�
�

��
��
�/
���

��
��
��
��
��

�

��
���

��
"�

��

#��

�7
�


��
��

�

���

.�
���

��
�

���

��
#��

��
��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

/��
��

��




��

��
��
#��

��
��"

��
��

8�

•
��
��
��

��
�

��

#
�9
��

)�
��

���
�

��
��
���

��
��

��
��

#

���
��
�

�

��
��+

�


��




���



��

��


��
���


�
���


#
���

��
�	

	�

�

��
�

#��

��
���
��
��


#
��
��


��
��
��

�
 �

�
��
�


�"
�#

�

��
��
�
	�

���
��

��
/��
�

��
���

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

�
���

���
��
��

#��
���

�

���
��
	�


�
�
�

�

�

#�


��
��
��

��

��
���

��
��
�

��
��
���

��
��
��

��
��
�

��
��

�
��
�/
��
���


�
��

���
��
��
�
�

�

���

	�
��
�

��
��
��
$
��

��
��
�4
��

��
"�

��
��

��
•

��
��
��
��
�


�#

��
��
�

��

#
�9
:)
��
�
���
�

��

#
��



��

��

��

�
��
��
� 
���

��
��

��
��

��


�
�
��

�� 
�

�


�
�

���

���
��
��
�#
���

��

�

��

��


�
��
#�
�

��
��

��
��
��
��

��
��

��
��

/�
	�
��

�/�
#�
��

���
��
��
��

�
#��

���
�

��
��

�
•

��
���

��
��

�
���

���
��
��

��
��

#
���

��
�

�

��
��+

�


��
��
�

#��




��

��

��
��
��
;
��


�
�(
��


�

��

4�
��

�

#�9

�)
<�
�
���
�

�/
���


�
���
��

���
��
��
��
��
��

�
���

��

��
���


�
	�

��
��


��
��
��
�


�
�/
���

�
�
��




��
�

��

�
��

	�
��
�

��
��
��
$
��

��
��
�4
��

��
"�

��
��

�)
��

�

Page 61



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
 C

o
u

n
ci

l -
A

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 (
IS

A
 2

60
)

2

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

!�
��
*�

 �
��
�


�
�
��

��
��


�

��
��


��
��
#�

�

�

��
��
��

���

#
���

��
�

�

��
��+

�#

��
��

��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

�

��
�8
�

•
��
��
�

�

��
��+

��




��
���

��

�
��
��
��
�


��

�"
��
�	

��
��
��
�

�
�

		

�

���
��

��
��

�

��

��


�





��
�

�	





�"
��
/��

��
�
�


�
��
�"
��
	�

��

��
��
�� 

���
�


��
���

��
�

���

��
��

��
��
���
��

��
�=�

•
9>

)?
��

���
�

��

#

��
�
�


�
��
��


�
��

���
��
��
��

"�

�

�"
��
��

��

��

��

�
��
"�

#

��
��
��

��

�


�
��
�"
��

�
���

��
��

#
#/�
��
��
�


�
�
��

��
��


��
�
��
��




��
��

��
��
��
��

<3
��

)��
0

��
��
�


��
�
�

���
��
���

��
�

�

��
���

�


�
��
��

�

���
��

��

�	
��

�

��
�



�
��
#�
��
��
��
�
��
�


�

#��

��

�

��
��
��
��


�
��

�

�
��
�
�

���
�
�

��
�
��
�


��
�


�

�
��
��
� 
��
��
"�
�=
��
��

�
•

��
��
�

�

��
���

�


�
��
���

3�



�


��

�

��
��

�

��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��#


�
���

��
!�

�
��
�6

���
��

��
��

�
!


�	

�
��
�4
��
� 
�2


��
���


�
�
���
��
���

��
��

�3
��

)�
�

��
"7
��
���


�
��
��
��
.�

���
��
��

��
���

�7
�


��
��

�

�"
��
��

��
��

�/
��

��
��

���
�	
��
��
	�


�
��
��
��
��

�
��

.�
��
�#�
��

�

	�
��

�

�

��
��
��
�

�

��
��+

�#

��
��

��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

/�#

�
�

�
��
��
�	

	�

�

��
�"
 �
��
��

�
��

���
�

�

�
���
��
�

��
�,

��
�	

��
�
"�

���
��

�)
�

4�
��
��

���
��
��
�
�


#
���

��

�

��

�

��

#

���
��
#��

��
��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

��
��

���
��
��
��
��

��
��
�
�

��
�

��
�)
�

�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�

� ��
�	
�


��
��
��

���
��

	

��
�

��

�

���
��
#��

��
��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

��

��
��
��
��
.�

���
��
�

���

��
��
��

�

��

��

�


��

�

���
��
��

�.
��

� 
�

#��

��
��


�
��

��+

��
��
��

��
�
��

�

�#


���
�


��
��
��
��

�


�
 /
�

�#
#��

��
��

 �
��

��
�#
#�
��
��
��

�


��

��
��


��

�
�

#��

�


�

��
�

���
��

��
���

��
#


���

�

� 
��

�

��
�


�

��
)�

0
��
��
��
	�
��

�
��
�

���

	

��
���

��
��

��
	�


	




��
�

��
��
��
��

��
�.

��
��#
��
��
��

��
��
#


���

�

� 
�

�

��

��

�


��

�

���
��
�

�

��
��+

��

��
��

��
�
��

�

��


��
�


��
��
��

�


�
 /
��
##
��
��
��

 �
��

��
�#
#�
��
��
��

�


��

��
��


��

�
�

#��

�


�

��
�

)�

4�
��
��

���
��
��
�
�


#
���

��

�

��

�

��

#

��

��
��
��
��

�#

���


�
� 
���

��
��

��
��
��
��
��

���
�
�

��
�

��
,)
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��

�
��
�

� -
��
��
�

��
��


��
��
#�

�

���
��
#��

��
��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

��
��

���
��

��
�"
��
��
��

�
�



�
��
�
���

���
��

;
���

��

�

�#

���


�
	


��
��
��
�	

	

��
)��
0

��
��

��
��

��
��
��

�

��
���

��
"�

��

#�

��
�


�
�
��

��
��


�

/��

��
��

��
��
�
�

��

��
���

���
��
��
��


��
	�
��

��
���

		
��

��
��
�
)��
!�

�

��
��

��
�

"�
��

��
�
�

�


�
��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

���
��
;
���

��

�

�#

���


�
	


��
��
��
�	

	

���

��
��
��

�


��
�

��

#��
��

��
���

��
)�

�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

� !�
�
�

��
	


��
��
�

�"
��
��
	�

�	
��
��

�


��
� 
�#


���

�
�"
 �
��
��
�

�

��
���
�

��
�
�

��
��
��

�

��
��

	


�

�"

���
���


��
��

��
���

�
��
��

/��
��

�
�

�

��
��

�
�"
��
�


��
�#


���
� 

�

��
��
�	
��
	



�
)��
0

��
�


�

�
��
�


���

	


�

�"

���
� 
��


��
� 

�

��
��
�	
��




�)
��!

��

��

�	

�

��

�


��
��
"�

���
��

���
�

�

�7
��

��
�

��
�
���

���
��
��
��
��

��
��


#�5
�

	


�

�"
���
���


��
��

���
��
�

�

��
��+

�'

��
��
��


#�
5
�	

��

�
��
��
�

�)
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
 
�
�
�
�
��
�

� 0
��
�

�

��
���
*�

���
�


��
�
�

���
��

��

��
#��

��
���
�

*�
��
��
���

��
�

�

��
��+

�


##
��
��

��

��
��
#�
��
��
��
�

	�
�	

��
��
��
��
�

��
��
�


��
�

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
�

��

��4
��
��

��
��
�5

�	

�

���
��
��
��

��
��

�#


�
���

��
#��


�
���
�
��
��
�
�

 �
��
��

���
��
���

��
��

��
��
��

��
��
#��

��
��
��
�"
��
*�

�

��

��
#�
��
��
" 

���
��
�

�

��
��)
�

0
��
�

�

��
���
*�

��

���

�

��
�

��
��
		

��
��
��
�

��
#

���

��
��



�
�

��
��
��
��

��

3

	

��
��
�

��

	�

�

��
��

��

��

��

��
��
��

�

���
��

���
" 

���
��
�

�

��
��+


�
�
�#
#)�

*
��
��
��
	�
��
��
��
+
�
�,
,
��

��
!�
��
-�
���
&�
��Page 62



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
 C

o
u

n
ci

l -
A

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 (
IS

A
 2

60
)

3

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

��
&
� 
��
��

���
�



��



!
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
 
��
��
 
�
�

0
��
��
	


��
�

��
�#�
��

��
�

���

���
��

��
���

�

��
�	
��
��

��
��
		

�

��
��
�

���

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
�

�

�

�
�
��

��
��
��

��

� 

�

���
�

��
��
	�

��
��
�

���

��
4�
��

��
��
���

��
���
(�
��

��
��
��

�2�
��

��
��

�)
�

@
��
���


	

�


�
��


���
��
�
��
��
�

���

��
��#

��
��
��
���

��
	�
��

��
��

�
�
��

��
��
��
��

��
���

��
"�

�

�
)

� �

•
0

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
���

��
�

�

��
��+

��

��

�

��
��
��
	


���
��

��

��
��

��
��
��
��"

��
��

��

�

��
��
��
��


�
��
�

�


���
	�

��
��

�"
 �
��
��
��
��


��
�

��
�

��
�


��
��
��
��
���

��
��
�


��
�

�

��
#��

��
���

��
��
.�

���
�
��

�

�

#��

45
�)

Is
su

e 
   

   
   

   
  A

u
d

it
 a

re
as

 a
ff

ec
te

d
   

   
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

 
 

 
A

ss
u

ra
n

ce
s 

g
ai

n
ed

A
ll 

ar
ea

s 
o

f 
th

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

A�
!�

��
��

��
3�
��
#��

��
��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

��

�

	�
 �
�
���

�
��
��
��
.�

���
�
��

�

�

#��

45
�)
�

•
@
��
��
��

���
��


��
��

��
�#�
��

��
�
�

��
���

��
"�

��

#��

�4
5
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

��
�

���

.�
���

��
�

���

��
��
�


��
�

)�

A�
!�

��
��

	�
��
�

#��

��
���

��

��

�

��
�

��4

5
��
��


�"
��
��

�	
	�


	
���

��
� 
��
�
�

�


�
��
��

��
��
��
��

�<
3�
��

��
�


��
�

���


�
��
��

��
��

�

��
��

� 
)�

T
h

e 
20

10
-1

1 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

 
m

ay
 n

o
t 

b
e 

p
re

p
ar

ed
 in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 
w

it
h

 IF
R

S

Page 63



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
 C

o
u

n
ci

l -
A

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 (
IS

A
 2

60
)

4

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �Is
su

e 
   

   
   

   
  A

u
d

it
 a

re
as

 a
ff

ec
te

d
   

   
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
   

   
   

   
   

  
A

ss
u

ra
n

ce
s 

g
ai

n
ed

•
0

��
��

��
��

�

���
��

��
�

��

��
���

��
��
��
� 
��

���
���

��
�

�

��
��+

�#

��
��

��
�
�

�#
#��


�
��

	


�
��
�

���

��
��
��
��.

��
���


��
��

��

�	
�


��
��

���
�
��
 �
��
��
��

�

#��

��
�	
�


	


�
��

��
�


��
���

��

#

��
�
��
��
��

��


�

�

)

A
ll 

ar
ea

s 
o

f 
th

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

T
h

er
e 

m
ay

 b
e 

in
su

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
fi

n
an

ce
 

re
so

u
rc

e 
to

 
d

el
iv

er
 

st
at

u
to

ry
 

re
q

u
ir

em
en

ts
 

b
y 

30
 J

u
n

e 
20

11

•
!�

��
#��

��
��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

��

��
��
	�

�	
��
��

��
��

�
	�

"�
�
�

��
�

��
��
��
�

�

��
��+

��

�"

��

��
" 

���
��


�
��
��

�

 �
��

��
���

��

#
�,
��
2�
��

��
��

�)

•
0

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��
�

��
��
	


��
�	
��
	�

��
��
" 

���
��
�

�

��
��+

��

��
��

�

�

�

��

�

#��
�
���

��
���

��
��

��
��
�

��
"�


�

��

�
��
#

���

��
��
�


�
���

��



��


���
�

��
�


��
��

��
��

���
���

��
��
.�

���
�
��

�

�

#��

��
��


�
��
��

��
�4

5
�)

•
0

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��
�
�

�
	�
��

#

���
��
��

��
��
�

�


��
��

��
��
*�

��
�

��
�


��
��
��
��
�

��
�

��
�


�
	�
 �
�
���

���
��
��
.�

���
�
��

�

�

#��

45
�/
�	
��
���

��
��
� 
���

���
��
��


��
�

���

��
��

��
��
�

��

#

�
�
�



�

)

P
ro

p
er

ty
, 

p
la

n
t 

an
d

 
eq

u
ip

m
en

t

•
!�

��
��

��
��
�

��
"�


�

��

�

	�
��

��
��
��

�


�

��
��
�

�
���

���
��
��
.�

���
�
��

�

�

#��

��
��


�
��
��

��
�4

5
�)

•
@
��
��
��

���
��

�
��
��
��


��

�

#��
�
��

�	
�


	�
��
 /
�

	�
��

���
��

��
.�

�	
�
��

��"
��
��

��

��

��
��

�
�

�
��
��
��
�� 

��
�



��
��
�)

•
!�

��
��
�


�#

��
��
�

��

#

��
�
�

��
���

��
"�

��

#��




��

�

��
��


��

�
"�

���
��

��

��
��


��
�


��
��
��
��
���

�

��
��
��

�	
	�


	
���

��
)

R
ev

al
u

at
io

n
 o

f 
fi

xe
d

 a
ss

et
s 

ar
e 

n
o

t 
co

rr
ec

tl
y 

ac
co

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r

•
0

��
��

��
�*
�	

���
��

��

�

��
��+

�#

��
��

��
��
�	
��
#


��
��

��
��
��

��
��

�

���
�


�

�

��
��
��

���
�


��
�


��
���

��
 �
��
���

�

��

��
��

�
�



�

�


��
���

�*
� 
�

##
��
��

�


#��
��

�
�

�

��
���
��

��
�


�

��
��
��
�

��

#
���

��
#��

��
��
��
�	
��
#

��

��
��
���

	

��


�	
��

�
��
��

�
�

��

��
"�

�

)

•
0

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
���

��
"�

��
��
�
�

���
��

�	
�


��



��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��

#�


��
��
�

�

��
��
��
��
��
 �
	�
��


��
��


�
��

�

��
�B

4-
��


�
*)

•
!�

��




��
��
#��

��
��
��
��
��

�"
��

��
��
� 
��

�

��

�
�

��
��
��

��
��

�

��
��

"�
��

���
��
�


��
��
���

�
��

���
��
��
�

��
#��

���

#

�

��
 �
9�

�:
/�
��

�#

���

��
� 
��
�)

•
@
��
�B

4-
��


�
*�
��


��

�
���

��
��#

��
��
��

 �

��

��
#��

��
���

��
*�

�


�

��

��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

�

��


�

�
��

��
�#�
��

��
��
���
�

���
��

��
)

A
ll 

ar
ea

s 
o

f 
th

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

P
re

ss
u

re
 o

ve
r 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
m

ay
 a

ff
ec

t 
th

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l's
 

ab
ili

ty
 t

o
 

d
el

iv
er

 it
s 

b
u

d
g

et

Page 64



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
 C

o
u

n
ci

l -
A

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 (
IS

A
 2

60
)

5

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

�
��
�

�
��
��
��
�
��


�
��
�

� 0
��
��
��
��
��

�

��

��
��
��

���
��
��
��

�

��
��

��
�
���

���
��
	�


	




��
���
�
��
�"

��
��
��

��
��
��
��
�

�

�

�
�
��

��
��
��

��

� 

�

���
�2�

��
��
 �
��

��
���

�

��
��

��
���
(�
��

)��
@
��
��
��

���
�
�


�
"


��
��
��
�� 

�
�


�
	�
��
��
��
��

�

��
��

��
��
��
#��

��
�
�
��

�

��
�	
�


��
��

��

��

��
��
��
#


��

�
��
��
��
��

8�

•
��
��
�	
���

��
���

��
��

�

#��
�#


�
�
��
�

��
#

��



�
��

�

�

��
��

��
��
.�

��
��

��

��
��
��
��


��
�

�

��
��
 �
��
��
���

��
��

�

#��
��


�
��
��

��
��

	�
��

���
��
�

•
�


�
	�
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��


#��
��

��

�

��
��1

�$

�

�	

��
��

�

��

�#


�
�

�
��
��
��
��
�	
��


#��
��

�
!�

�
��
�6

���
��

��
��

�!

�

	

��
��4

��
� 
�2


��
���


�
�
���
��
��
��

���
��
	


���
#�

�

���
��
�
��

���
�

�

�
�



�

��

•
��
��
�	
���

��
���

��
��

�

#��

��
�#�
��

���
��

�


��

#
���

��
#��

��
��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

�

•

"

��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
�

�

��
��1

��

��
��
��


#��
�	

��

�
��
��
�

��

•
��
��
��

��
��
	



�
�"
��
��

��
�
�

��
���

��
��

/�

�	
��


���
��

��

��
��

�

#��

��
��
��

�

��

)�

�
0

��
��

���
�	
��
��
	�


�
��
��
��
��

��
�.

��
��#
��
��

	

��
�

��

�

���
��
�


��
��
�+

�#�
��

��
��
��


��
��
�
��

�

/�

#

��


�
��
��
�	

	�

�

��
�"
 �
��
��
�
��

���
�

�

�
���
��
�

��
�,

��
�	

��
�
"�

���
��

�)
�

�
�
�

��
���

��
"�

��

#��



��


��
�



�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��

�
�

#��

��
��
��

��/
��

��
��

�
�

�

��
�"
��

�

�


��
��
��

�"
 �
��
��
�
��

���
�

�

�
���
��
)��
!�

�

��
��
��

�
��


��
���

���
��
#


��

�
��
��
	�

��
��
�	

�

)�

0
��

��
��
		

�

	�

��
��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��
��
�


�
�
��

��
��


�

�#


���
�
	�


�
��

��
���

��

�
��
��
�
�

��

�

���
��
��
��
��

��
��

��
��
�

��
	�
��

��
���

		
��

��
��
�
)�

!
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
 
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��


�
��
�

� 4

��


�
��
��
��
��
�#�
��
��


��
" 

���
��
�

�

��
��+

�;

���
��

�

�#

���


�
	


��
��
��
�	

	

��
��

��
�
��
��

	�
�

��

��
��
�
���

��
��
#��

#��
��

��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

�#


���
��

���

�

�,
��
2�
��

��
��

�)
��0

��
��
��
	�
��

�
��

�

���

	

��
���

��
���

��
#��

��
��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

��

��
��
��
�


�
	�

��
��

�"
 �
��

�.
��

��
��


�
*�
��

�	
�	

��

/�

��
��
��
��
�#�
��

��
��

�
�#
#��

��
���
�
���

�

��
��
��

���
.�

��
��

��

##
��
��
��
� 
��
��

�	
�


��
��

��
���

��
 �

��

	


�

�

��


�
��
.�

�

�

�#


���
��

���

�

��
���

#

��

��
�

�)
�

"�
#
�
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
�"
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�

� (�
 �


�
��
��

�� 
��


�
��

���
�
�


�
��

#

��
���

��
��
��

�
"�

��

#�	

�"
���

�"

�

��

�


��
*�
��

���
�


��
� 
�

#�

#�
��


��
��

�

��
��
��
���

��
��

��
��
"�

�*

�	

��

���


�
��
��
�


���
	


��

#

���
��
��

�+

�"

��
*�
��

���
��


�
� 
���

�
��

�C
)��
!�

��
�
��

��
��
��

���

�
���

��
�

#�(

�"
���

�4
��
��

��
��
��

��
��

�

��
��

� 
���

�(
4�

���
��

��

	�
��


��
��
�� 

��


�

��
��
��
��

��
��

�

���
��
��

��
��
�

��

#

���
�

��
��
��


�
�
��

�

�"
�

��

�

��

��
�
��
�
�

��
�

�

+��
�	


�
�

/��
��

��




���
��
��

��

#��

��
��

��
�

��



�
��

���
�-

� 
��
��

�)
�

!�
�
�

��
��
��

��
���

��
��
��

��

��
���
��

���
	�

���
��

���
��

��
��

��

���

��
�

�

��
��+

��


�
	�

��
��


��
��

��
�


�
��
��

��
��

	�
��

���
��
��
��

�

��
���

��
��

<3
��

�
�

�

��
�"
��
��
��

��
��
" 

�9
>)
��
�
���
�

�/
�

��
#��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

�
�#


��
��

�
���

�

��

� 
)��
!�

��
�

�

��
���
��


��
�



�
��
�


���

�
��
#��

��
���

�
�
��

��
��

���
��
��
��

��
��
��
���

��
��

��
3�
��
#��

��
��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

�"
��
��


�
���

��
��
�


��
��
"�
��

��

�

��
���

�

�
�
��

��
��
" 

��
�(

4�
���

�
��
�


�
�
"7
��
���

�
��
��
���

��
���

��
��
��
���

��
��
��
��

��
��

�

��
�

)��
�

!�
�
�

��

�

��
��


��

�
��

��
��
��
���

�
��
��
#��

��
��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��
��
��
	�
���

��
��
		

�

��
��

��

	

��
��
" 

���
��
�

�

��
��)
��0

��
�


�

��
��
���

��
���

��
��

	�
��
�

#��

��

��

��
�
�

�

��
�

�"
��
��

�	
	�


	
���

��
� 
�
�

��

��
��
��

��
�
�

�


�
��
��
���

��
#��

��
��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

)�

�
�
$

�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

� ;
��
��
��
��
��
�


��

�
�

#�


��
��
��

���

#

���
��
#��

��
��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

/��

��
��

��
���

��
��#

��
��
��
��

#

��


�
��
��
�
�



��
��
�
��

�

���

��
��
��

��
"�

��
�
�

"

�.

��
��
� 
��
�7
�


��
�)
�

�
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

� ;
��
��
��
��

��
3�
��
��


�

#
���

��
�

�

��
��+

�


��




�
�
"�

��
�
��
�
��
��

�
��

��

��
�
�

��
��
#�
���

��
�


�
�



�

��

��
��
��

��
�	

	�

�

��
��


���
��


#
��
��


��
��
��

�
 �

�
��
�


�

��
��
�
	�

���
��

��
��
��

�

��

�

��

��
�
��

�

���

��
�)
�

�
���

��
�	

�
��
�

#�"

��

�

��
��
��

��
��
��

�
 �
��
��
"�

���
��
�

��
��

��
.�

�	
�
��

���
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
��


�
�



�
��
��
���

��

#
��
��
��
�

���

��

�
�



�
�#


���
���
�


�

��
��
��
�

�/
��
��

���
��
�

�

��
���
��
�


��
�
�


�
��
�




�

��
��

	




��
)��
�

��

��
�#


��
��
��
		

�

��

��#

�

���
��


#
��
�

#��

��
��

#

���
�

��
��
��

��

��




�
�

�
�

�"
�#

�

��
��
�
	�

���
��

��
���

��
��
��
��

��
��



��

��

���
��
��

��
�


�

�3
�


��
��
��

��
��
�

���

��
�

�

��
���

��
��
��
��
�

�

��
���
�
���
���

��
��
��
�


�
�
��
�	
�


��
��


)�
�!

��
��
��
��

�

#��

��
�
�

�


�

��

��
�


��

�"
��

��
	�

���
��
��
��
��

�3
��

/��

��

���

�

���
��
��
��

��
��

#

���
��
�


�
�

���

���
��
��
�

���

��

�
�



�

��

�

�


�
��

�
��
��

�"
 �
9�

�)
��
�
���
�

��
��

��
��

���
	�

���
��

���
�

�"
��
��
��
�


��
�
�

��
��

��
���

��
��
��
�


+�
��

��
�
��

��
��


��
��

��
��
�

���

���
��
�


�
	�

��
��


��
��
��
�


�
��
��

��
��

	�
��

���
��
��
��

�

��
�

#�

9:
�)
��
�
���
�

��
�
���

���
��
"�

��
��

��

#

�9
,)
��
�
���
�

��
��
��

��
��

���
��
��
��

��
��
�

��
��

�
��
�)�

Page 65



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
 C

o
u

n
ci

l -
A

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 (
IS

A
 2

60
)

6

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

%
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�

� !�
��
�

�

��
��
.�

���

��

��
��+
�

�

�
��

�� 
��



��

+�
��
��
��

��
��
���




�/�
��

��
��
��
�


��

�"

7�
��
��


�
��

	�
��
��
��


�)
��!

��

�
��



��

��

��
��
�#
��
��

��

��

�


�
�D
��
��
���

��
��

��

�

�� 
���

��
��


��

�
�


��
���

�
	�

�	
��
��
� 
��
��

���
��
��
��

��
�


��
��
��
�
��
�"

��
��

�
#�
���
�#�

D)�

!�
��
�

�

��
��+

�"

��
��

��
�
�

��
���
��

��
��


��

�

�
��

�� 
��



��

��

���
��
��
��
�"




*�
��

��
��

#

�
9�

�)
��
�
���
�

�/
��

���
��
��
�





��




��

#�9

��
),
��

���
�

��
��

��
��
��

�
��
��
��

��
�	

��
��
��
�

��

#

�
9,

)?
��

���
�

�)
��!

��

�
��



��

��

��
��
��

	�
��
��
��
��
" 

�9
�)
��
�
���
�

��
��
��
��

�3
��

/��
��
��

��

��

�
�

�

�


�
�
��

���
���

���
��
��
.�

���
�
��

���

�
�


��
��

�

�
��

�� 
��



��

��

���




���
���

��

�

��
	�

��
��
��


�)
�

0
��
��
.�

�

��
��
��
��
���

��
�

�

��
���
��
��
��

��
�
�

�
	�
��

#

���
��
�


�
�

���

��
��

��
��

���
��
���

�
�
��
��
�


� 
/��

���
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��

�

#��

"

��

�9
�>

�/
��

�/
��
��

��
��
��
�"




*�
��

��
��

#
�

9:
),
��

���
�

�)
��!

��

�
��



��

��

��
��
"�

��
��
��

	�
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
�


���
��
���
��

��
���

��
��
�

#��

�
�


�
�
��

�� 
��



��
)��
!�

��
�

�

��
���
�


��
��
��

��
��
��
�9
:)
��
�
���
�

��
��

��"




*�
��

��
��

#

���
��

�


�
�

���

��
��

��
�
�


�
��
�"
��
��
��
�


�#

��
�/
�9
>)
,�
�
���
�

��

�


�
��
�"
��
��
#�
�

���

��
��
��
�


�
�

��
��

�
9�

)?
��

���
�

��

�


�
��
�"
��
��

��
��
�

/�	

��
��
�#�

��
���

��
��
��

�#�
���
��


)�
�0

��
��

��
��
��
��
��
�
���

���
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��

�

��
���
��


��
��

�)
��!

��

�
��
��



�

�

#��




��

��

��
��

�

��
��
� 
��
��
��
��
��




��
��

��
��
��
��

	�
��
��
��
�/
�



���
��
��
��
�


�#

��
��
�

��
��


��
��

��

�
��

	�
��
�

��
��
��
�

�

��
��+


�
�


�
	�

��
��


��
��
��
�


�
��
��

��
��

	�
��

���
��
��
��

�

��
)��

@
��
��
��

���
��


��
��

��
�#�
��

���
��
���

��
��

��
��

#

��

�

�
��

�� 
��



��

��

�

�"
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
" 

�
9�

�)
,�
�
���
�

��
��

���
��
��

��
3�
�)
��@

#��
��

��


�
��
/�9

�)
>�
�
���
�

��
��
��
��

��


�
�


�
�

���

��
���

��
�

�

��
���
��

��
�


��	
��
��

�


� 
��
��

�

��
��

�#

�)�
�!

��

�
��



��

��

��
��
"�

��
���

��
��#

��
��
�

�	
��
��


#
���

��
�

�

��
��

�	
��
	�

��
��


�

�#


��

�	

��
��
��
 �
��
�


��
���

��
#

��+
E
��
���

��
��



��

+/
��

�

��
.�

���
��
��

��
���

45
�)
��!

��

��

��



�#�
��
��


��
�
�

��
.�

���
��
�

�"
��
��

	�
��

��
��
��
��
��
��

�3
��

)��
4


���
��

�3
��

/��
��

��

�

��
���
��


��
�
��

��
��
��
��
#��

��
��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

��


���
��

��#
 �
��
�

��
�


�
�

�

�

��
��

���

�


��
��
��

���
��

��
��
��
��

��
��
�

�)
�

!�
��
��
�
��
��
��

�9
?)
<�
�
���
�

��

�


�
��
�

��
���

��
��
��
�

��

#
��

�

�
��

�� 
��



��

��

��
��
��
��

�#
��

��
�


��
�

��
�

�"
��
��
��
��
��

��
��


���
#��

��
���

��
��

��
��

���
���


�
��
��

��
��

��
��
�

��
��
��

��#
��
��
" 

�
��
��
�

�

��
���
��

���
��
��
��
 �
��
)��
!�

��
�

�

��
�


�

��

�
�	
��
�
���
��
�

��
�


�
�

��


�"
��
��
��

��
��

)��
!�

��
��
�


��
�

��
��

��
"�

��
��
�
��

��
��
�

���

��
�

��
��
�
�

��
��

��
��
�

��
��

��
��
��
	�


	
��
� 
/�	

��
��
�

��
��
�.

��
	�

��
���

��
���


�
��
�

��
�
�

�


�

��

��

��
��
��
��
�


��
�

��
�7
�


��
��
��
�


��
��
��
 )
��

!�
��
�

�

��
���

�


�
��
��
�



��

�

���
��

��

���

��
��

��
���

#

���
��

�
��

���



��

��

��
��
��
� 
��
��



�#�
��

�
�

��

�

�
��

�� 
��



��

��


�
�


�#
���

���
��
���

� 
��
��
��
��



�#�
��

��

�

��
��
� 
)��
!�

��
�

�

��
���

�


�
��
�

��

�

��
���

��
���

�
�
��
��
��

��

�


��
��

��

��
��
��



�#�
��
��


��
��

��
"�


�

�

#��

��
��

��

��
#


���
��
��

�


�
���

���
��
���

�
�
��
�


)�

���
�
�


�
��
�"
��
�


�
	�
��
��

�	
��


���

�
��
��
	�

�	
��
��
�

��

#

���
��
��

��
3�
��

#��
��

��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

)�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�#
�
�

�
��
�
�
�

� ��
���
��

��
���

�
�
��

��
��

�	
��
��
��
��
��
�





��


��
���


�
��
��

��
��"


�
��

��

��
��


�
��

��+

��

��
��

� 
�

�

���

��
��

���
��
��

��
��

#

��



��

��

��,
��
-

��
��

��
��

��
#�

�

��
�#


��
��

�
��
���

C�
4�

"�
��

� 
��
��

�)
��

!�
�
�

�
�

��

�
��
�

��
��
��

��
��
���

��
��

���
�#
��
���

�

���
��
	�

�

�

��

�
��

�
�)�

4

��


�
��
��
��
��
�
��

���
�

�

�
�



�

�+

��

��
���

#

���
��
;
��


�
�(
��


�

��
4�

��
���

��
��

��
��

#

���
��


�
��

�
��
�


�
�

��

�

�#


��
��
�

�"
��
��

��
�

��
��
�)
��!

��

��


��
��

�

�

�

��


�

��
��

��
��
��

��#
��
��

��
��

� 
��
�/�
�#
��
���

��
� 
��
���

��
/��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��



��
��
��
��

��
��,

��
-

��
��

��

�*
�


�
�)
���

��
��

��
3�
��
(�
 �


�
��
��

�� 
��


�
��

��+

�


��
��
�

#��

��

��

��
��

�
��
��

��
���

�9

�)
<�
�
���
�

�/
�

��
��

��
��

���
��
��

#��
���

�


�
��

�

���
��
"�

��
��

��

�

��
���

��
���

��
��

��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���

��
��
#

��

��
��
 �
��
)��
�

��

��
�
�

F�
�

#��

��

��

��
��

�
��
��

��
���

�


��
��
#��

��
��#


�
���

��
��

��
��

�� 
��
���

��
�

�

�

��
���
��


��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

��
���


�
��


�#�
��

��
��
��

��
��
�
��

�

)�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��


&
��
�
�
��
��


��
�
�
�
�

� !�
��
�

�

��
���
��

��
��
��
��
�

��
��
��

��
��
��


��
��

��
	�
��

��
��

��
��
��
�
��

��#

�

��
��
��

��

	

�
��

���
��

�

��
��

� 
�;

���
��
��
��
��

�3
��

)��
!�

��
#�
��

��
��
��

��
�


��"
��
��
��
��
��
��

�#�

�

���
��
��

��
�

	�

��
��
���

��
 �
��
��
��

�


���

��
"�

��
��

��
��

��
�
�

���

��
��

��
��

��

��
�"

�

�)�
�

�
��
��
��
���


�
��
�
�

��



�
��

��
#��

���
��

� 
��
���

��
�#


��9
�)
>�
�
���
�

��
"�

��
�


��
��
�
�

��

�

��
��

�

�

�

���
��

��
� 
��
��

��
��,

��
-

��
��

��
��

�)
��!

��
��
#


��
�"

�
��
��
��
��

"�

�

��
��

���
��
�


��
�

	


��
��
��

��
��

��

���

��
#��

��
��
��
��
��
��
	�
��
���


�
��
�"
��
�

��
��
��
��
��

���
��
��

��
��
���

��
�

��

�

��
��
��
" 

���
�
�

��

�

��
)�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

� !�
��
;
��


�
	


���
E
��
��
��

�


�
�#


��6

 


�"
��
��

��
��

��
��
��

�
 �
��

���
��
��

��
3�
��
��

��
�

��
�

��

�

���
��
��
�

�

��
���
�


��

��

��
��

�
�


��
�

��

�

�"
��

��#
�

#��

��
�
�

�


�
)��
�
���

��
��
��

�

#��

��
�

#��
��

��
��
� 
��
���

�"
��
��

��
�

#�9

�)
>�
�
���
�

��
�
��
��

���
��
��
��
�

���

�
�

�
�



�
��

�

���

��
��

��
���

�
��
��
�

�

��
��+

�


�
��
��

�

�"
��
��

��
)�

Page 66



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
 C

o
u

n
ci

l -
A

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 (
IS

A
 2

60
)

7

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

!�
�
�

��

�

��
��
��
��

�� 
���

��
��

��


�
��

�

��

�	
� 
�
��

��

#�#

��
��
��

��

���

��

�
�



�
��
��

��

��
��

��

�

"�
���

	�
��
��


���
��
�

�

��
��)
���


�

�
.�

��
�� 

���
�
�

��

�"

��
��
��
��
�


�#

��
��
�

��
�
�


�
�3�

��
�
�

��
"�

�

)�

'
��
�
��
�
(
�
�
�
�
��


��
�

� !�
��
�

�

��
���
��


��
��

��
�#�
��

�9
�)
��
�
���
�

��

#
��
��
��
��
�	

��
��
��
��
���

�

��
��
�� 

�
�

�

��
��

��
�


��+
!�

��
��


��
��

��
�


�3
�	

��
�#�
��
$
��
��
���

�

�
�+�


�
���

��
#�
��
�

#��

��
��


�
	�

��
��


��
��

��
�


�
��
��

��
�
�	

��
��
��
��
��

��

�

��
)��
!�

�
�
��
��
��

��


�
��

	�
��

���
��
�

��
��

���
��
�/�

��
��
�


��
��

��
�/�
��
��

��
�

� 
��
��

�	
��
��

��
��

�
��
��
�

��
��

��
�

�"
��
��
��
��
�


�#

��
��
��
�


��
��
��
 )�

��

"�
#
�
�
��

�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�

� !�
��
�

�

��
���
��


��
�

��
��
��
��


��
�


�	
��
��

�

��

�#


�
��
��

<3
��

��

���

#��
��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��
��

��
�
���

�!
��

��
��
��
��

��
�(
��
*�
��
�-

��
��

��
��

��
#


���
��

��

�

��
���
�

�7


��
�� 

�	
�


��
��

��
�

9,
)�
��

���
�

��
��
��


�
�
��

���
��
	�

��
��

�

��
	�
�
���

�(
� 
�

�

��
�%

��
��

�

�� 

)�

!�
��
�

�

��
��+

�


��
��
��
��

���
 �
��
�


��
�

��

��
��
�


���
�

��
��
��
�

���

#��
��
���

�
�
��

��
��

)��
�

��

�
��

�

���
"


��
��


��
3��

��
���

��

�
�
��

�

��
��

��

��

3��
��

���
�"

���
���


��
��
��
��

��
�

��
��
��
" 

�
9�

):
��

���
�

��
��
���

��
��

�<
3�
��
�


�
	�

��
���

��
#��

��
�

)��
�

��

��

��

�7
�


��
��

���
��
��
��

��

���

��
	�

�

�� 

��
�/�
���
��


�"
��
��

�


�
��
��
��

		
��

��
��
6�

�

��
��
�
�

�


�

��
��
�7
�


��
��

�)�

�
��
�
�


��
��
��
�
�
��
�

� ��
���

��
��
�#
���

��

�

��

��

��
��


�
��

���
��
��
��

��
��
��
�
�

�


�

��
�

��
��

��
�

��
#��

���
��

�"
��
��

��
�


�
��
���

��
��
��
���

��
��


��
�

���

��
��
�	


�
�)�
�!

��
��
��	


�
���

�

���

��

��
��
��

:�
 �
��
���

�

��
�

��
��

��
��
��

��
��

�

	�
� 

/��
��
�

��
E
��
"


��
�E


�
��
��


)�
�!

��
��
�
�

�


�

��
�
�

��
��

���
��
���

��
��



��
�

��
��

�
��
��

��

�
��
��

#

���

��

��
��

��

��
�

��
�


�
���

��
��
�	


�
���
��
;
��
��

"�
���

��
��
��

��
�

�

��
��

��
��
��
##
��
��
���


��
��

���
��
���

��
�

�

��
���
�
�

��
��

��
��
*�
��

��
��
��

�


�
��
�
�

��
 �

#

���
��

��
�	


�
�+

�

	�

��
��


�

)�

@
��
�,

��
��

�

���

��
��
��
��
�

�

��
��+

��

�"
��
��
��
��
�	

��
��
��
��
�


���
��

#

��

�

3�
��
"�
���
 �
#�

�

�
��
��
��



��
�#


��

�
��
��
��
��
�	
��


#��
��

��
���

��
��


�

��
��
��
��
�	


�
�

�#�
��

��
��
���

��
"�
���
 )
��!

��

�

�
��
�


���
��
���

��

	

��
��

�

��
� 
��
��
��
��
�

�
�

���
��
��
��
�	


�
��


���
/��
��
�
��
��

��
�

��
��
��
�

�

��
���

�
���
���

��
��
��

�?
:G

�

#��

��
�
�

��
�	
�


��
��


)�
���

��
��

�

��
��

��
�
���

���
�,

?�
��
��
���

��
�

�

�

��
��
��

��
��



��

/�

�

���

��
��
�
�

�

�
��
�	





�"
���
� 
���

��
�
�

��
�	
�


��
��


��
� 
�"
��
��
��
��
��

/�

��
��

�

��
���

��
��
��
�
��
�


��
���

��
��


#��
��

��
��
��
� 
/��

��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���

��
�

�

��
���

�


�
��
�

��

�
�


�
��
��

�

���
��

��
��



��
���

���

	

��
��


#��
��

��

��
��
��

���
��
���

��
��
�


��
�

)��
�

!�
��
��

��
�

��
#��

���
��

�"
��
��

��
�
�

��
���

�
�
�


�

��
��
�

��
�



�"
��
��
"�


�
��

���
	�
�

��
��
��
�

�

��
#��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��	




���

�

/��

��

���
��

��
��
��

#
�
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��
�

)�

'
��


�
��
�
�
�


�
��
�

� !�
��
�

�

��
���
��


��
	�

��
��

���
��
��

�

	�
��
�


��
�

��


���
#��

��
��
�
��

��
��

�

��


���
��
�

�

��
��+

�


�
��
��
�


��
�

��
��

��
��

��
�

�"
��
�
��
��
��
��
��

�#
���

��
�#�
��

���
��

�

��

�#


�
���

��
��

�

	�
��

���
��

)�

�
�
�
�
$

�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

� @
��
��
��

���
��


��

�
���

��
��#

��
��
��

 �
��

��
��

��
�

��


���
��
#��

��
��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

���

��
��
��

��
�


��
"�

��
�	
�


��



��

�"
 �
�
��

��
��

��
�)�
�E


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
�
�

��

��
���

���
��
#


��

�
��
��
	�

��

�


�
��

���



��


��
��


��
��
#�

�

�

��
��


�
*�
�
��
��

��
� 
��
��

��
��

�

���
��
��
��
�
��

��
��

�

��#
���

��
�

�

��
���
��

��
��
��


��
��
��
��
��
�


�
�
��

��
��


�

��

��
��

��
��

��
��
��
��
��

�3
��

)��
0

��
��

��
�

�

��

��
��

��
��
��
���

�

��
�



��

��


�
��
��

�
��

��
��
��
�� 

���
	�

��
�

��
��
��
��

��
3�
��
#��

��
��
��
�


�
��
��

��
�

)�

)
��
�
��
��
�


�
�
��
��
�
��
 
�

� ;
��
��
��
��
��
�


��

�
�

#�


��
��
��

���
�
��
��

��
���

��
��#

��
��
��
��

�
"�

��

#��



��


��
��

���

�
�


���
��

��
��
#��

��
��
��
���

	�
��
�

��
��
��
��

��
3�
��
#��

��
��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

�"
��
��

��
��
�


�
�
��

��
��
��
���

�

��

��
��
��

��
�


�
��
" 

��
��

��
��

��
��	

��

���


�
��
��
	�

�	
��
��
�

��

#
���

��
��

��
3�
��
#��

��
��
��
�


�
��
��

��
�

)�

�
�(
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
 
��
��
��

� ;
��
��
��
��

��
3�
��
��
��
�

�

��
���
��
��

�

��
��

��
��

��



��
��

��
��

��
��

��


#
��

��
�/
�
�

		
���

��
" 

�
!�

��
�


�

� 

�4

�

��
/��

��
��

���
��
��

�

��
�#�
��

��
�


�
���

��
�
�

��
)��
!�

��
�

�

��
���
	�


�
��

��
��
��


	
��

��
��
#��

��
��



��
���

��

�
��
��

��

���
��

	�
���
��

��
�

��
��
��
��

�
�



#��
��
��
��

��
�

�

*�

�

���
��

��




��
��
	



��
�

��
��
�,
��
-

��
��

��
��

��
�
�


�
3�

�
��

)�

!�
��
�

�

��
���

�


�
��
��
�


��
��
��
��
���

�
�
�
�

�

�
	�
��
��

��

�





��
�

�	





�"
��
��
��

���
��
��
�

	�
��


��
��
��
�


��
���
��
�

��
�
�

��
��
��
��

�

���

�
��
��
�

�

��
��+


��
��

��
��
���

��
��
)��
�

Page 67



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
 C

o
u

n
ci

l -
A

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 (
IS

A
 2

60
)

8

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

*
��
��
��
�
�%
�


�
�
��
��
�
(
��
�
�
��
��
�

� 4

��


�
��
��

�

���
��

���

#

���
��
��

�<
3�
��
#��

��
��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

��

��
��
�


�
�
��

��
��
��
��
���

��
�

�

��
��+

��

�"
�

��"

��
��

��
�

#�9

>)
?�
�
���
�

��
��
��
���

��
�

���

��

�
��
�

�


�"
�#

�

��
��

��
�
�


�
��
�

"�
��

���
��
��

#
#)�
�!

��

�
�"
��
��

��

��

��
��
��
�

���

��
	�

��
�

�


��

�

	�
��
��


 

��
�
��
��

�"
��
��

��

�

�#
��
���

��

��

��
��
��
��
�


��
��
��
 �
�
���

��
��

#
#)�
�!

��
��


�
��

���
��


��
��

�

��

�
��
��
��
���

�

��

"�
��
��

�

��
��
��
��
�*
��
 �
�

�"
��
�


���
��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

�

"�
#�
���

�"
��	

�

��

�


��
#

���

��
�
���

�
#�
��)
���

!�
��
"�

��
��

�

��

��
��
�


���
���

��
��

#

#��
��
��

��
3�
��
��

��




��
��
��

��
���

	�
��
��

�

��
�

��
�


�
�
��

��
��


��
��
�
�

 �
��
)��
0

��
��
�


��
�
�

���
��
���

��
�

�

��
���

�


�
��
��

�

���
��

��
� 

�
��
�


��
� 
��
��
�

��
��
���


	
��
��


#��
��


�
��
�"

�

��

��


�
��
�

���
���

�
��
�


��
�


�

�
��
��
� 
��
��
"�
��
�

�

�

�



)�

�
��
#
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�


�
��


��
�
�
�
��
�

� �
��

�

��
��
��

�
��

��
��

��

�.
��
��
��
��
��
�

�
��

��
��


�"
��
�
��

��
#

���

��
"�

�


��
��

���
��
�

�

�


��
��
��

��

�"
��
��

�

���

��
�"

��
/�#
��


�� 
���

�

��

��
��
��
��
��

�

#��
��

��
��
��

���
�"

�

���

��

�

��

�

��
��

�
�


��
� 
�"
 �
�	

	�
 �
��

��
�	
��
��
��
��

��
"�


�
��

�

�	
��
��

�


��
�	

��
��
��

��

#

��

�
��
��
��
��


��
���

���
�"

�)�
�

!�
��
�

�

��
���
��


�

��

��
��
�� 

	�

�


#��
�"

�/�
��
��

�

#��

��
��

��
�

���

�


�
��
	�


�
�
�

�

)��
0

��
��
�




�
��

#
���

�

��
��
��
"�


�
��

�

��
���

��
��

�

#��
��

��
��
��

���
�"

�

���

��

�

��

�


��
��

/�
#

���

��
�
	�
��

��
��
	�


�
�
�

�

�#

��H

��
�

��

��H

�

3;

�

�

���

�5
��
��
��

"�

�


/�
��
��
"�


�
��

�

���
��
�

�

��
��+

�

�


�

�
	�
�

�


��

��


�
��
��
"�

��
��

��
��
��
��


���
*�

� 
��


�"
��
�


���
��
��

/��
��
��

���
��

��
��

�

�

��
�

�

���

��
�

��
��
��

)�

!�
��
�

�

��
���

�


�
��
���

��
��

���

�"

��
��
�"

��	
�


��

�


�

��


��
�


��
��
��
��
���

�

��
��
��
"�


�
��

�

��
�

��
��
��

�

#��
��

��
��
��

���
�"

�

�

��
��

���
��

�

��
��

�

�

��
��

�
��
��
�

��
��
��

)�
�

�
�
�
�


�
��
�
 
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
+
��
�
 
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�,
�
��
��
%
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�

��

��
	�

��
�

�


� 
��
�

���

��
�

�

��
���
��


��
��

�

��
��

�#

���
�

�:
�G

�
�
��
��
��
���

��
!�

�
��
�6

���
��

�
��

��
!


�	

�
��
�4
��
� 
�2


��
���


�
�
���
��
��!

6!
42

�
���


��
�+7

�
��
� 
��

�

��

�
��
��
��

���
 +�

��
���

��
��

�

	�
��
�


��
�

��
��

��

�
��

���
��
���

��

��

��
��
��

���
 �
��
�


��
�

�

#�(

� 
�

�

��
��

�� 
��


�
��

��)
��

!�
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�


��
���

��
���

��
�
��

���
��

���
�

��
�


	�
��

�"
 �
"


��
�(
� 
�

�

��
��

�� 
��


�
��

���
��

��

�

�

��
��
���


�
��

���
��
��
��

:3
��

/�#

�
�

�
��
��
��

�
�



�

��
�
���

���
��
�
��

���
�

�

�
�



�

��
�
�


�
�
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

��
��
��

��

�

��
���
��

���
��

�)
���

��
��
��

�3
��

��
��
��

��
���

��

��

��
���

��
��
�


��
���

��
���

��
�
��

�

�

#��

���

#

���
��
�

�

��
��+

��

�

�	

�
��
���

���
�

/�"


�
��
��
���


	

�


�
��


���
��
��

��
��

���
��
��
��
��

#

�


�
��

#

���




��
��
��
��


�

��
	


/�

�

��
��

��

��
�!

��
��
��
�5


 
��
/��

��
�"
��
��


�
�

#��

��
��
��
��#

��
��
�

��

#

��
��
��

��
�
��

�

�

��
��

�

��
��

��
��

��
��4

5
�)
��0

��
��

��
��
�



���
��
��

��
��
��
��

��
�
��

�

��
��

��

�
���

��
�
��

���
�

�

�
�



�

�+

��

��
��

��
��
��
��
��

��
��
#


���
��

��

�

)��

@
��
���

��
��

��
�

���

��
��
��
��
��
��
���

��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��#


�
�!

6!
42

�
��

��

�
7

��
�� 

��

�

��

���

��
��

���
 /
��

�


��

�
��
		

��
���


�
"�

��

�


�

��
��
��

���
���

��
��

#��
���

�

���
��
��

��
�

�
���

��
���

��
�

�

�)
���

	�
��
#��

��
� 
/�


��
�

#��

��
�#�

��

�


��
��

���
��
��
�
��
�

��

��
��
��
��
��


�
��

��

�
��


��
�
�

��
�


��
��
��
#

���


��
�7


��
�� 

��

�

��

���

��
��

���
 �
�
�

��

��
"�
���
 �
�

��
��
��
���

�

�

�

��
��
��

��

��
��


�

�
��
��

�
��

�

���
�
�

�#�
��

��
��
#

���

��
�	
��
	



�

�


#��
��

�7

��
���

��
��
�� 

)��
��

���
��

��

�
�

#�!

6!
42

�
���
��
��
�


��

��

�
��
�
�

��
�


��
��
��
��
	�

��
��
��
��
�


���
��

/�

�
��
��

���
��
��
� 
��
�

�

"�
��

���
�


��
��
�

�

��
��
���


�
��

��)
��

��
��
��

���

�

/�

��
���

��
��

�

#��

��
���

��
��
��
���

��
��

��
��
	�


�
��
��

�"
 �
��
��
�
��

���
�

�

�
�



�

��

#

���

��
��


�

�
�

�

�

��
���

��
�7


��
���


�
�
���
��

��

��
��
��
�*
��
 �
�

��

��
���

��
��
�#
��
���

�

�

#��

��
��

���
 �

�
��


��
���

���
��
�

�

�)
���

��

��
��

��

��
��7

�
��
��

�

�
���
��

�


�

��
��
"�

��
��

�

��
��

�#

���


�
+7


��
�� 

��

�

��

���

��

	

��
��
�

�


+��
��
��

��
��
���

�

�	


�
��
��

���
���

��

��

��
��
��

���
 �
��
�


��
�

/��
)�
)�

(�
 �


�
��
��

�� 
��


�
��

���
��

��
�

�

��
��
���


�
��

���
��
�


��
�

/��

��
��

�
���

��
���

�

	�

��
��
��
��

�

	�
��
�


��
�

)�

4�

�

�

��
��
�
�

�


�


�

��

���
���

��
�

�

��
���
��

��
��
��
#

��

��
��
��

��

�

/��
��

��

��

�


�

��
��

 �
��


�
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

���

��
#�
��
���

��
���

��
��
�
�


	
��
�#�
��
��
��

��

��

��
��

�

��
���

��
!�

�
��
�6

���
��

��
��
��

�
��


�"
��
��
��
��
�	

��
��
��
�

��

�
�"

��

��
��

���
��

�

��
��

�
��


��
�

�
�

	�
��
��
���

��
���

��
�� 

)��
��
��


�

��
�

��
��

���
��
���

�
�
	



��
�

��
�
�

�

���

��
��
��
��
��

��
��
�


��

�"
��
��
��
�#�
��

)�

0
��
��

��
�

��
��

���
��
��


�
��

��
���


�
��

��+

��

��
��
��

���
��

��

�

��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��


���
��
��
�

��
�


��
���

��
��
��

)��

�#
�(
� 
�

�

��
��

�� 
��


�
��

���
��
�


��
��
��
#

���
�

�
�

��
��

#
���

��
2


��
���


�
�
���
��
��

���
��
���

�


��
��
��
��

���
 �
��
�


��
�

���

��
��

�3
��

���
��


�
��
��
��

��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��

�

�	
��

�


��
��
��

�

�
	�

��
��


��
��
��
�


�
��
��

��
��

	�
��

���
��
�
�

��
��

��
���

��,
��
-

��
��

��
��

��
" 

�9
�)
��
�
���
�

��

��
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��

���



��

��

��
���


�
��
�

���

���
��
"�

��
��

��

�

��
��"

 �
9�

�>
)�
��

���
�

�)
��

Page 68



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
 C

o
u

n
ci

l -
A

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 (
IS

A
 2

60
)

9

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

!�
��
��
�

�

��
�"
��
�


�

��

��
���
��

	�
��
�

��
��
��
�

�

��
��+

��

�

�	

��
��

�

��

�"

��
��


�
���

�

��

��

�

��

��

��
��
���

��
 �
��
��
��

��
��

���
��
���

��
)�

0
��
��

��
��
�
�

�


�
��
��
�
�

�
���

��
��

��
��

��
���

��(
� 
�

�

��
��

�� 
��


�
��

���
��

��
��

��
��
��
��
���
�

�

�

��
��

�
�"
��
�	

	�

	

���
��
��


��
��

��
��
��
##
��
��

���
��

�

��
��
��
���

��
�
��

��"
��
�
��
��
��
��
��


�
�

�

��
��

)��
�

�


�
.�

��
�� 

��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���

��
��
�


��
���

��
��
��
��

��
��


#��
��

�2

��
��

�

�

�
���
��
�
�


�
��
�"
��
��
3�



�


�
��
" 

�"

�
��
�

�

��
��

���

��
��

�3
��

)��
�
� 

��
��

��
��
��
�

��
�


��
���

��
��
��
��

��
���


�
��
�"
��
	�


�
�


�
��
��
�


��
��
��
	�
�

��	

��
�

��
��

7�

�
�
��

��"
��
��


�
�

���
�

�

��
�"
��
�
��
��
��
�)�

-
#
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

� "�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�

� 0
��
��

��
��
��

��
��
*�

��

�

##
��
��
��
��


�
*�

�

�*
� 
�#�
��

��
��
���


�
��

�

�#


�
���

��
	�

�	




��

#

�
��


��
��
��

�

��
�	
�


��
��

�
��

#
��


�
*�
#

���

��
�#�
��

��
��
��


��
��
�
��

�

��
��

��)
��!

��
�#�
��

��
�

�

#�

�

�

��
��
��

��
��
�

��

#

���
��
�

�

��
��1

�*

� 
�#�
��

��
��
���


�
��


��

 

��
�

��


�
��
��
��

��
�

#�


��
�

��
��
���

���
	


���
�
��
��
	�

�

��

��
��
�

���

��
�
��

���
�

�

�
���
��
���

�2�
��

��
��

�)
���

.
�
#
��
�
��
��
"�
�

� 0
��
	�

�#

�

�
��

��
��
��
��
��
��

���
��

��
�
�

#��

��
��
��

��
��
��!

��

�

��

���

��
��


��
��

���

�	

��
��


#�
��
��

�

��
��
���
��

��
�
�

#��

��
���

��
��

��
��

�

��

��


 

��
�
��
��

��

�

��
��

��
���

��
���

��
��
�
��
��
�


�
�
��
��
��
���

��
*�

�


�

��

���
��
���

��
�!

��
��
��

��
�
��

�

���

��
��

�

��
��
��

��

�
� 
���

	�
��
�

��

�

��
��

��
��


#��
��

��
��

�

��

)�

��

@
��

���
�


�
�
��

��
��


��
#


���
�
	�


�
��

��
���

�

���

��
��

��
���

�

��
���

��
���

���
	


���
��

��
�
��

��
��

��
�



���
��

��#
��
��
��
��

�
"�

��

#��

��

�

��!
��

�

��

���



��


��
��
��

��
��

��
"�

��
�

�

�
�
��

��
��
��

��

��

��
��

��
��

�)�
�!

��

�
��

�
�


��	
��

�
��
��
��

��
��
��
���
�
*

��

���

��
��
��

��
� 
�


#
���

��
#��

��
��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
�


��"
��
��
��
	�

��
��

���
���

�
�
��
	


��
)�

.
�
#
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�


�
��
�

� 0
��
	�

��

��
��
�� 

���
��
��

���
��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���
#�
��

��

��
#

���


�
	�
��
��

��
�
���

���
.�

���
�
��

�

�


#
���

��
��

��
��

�(
4�

���
��
��

��
��

��
���
��
��

��
��

)�

�@
��
��




���

��
��

���
��

��
�
���

�4
�"

��
��
 �

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
���

��
���

��
�

�

��
���
�
��
���

�

��
��
.�

���
�
��

�

��
��

���
��

��#
��
��
��


�
��
�


�
�
��

��
��


�

�#


��#
��
��
��
���

	�

�

��
��

�/�
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
���

��
���

���
	


��)
��

0
��
�


�

��
��
���

��
���

��
�

�

��
���
��


�	
��
���

�	
��
��
�
�

##
��
��
��
���




��
��
��


��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

���
��

��
��	

��
��
��

��
��


��
��
�	

	�

	

���
��
���

*

�"
�

��

��
��
�


�

�

� 

)��
0

��
��




��

�


��
��
��

�
�
��

��
��
���

��
�

�

��
���
��

��

�

##
��
��
��
�#�
��

�"
���
� 
���

���

��

�


�

��
��
�

���


	

�

��
��

�.
��

��
� 
��


�
��

	�
��

��
��
��


*

��
��


��
��
��
���

��
 �
��
)�0

��
��
��

�
��


#��
��
��
��
���

��
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

�

��
��
�


�
##
��
��
��
��


��
��

��
��

���
�
)
�

0
��
��

��
�

��
��
�
�

�

�

*�
��
�#


��
��
��

�

��

��

��
���
B
��
��

�#

��-


�
� 
��B

#-
���


�
��
�


�

��

�

�
��
��
�

�

��
��+

��

��
��

��
�
��

�

�#


��

��
��
��
��
��

�


�
 /
��
##
��
��
��

 �
��

��
�#
#�
��
��
��

�


��

��
��


�
�


��

#

���




��
��

)�

�!
��

��


�
*�
��




�
�
		


�
�

�

��
���

��
��

�

#��

��
��

��
��

��$

�

��
��

��
��

��
��
��

��
���

�
$
��
��

��
��

���
���

��
���

#

��


�

��
�B

#-
��

�

��
�


�

��
��

��

�

���
��

���

#

���
��

#��
��

��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

)��

0
��

��
���

��
��

��
��
��

���
��


��
��

��
�#�
��

��

�

��

�
��



�
�

/�


���
��

��
���

��
��
��


�"
��
��
�


���
��
��

��
�

��
��
���


�
��
��

��
�
��
��

��
��

�
�	
��
��
��
��
���

��
��

�

���
��
��

��
��

�

��

�

��

��
��
��

��
��
*�

��
��
�

�

��

�

"

��
��
��
��
"�


�
��
��

��
���

		
�


��
�)
��!

��

��

��
�


���
��
��

��
	�
��
��
�

�

��
��
���

��
��

�

�
��

��
 �
��
��
�	
�


��
��

��

��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��


�
��
�

��
��

�
��
�)
��0

��
��
��



�
�

��
��


��
��
#�

�

�

��
�

��
��
���


�
*�
��

��
�"
��
��
��
��

��#
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
	


��
��

��

�	

��
��


#�

��
�*
� 
�#�
��

��
�

�#�


�
�

��
��
��

��
�)�
�0

��
��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��#

��
��
��

��
��


��
���
��
��
��

���

�

��

�
��


�

�

/��


�
�	
��
��

�


� 
�

��
	


��
��

�"
 �
��
��
��

��
��
��

���

�

�

��
��
�



��
��

/�

�
��
��

��
��

��
��
��
�


�
�
��

��
��


�

�#


��
��

	�

�

��
��

���
��
�
		

��
��
��
�
)�

*
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�


�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�

� !�
��
�

�

��
��+

��

��
�#
���

��
��

���
�
��

��

��


��
��
��
��
��
��
�

	�
��

�

���
��
�
�

��
	�


�
��
��

�
��
�


�

�"
��
��



��
��

��
�

��
��
��
��

�.
��

� 
��
��

��
##
��
���

��
�


�


#��
��

���
��
��

��
��

�

��

��

��
��
�


��
��

��#

�

��
��

�3
��

)��
�

E

�

��
��
/��
��
��
��

���
��

��+

��

��
��

���
�	


�
���
��

��
�#�
��

�

��

��
��
��
�
��

��
���
��

��
��

��
��

+#�
��

��
��

��
���

��
*�

�


�

+�
��
���

��
�

�

��
��+

��

��
��

��
�
��

�

/��

��
��

��
�

���

���

	

��
��


#�
�


�	

�

��
��
��
#

��

��
�

��
�
��

��
��

��
�)�
�0

��
��

��
��
�
�

�


�
��
��
��
	�


�
��



��

��
��
�

��
��
��
" 

�
�
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

�
���

��
��

��
��

��
��
�

��
	�
��

��
���

���
��
;
��


�
��

��
���
(�

��
��

�

��
	�
��

��
��
��


�
��


#��
��
��
��
��
		

�

	�

��
��
��
��
�

�


��
��

��
"�

��
���

*�
��
�

��
��

��



���

��
�


��
��
�


���
�
�

��
��

��
��
��
���

��
��
�
�

�

���

	�
��
�

��

�

���
��

���

	

��
�

�)
�

Page 69



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
 C

o
u

n
ci

l -
A

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 (
IS

A
 2

60
)

10

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

!
�
�
�
 
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�


�
��

� 0
��
��

��
�



��
��
��



��
��

��

�#

�

�
���

��
;
���

��

�

�#

���


�
	


��
��
��
�	

	

���

��
��
��
��
�
��

���

#
�

��
��
�
��

���
�

�

�
���
��
���

���

	

��
��


#�	
�


��



�

���

�	
��
��
��


���
��

��#
 �
��

��
��

	


�
��
�

���

��
��


*�

#
�#�

��
��
��
���

��
�

�

��
��)
��0

��
��

��
��
�



��

�


��
��
��

���
��
�

�

*�

#

���
��
�

�

��
��+

�

��
��
��

��
��
��

���

�
��
��
�)
��4

�

�
���

�

��
��

.�
���
�

��

��
��

��
��

�
�"

��

��

��
��
��
���




��
��

��
��

��
�
���

��

�

��
��

��
��
��

��
�
�

##
��
��
��
�

��

�

��
��
�

��

���
��


�
�	
�


��



�

��


��
��
��
��
��

���
��

�


�

��
��

�

���

� 
���

.�
���

���
���

��
��

��

�#�

��
�)
�

��
���

��
�


��

�
�

#�


��
��
��

�

��

��

��
���
�

�

*/
��

��
��
��
�


���
��


�
��
��
� 

��
��
��

��
��

#

�#�
��

��

�

�	
��
��

�


� 
��
��

�
�
�


�
��
�


��
�


���
��
*�

�


�

��

��
��

��
��
��
��
��

��
�
��
��
��
��
�

�

��
��+


�
	�


�
�


�#


�
��

���
��

���
��
��
��
��


*�

#

�#�
��

�)
�

�
�
�


�
��
'
�
#
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
/�
'
�
0�

� 0
��
��

��
��
��

�
��
��

���
��
�

�

��
��+

��

��
��

��
�
��

�

��
��

�	
�


��



�

�#


���

�

	�
���

��
��
��
�
$
�)
��

��
��
��

���

�

/��
��
��

��
���

��
���

��
�
$
��
��

��
�


�

��
��
��

��
��

��
��
���

��

�
��
��

��
���

��

��
��
�


��
��

��
��

���
�

��
�*
�


�
��
��

��

#

���
��
�

�

��
��)
�

0
��
��
��
��

��
���

��
��

�#
���

$
��
��

��
�


�

��
��
��

���
��
�


��
�
��

���

�
"�

�
�
��


#�
��

�

 �
��
���

��

�


#
��

�

��
��
/��
�
�

��
#�
���
��
	�

�

��

��
��


��

#
��


�
��

��+

�


	�
��
��


�

��
��
��
��
��
��
 �
��
��
��

��

���

�
���

��
�
���

���
��
�

�

�)
��0

��
�


��
��
��

��
��
��
���

��

�

��
��
���

��
��

��
�
��

�

��

��
��
�	

	�

	

���
��
��


�
��


�
��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��
�

�


��
��
���

��
��

��
��
##
��
���

��
 )
�

�


�
��
�
�1


�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
$�
�
��
�
�
�
�

� 0
��
��
��
�


���
��
��
��

��
� 

�.
��


�
�

�


�

��


"7
��
��


�

�#�


�
���

��
	�

"�
��
�

��


��
��
���

��
��

�
��

�
	�

��
��

��

��
��

	

��
��


#��
��

�#�
��

��
��
��


��
��
�
��

�

�#


���
��

� 
��
���

��
��

�,
��
-

��
��

��
��

�)
�

2
�
(
��
�
��
�
�
�

� !�
��
�
��

���
�

�

�
���
��
��


���
.�

���
��
�

��
		

�

��

���
��
#��

��
��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

�#


���
��

� 
��
��

��
��

��
,�

�-
��
��

��
��

�)
���

��
#

��

��
��
��


��

�

��
�


�

�


���
��
�

�

�
���
��
+
�
��
��
��
�

��
�
�

��
��

��
�

���

��
��

7�

�
�
��

�

��


���
��
#��

��
��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

��
��

���
��
��
.�

���
��
'�

���
��


#�
5
�	

��

�
��
��
�

�)

Page 70



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
 C

o
u

n
ci

l -
A

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 (
IS

A
 2

60
)

11

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

,�
B
��
��

�#

���


�
� 

�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�

� !�
��
�
��

���
�

�

�
�



�

��
�

�

��

#

��
��

���
(�

��
���

��
��

��
��
�

��
�"
�

���

��
�

�

��
��1

�

��

	


�

�"

���
���


��

�
	�

���
��
	�
��
��
	�


	
��
��
��
��

��
�
��

�

��


8�

•

�
��

��
��
�


�

�
 /
��
##
��
��
��

 �
��

��
�#
#�
��
��
��

�


��

��
��


��

�
�

#��

�


�

��
�

�

•
��


�
��
�	
�


	�
��


��
�
��
�


��
	�
��

��
�


��
��

��
��
�

•
��
��
��

���
��

��
�� 

���
��
��

�.
��

� 
��
��

��
##
��
���

��
�


�


#��
��


�
��
��
��

��
�
��

�

)�

�
4


���
��

�3
��

��
��
��
��
��
.�

���
��
�

��
��
��

�

���

�

��
�


�

��
"�


�
��

�

���
��
#


��

�
��
��
��


�
��
���

���
�
	

��
�#�
��

�"
 �
��
��
�
��

���
�

�

�
�



�

�8
�

•
��
��
�

�

��
���
��


�	
�


	�
���

��
��

��
�
��

�

�#


��

��
��
��
��
#��

��
��
��
���


��
��
��

��
•

��
��
�

�

��
���
��


�	
�


	�
���

��
��

��
�
��

�

�#


���
��

���
��

��
��
�


�
���
�
�

��
��

��

�

�


�
 /
�

�#
#��

��
��

 �
��

��
�#
#�
��
��
��

�


)�

��
�

��

��
�#


���

��


�
	�


�
��
��
��

��
�.

��
��#
��
��
�


��
��

�


�/
���

��
�

�

��
���
��

��

��


�
��

�

�


�
��
��
�	
�


	�
���

��
��

��
�
��

�

���

�	
��
��
�#


��

��
��
��
��
��

�


�
 /
��
##
��
��
��

 �
��

��
�#
#�
��
��
��

�


��

��
��


��

�
�

#��

�


�

��
�

)�

0
��
��

	�
��
��


�	
��

�
��
��
��
��

.�
��
�#�
��

�B
��
��

�#

��-


�
� 
��


�
��
�


�

��
��
���

��
��

��

���

��
�

�

��
��+

��

��
��

��
�
��

�

��


��
�


��
��
��

�


�
 /
��
##
��
��
��

 �
��

��
�#
#�
��
��
��

�


��

��
��


��

�
�

#�

��




��
��

)�
�

�
��
 
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�3
��
�
#
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
 
�
�
�
�
��
��

� @
��
��


�
*�
��


��
��


�
	�




��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��

�
�	
�


	�
���


�
	


��
��
�	
��
#

��

��
��
��
��

�
#��

��
��
��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��
��

��
�
��

�

��

��

�#
��
��

�"
 �
��
��
�

�

�)
��!

��
�#�
��

��
�

�#�


�
�

��
�

��
��
��

��
��

��

�
���

�

��
��
��
��

��
��

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
"�

�

�
)�

� � � � �C
o

d
e 

cr
it

er
ia

  
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

C
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

(�

	

��
��
��
��

��
�
��

�

��

�


��
��
��

��

�"
��
��
�	
��
��
�

5
��

��
�
��

��

�	

��
��


#�#
��
��

��
��
���


��
��
��

��
�

�

*�
��

��
#�

�

�

��
�


�
��
��
���
��

��
�
�

#��


�
��

���
	�

�#

�

�
��

��
��
��

��

�
���

�


��
��
��

��
�

��
��
��



�
��
��
��
"�
���
��

�
��
��
��

�
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�"
�

�!
��
��
���
��
�

��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
���
��
�

��
��

	�
��
�	
�
�

Page 71



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
 C

o
u

n
ci

l -
A

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 (
IS

A
 2

60
)

12

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

� � � � �C
o

d
e 

cr
it

er
ia

 
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
C

o
n

cl
u

si
o

n

(�

	

��
��
��
��

��
�
��

�

��

�


��
��
��

��

�"
��
��
�	
��
��
�

�

�


��
��
��

���
�

��
���

��
��

�

#��

��
��


�
��

��1

�#

��
��

��
��
���


��
��
��

�

(�

	

��
��
��
��

��
�
��

�

��

�


��
��
��

��

�"
��
��
�	
��
��
�

5
��

��
�
��

��

�	

��
��


#�#
��
��

��
��
���


��
��
��

��
�

�

*�
��

��

�

���
��

���

#

�
��
��
#��

��
��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

�

.
��
��
"�
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
"�
��
�

��
��
��
��
�

!�
��
��
�
��

�
��
��
��

	
��
��
�"
�

��
��

��
�

��
��
��
��

�
��
���
��
�

/
��
��
-�
��
��
��
���

��
��
���
��

�
��
�

��
!�
��
��
"�
�	
��
��
��
��
��	
��

��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
0�

��
�1
�	
��
��
��
��
��
���

�
��

!�
�!
��
�

(�

	

��
��
��
��

��
�
��

�

��

�


��
��
��

��

�"
��
��
�	
��
��
�

�

�


��
��
��

��

�	

��
��


#�

��
���

��
��

�

#��

��
��


�
��

��

�	
�


��
��
��


�
	�

 �
	�


7
��
��



��

�
��
��
��
��
"�
��
��

!�
�

��
��
"�
��
��
�

��
��
��
�

��
!!
���
��
�	
��
��
��
���
���
��
��
��
�

��

�
���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
-�
��
��
�

��

��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
���

��
��

�

(�

	

��
��
��
��

��
�
��

�

��

�


��
��
��

��

�"
��
��
�	
��
��
�

�

�


��
��
��

��

�	

��
��


#�

��
���

*
��



�


�

��
��


#��
��

��

�

��
��1

�

��
��
��

��
��

�

��


�	
��


���
�
�

���




��
��

��

��
���

	�

�

��
�#
#��

��
��

 �
��

��
	�


�
��

���
�� 

��
��

�

��
���

��
��

�

#��

��
��


�
��

��+

�	

�

7�
��
�

�
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
�
��

�


�
��
��

�
�"
���
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
���
-�
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�!
!�
��
�

��

�
��
��
��
�1
��
"�
��
��

�
��
�"
��
!�
��
��
�
��

�

�
!�
��
��
���
��

Page 72



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
 C

o
u

n
ci

l -
A

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 (
IS

A
 2

60
)

13

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

� � � �C
o

d
e 

cr
it

er
ia

  
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

C
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

(�

	

��
��
��
��

��
�
��

�

��

�


��
��
��

��

�"
��
��
�	
��
��
�

�

�


��
��
��

���
�

��
���

��
��


�

#�#

��
��

��
��
���


��
��
��

��
��

��
	�


7
��
��

�
��

��
��

��
���

��
�

��
���

��
��

�

#��

��
��

$
�

(�

	

��
��
��
��

��
�
��

�

��

�


��
��
��

��

�"
��
��
�	
��
��
�

�

�


��
��
��

��

�	

��
��


#�

��
�#�
��

��
��
���
�

���
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
�



�
�
���

��
�

��
���

��
��


�

#��

��
�	
�


��
��
��


�	
� 
�	
�


7�
��
��
��

�
��
��
��

��
��

�

�#


��	
�


7�
��
��

��
��

��
��

�

�
��
�
��
��
"�
��
��

��
�
��
��
��
���
"�
�	
��
!�
��

�
!�
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��"
��
��

"�
��
��
��

�

�

2
��
�"
��
"�
��
�1
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
�"
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�

��
���
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
�

(�

	

��
��
��
��

��
�
��

�

��

�


��
��
��

��

�"
��
��
�	
��
��
�

�

�


��
��
��

��

�	

��
��


#�

��
���

*
��



�


�

��
��


#��
��

��

�

��
��1

�

��
��
��

��
��

�

��


��
�*

��
�#
#�
��
��
��
�


��

#

��
��
��
��
���




��
��



2
�1
��
"�
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
���
��
��
�

��
�

(�

	

��
��
��
��

��
�
��

�

��

�


��
��
��

��

�"
��
��
�	
��
��
�

�

�


��
��
��

��

�	

��
��


#�

��
���

*
��



�


�

��
��


#��
��

��

�

��
��1

�

��
��
��

��
��

�

��


�	
��


���
�
�

���




��
��

��

��
���

	�

�

��
�#
#��

��
��

 �
��

��
	�


�
��

���
�� 

2
��
�"
��
"�
��
��
��
��
���

�
��
��
��

��
�	
��
!�
��
���
��
��
��
��
�"
�

�

!�
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��

(�

	

��
��
��
��

��
�
��

�

��

�


��
��
��

��

�"
��
��
�	
��
��
�

�

�


��
��
��

��

�	

��
��


#�

��
���

*
��



�


�

��
��


#��
��

��

�

��
��1

�

��
��
��

��
��

�

��


�	
��


���
�
�

���




��
��

��

��
���

	�

�

��
�#
#��

��
��

 �
��

��
	�


�
��

���
�� 

�
��
��
��
"0
��
�"
��
��
��
"�
��
��

��
��
��
!�
�"
��	
��
3
��
1�
��

�
�

��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
�!
!�
��
��	
��

�

	�
��
��

��
���
���
��
��
�"
�

�

!�
��
��
���
� �

Page 73



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
 C

o
u

n
ci

l -
A

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 (
IS

A
 2

60
)

14

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

!
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
 
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
#
��
�
��
��
#
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

� ��
��
��

���

�

��

�

��
��


�
*�

�

���
��

	

��
�#�
��

��
���

��
��
��

��
��

��
��




*�
��

��
���

��
�

�

*�
�

�


�
		


�
��


��
�B

4-
��

�

��
�


�

�)
��0

��
��

��
�	
��
	�

��
��

�
	�

��
��
���

	

��


���
���


	
��
��


#��
��

�

�

�

*�
��

��
��
�

��
��
��
	�

�

��

��
��
��
��
��
��

��
� 
��


���
��
�
��

���
�


�
�
���
��
)��
!�

��
��
��
��
�

��
��

��
	


��

��

��
�8�

•
��
��
��

�

#�	

�

��

��
��


�	
� 
�	
�


7�
��
���

	

��
��

���
�2�

��
��
��

��
•

	�

7
��
���

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
�
���

	

��
��

���
��
�	

��
�
"�

���
��

��
��

��
•

#��
��

��
��
���


��
��
��

��
��
��
��

��

�"
��
��
	


���
��
��
�;

��
��

"�
���

��
�)
�

�
0

��
��
��

��#
��
��
��
�

��
��
��

��

��

�

���
��

���
	�
��

��
��
��

��
�

�	
��

�
��
��

��

� 

�

���
�

;
��
��

"�
���

��
�)
��0

��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

�

	

��

#

��
��
��
	�

7
��
���

���
��

��
��

��
��

��	
��


���

�

�

�
�
��

��
��

���
��
�

�

*)
��!

��
�	
��
	



�
�

#��

��
��
	�
��
��

#
��


�
*�
�
�

��


�	
�


��
��

��



��
��

��
�


�
���

��
��
��
��

��
��

�

���

�	
��
��
��
��

���
��

��#
 �
��

 �
��
��

�#


�
���

	�

�

��
��

�)�

!�
�

��
��
	


��

���

��
��

��
��
��
���

��
�#�
��

��
�

��
��

���
�


�
�
��

��
��


�

/��

��
��

��
�

��
 �

��
��
��

��
��
�
�


�
��


��
�
��
 �

#
�

��
�*
� 
�#�
��

��
�

�#�


�
���

�
�
�

�

*�
�
���

��
���

�
�
��
	


��
)�

.
�
#
��
�
��
��
�
��
�


��
��
�
��
�
�
�/
�
	
�
0�
�
��
$�
�
��

� 0
��
��
��
��

��
���

��
�

�

��
��+

��

��
��

��
�
��

�

��


��
��
��
��
�	
�


��
��
�
��

��

��

��
�

���

�

��

��
��


�
(�

(�
	�


7
��
�)�
�0

��
��
	


��
��

���
��
���

��
�

�

��
��+

�	

�

7�
��
��

�

��
��
��
� 
��
���

��
��
�

���

�

�

�	


�
��
��
	�

�

���

��

��

��
���

��
��
�
�

��
��
���

 �
��
��
��

�

	

��
��
���

��
���
��
��
��
��


��
�

���

��
	�

�	




��

#

���
��
	�


7
��
�)�

!�
��
(�

(�
	�


7
��
���
��
���

��

��
�


��
�
��

���
�

��
��

��

	

��
���

��
	�

���
��
��

��
��
��
��

��
��
�

#��

��
�

	�
��

��
��

�
��
���

��
��
#

���

��
��
��
��
��
 �

#

�
�
��
��


�

��

���
���

��
��
 �
��
�	
��
�

��
#�

�

�
��
�
	�

���
��

��
)��
0

��
��
��

��#
��
��
��
��
��

��
�
�

���
��
	�


7
��
���

�

��
��

��

	

��
�/
��
��





��
��

�3
��

/�
��
��
��
�
�

��
���

�*
�

#��

��
���

 �
��
���

��
�


��
��

��
��
��
��
��

��
�
��

�

)�

;
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
�

	�

��
��


#��
��

�	
�


7�
��
/��
��

�	
��


��
��

#

���
��
	�
��

��
��
9>

��
���
�

��

�
��
��


�
�

�"
��
��

���
��
��

��
��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��
"�

��
�


��
��
��
�

�

��
��+

�"

��
��

���
�

�"
��
��

���
��

�
��
�

�

��
#��

��
��
���

��
��
�

��
��
�#�

��
��
�)
��!

��
�#�
��

��	




���

�

��
�

��
��
��
��
�

�	
��
��


#��
��

��

�

	

��
��
�


�
		


�
���

��
��
��
 �
	�
��

���
�-

��
��

��
��

�/
��

���
�9
�)
��
�
���
�

��
��

��
��
��
�

�"
��
��

���
��
��

���
�

��
��

3�
�)
��!

��
��


�
��

���
"�

���
��


��
��

���
��

��

��
��

���

�	

��
��

��
��
��

�
�

�

��
��
"�
��
�

�"
��

��
��
��

��
��
��

�	
�


"�
"�
 �
��

��
��

��
)�

�
���

��
���
�
��

#
�

��
��


�
*�
��
��
�

�

��
���
��
��
�


���
��

��
��
�


�
�
��

��
��
�

�


�	
��
��
#

��(

�(
)��

0
��
��
	


��
��

���
��
���

�
�
�
�

���
*�

� 
��


��
��

��
��

��
��
��

��
��

��
��
���
��

	�
��
�

��
��
��
��

��
��

�
��

��
�
���

�
�
�*

��

�
��

�

��
��





��
��

��

�

��
��/
��

�*
��
��
���
��



��
##
��
���

�)
���

��
��
�

��
��


�
*�
��
��

�
��
��


�
 �
-

��
��

��
��

��(
�


7�
��
�6


�
��

��
		

�

��

��
��
�


�
"�
��

��
�


�
�
��

��
��
�

�


�	
��
��
#


��
(�

(�
��

��
��
��
�


� 
��

��
��

��
��

���
��
2�
� 
��
��

�)
�

�
���

��
���
�
��

#
�

��
���

��
��

��
��
��
��

��#
��
��
��
��
���

��
�

�

��
���
��
��
�


���
��

��
��
"�

��
#��


�
��
��
�
�

��

��

�
��
��
� 

�#

���

��
�	
�


7�
��
��
��

��
��
��
�


�
�
��

��
��
��
��
���

��
	�

�#

�

�
��

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
�
��

�

�#


���
��

�	
�


7�
��
��
��
��

��
�

�"
��
��

��
�

	�

��
�

��
��

��
��
��


#�
	�

�

���

 /
���

��
��

��
��
�


�
�#�
��

��
��
���

��
��

�

3#
��
��

��
��
�"
��

�#
��


��

�

��
�"
��
�
��

�

��
��
��

��
�

�

��

��
�)
��!

��
��


�
��

���
��


��

�

���
*�

��
��
��


��
�

��
��

��



���

�
)
���

�"
��

�#
��


���
��
�
�

��

��

	�

�

�


��

�

��
�


	�
��

�"
 �
��
��
�

�

	

��
��
�-

��
��

��
��

��!
��
�
���

��
��

�

���

��
��
��

��
��
�
�

�
�
"�

��
��
�


�
�
��

��
��
��

��

�;

�	
��
��

��
��
��-

��
��

��
��

��!
��
�

��

��
��
��
��

	�
��

"�
���

��
�)
�

�
��
$�
�
��
�
�
�
�
 
�
�
�
�
��
��
#
��
�
�

� 0
��
��
��
��

��
���

��
�

�

��
��+

��

��
��

��
�
��

�

��


��
��

��
��
	�


7
��
�

��
��

��

�


��
��
��

���

�

	�

7
��
�

��


��



�


��

��
��
��
���

�

��
��
��
��

��
��

�

��

��
��
�#
#�
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
��
�)
��!

��
�	
�


7�
��

�

��
��
��

��
���

��
��
��
�

8�

•
�

�

	�

�

�(
���

��
 �
��

�


�
��
��

��
��
�
��

�

/��

��
��

��
�

�

��

�

#��

��
�#�
�

��	

�

7�
��

�

�

��
		

� 
���

��
��

�
�	
�


��
��

��

��

��
�

•
�

�

	

��
��
��
��

�

�

�

��
�

��

�
��
��
� 

/�"
��
��


�
���

�
�
�
�

��

��

��
#��

��
��	

�

7�
��
/�

	�
�

��

�

��

#
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��

�"
��
�


�
	�
��
��
��

��
	�

�

��
��


�
��

��
"�

��
�"
�


��
��
�

#

��

��
�)
�

�
!�

��
��

�#
��	

�

��
��

��

/�

�
��
��

��
��
��
��

��
�

	�

��
��
�H


�
��

"�
���

��
�/
��

��
��
��
��
���

��
�

�

��
���
�


�
��
�

��
�#�

��
��


�
*�
�

��

��
��

��
��
	�
��
���

��
���

��
��
��
��

��
��
	�


7
��
�

)��
!�

��
	�


�
��

��
�

��

��
��
��

��
�

�"
��
�	

	�

�

��
��

�	

��
��


#��
��

��

�


�
���

��

��
" 

�#�
���
�

�

��
���
��
�

2�
��

��
��

�/
�"
��
���

�
�
�
�

��
�#
��
��
��
��

���
�@

��

"

��
��
��

�)
���


��
���


�
��/
���

��
	�


�
��

��
�

��
��

��

Page 74



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
 C

o
u

n
ci

l -
A

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 (
IS

A
 2

60
)

15

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

�

�� 

��
�"
��
��
�


���
��

�

���
��





��
��

��

�

��
���
��

��
��
��
�





��
��
��

���
��
��
��

�	
�


��
��

�
��
��


�
�


��"
��
��
��

���
��
��

)�

@
��
���

��
��

���
��

��#
��
��
��
��
���

��
	�


�
��

��
�

���

��
��

��
��
��

�


#��




��
	�

��
���

��
"�

���
��

���
��

��
�

�
��
��
��




��
��
��

"�
��


#��
��
�

��

��
��
���

� 
��

�

��
�"
��
��

��
��

��
��
��

��
��

��
��

��

���

�
�


��
��
�

	�
��
���

�)
��0

��
��
�


�
�
��

��
��
��
��
���

��
�

�

��
���
�

�

��
�"
��

�#
���
#�

�

���
��
��

��
��
��
��


�
��
�


�


#��
��

���
�	

	�
��
��
�

��
�#
��
���

�	
��
�

��

#
���
�
��
��

��
��
#

��

��
��
��

�

"

�.

��
��
���

��
��

�
�
���

�#�
��

"�
�*

�#�

�

���




��

�
�#
#��

�

��
��

��
�


��
���

��
)�

0
��
#


��
��
��
��
��


�
	�

�

�(
���

��
 �
��

�


�
�	
�


7�
��
�#


��

�
��

���
��
	�


�
��

��
�

��
##
��
���

��
 �

��
��
��
��
���

��
	�


7
��
���

�

��
��
��
��
��

�

��
���

��
��

��
�
���

��
�"
��

��
�)�
�!

��
�
�

�


�
�

	�

��
��
��
�

��
	�
��

"�
���

��
�/
��

�	

��
��

��
/��

��
���

��
*�

 �

�

��

�

�

��


��
�	

��
��
��
��

�
�



�
���

���

	


�

�
�

�

���

��

��
��

�
��

��
�
��
��
�
��
)��
@
��
���

��
��

���
��
��
��
��
��
��
���

��
	�


7
��
���

�

���

��
��

��
�
��

��
��

��
��
���

��
��
�	




���
�
	�
��

��
��
��


��
��
��
��

��

��
��

��

�"
��
��

��
��
�*

��
���

���
��
��

��
�

#�
��
��
)�

!�
��
��
�


�
�

�

��
�

��

�
��
��
� 

��

��
��

�

��
��3
�
��
��
��

��
��

�	
�


��
��

�
��
��
��
���

�

�	


�
��
�

�

��
�
��
��

��
�##

��
��

���
� 

�


#��

�

*�
��

��

��

��
���


��
��
�

��

��

��
�

��

#

���
��

#
#��

��

��
�


�
�

�

��
�

�)
��0

��
#

��

��
��
��
���

��
�

�

��
���
��


��
��

��
�



�
�	
�


��
�


/�

�

��
��
�/
���

�
�
�*

��
��
��

	�

�

��
��

�

��


�

##
��
��
��
�


�
�

�

��
�

��
��

��
��
��


��
��

��
��
��
��
��

�
"�

��

#�


#
#��

�

)��
E

�

��
��
/��

��
��
��

��#
��
��
��
��
���

��
��
�
�


�

	

��
#


���
��

�

��

��
���
��
��
��

��
��

�

��


�"
��


�
��
��

��
��

��
��


��
�


��
��
��
��
���

��
��
�
�


�
##
��
��
��
��
�	

��
�� 

��
��

���

��
��
��

��
�

��
��
��
��
���

��
��

"�
��


�

�	
�


��
��

�
��

"

7�
��
��
�

��
##
��
���

��
 )�

�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
#
��
�
�

� @
��
��


�
*�
��
���

��
��


��
�

�#�
��

��
��
���
�

���
��

��
��


��
��
��
��
� 
�"
��
��

��

�

	�
��
��

)��
0

��
��

��
�

	�
�#

�

�
��

�
�
##
��
��
��
��


�
*�
��
�

��

��
��


��

�

��
��

��

�

���
��
��

�.
��

� 
�

#��

��
��


�
��

��+

�

��
��
��

��
��

�

��
��

��
��
�#�
��

��

��
��
��
�
�

��
�

��
��
��


�	
�


��
��

��

�

��
��

��
���

��
#�
��

"�
�*

��

���

��
�

�

��
���
��
���

��
��


��
�

���




��
��
��
��

��
��

�

)�

6�

�
��

�

���
��
�

�

*�
�
��
��

��
��
��

��
��
*�

�/
��

��
��

��
���

��
��#

��
��
��
��
���

��
��
��
��

�
�


��
�

��
��
��

��
��

�

���

�	
��
��
��

���
��
�
�

��
���

��
"�

��

#��

��
�

��

��
��
�#�

��
��

���
�
	�


�
��

��
�

�

�

��
��
"�

�


��

��
)��
�

�


�
.�

��
�� 

/��
��
��

��
��

�

��
��

��
���

��
���

��
�

�

��
���
��


��
��

.�
��
��

��
��
��

��
��

�

���

�	
��
��
��


�
�
��

��
�B

4-
��
��

��

�#�
��

��
��
�� 

���

��
��
��
�#


���
��

�#�
��
��
)��
0

��
�
���
���

	

��
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
#��

��
��


��

�
��
��
�
��

���
�

�

�
���
��
���

�;
��
��

"�
���

��
�)
�

Page 75



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
 C

o
u

n
ci

l -
A

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 (
IS

A
 2

60
)

16

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

�
�!

��
���

	

��
��
��
��
.�

���
�
��

�

�

#��

��
��
��

�


��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�

!�
��
	�

�	




��

#

���
�
�

��
	


���
�
�

�

��
��
��
��
��
���

��
*�

 �
�



��

��

##
��
���

��
��
��
��

�

��

�

#��

��
��


�
��

���
��

��
��
��

	�
�	

��
��
�

��

#

���
��
�

�

��
��+

�#

��
��

��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

�#


��
��
��
 �
��
��
��

��
�,
��
-

��
��

��
��

�)
�

!�
��
�


��
�
��

���

��

�


��

�
��
�

���

	

���

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��

��
���

��
��

��
��

�

� 
���

.�
���

�
��

�

�

#��

��
��
��

��

��

��
��
��

��
��

�

��
�
��

���
��

��%
&
��
��

���
��
��

��
��
��

)�

0
��
�

�

��
���
*�

��

�	

�
��
�

��
���

��
���

��
�
��
��
�

��
��
���
�
���

�
��
���

�
�
��
	


��
��
��

��
�

�

��
��
���

��
�

��
��

���
��
��
��

�

��

��
��


#�

��
��

�

�
��
��
��

���
	�


�
��

��
�

��

��
��

��
��
�

��

��

��
��
	�

��
��
�� 

�#

���

��
�	
��
	



�
�

#��

�	
��



��
��

�

��

	

��
�

��

�

���
��
#��

��
��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

�

#��

��
��


�
��

��)
�

!�
�
�

��
	


��
��


�
�
���

�� 
��

�

#��
��

���
�/�
��

��
��
��

�

��
���
��
�

�

"�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��
"�
��
�

��

��
��

��
��

���

�
#�
��
���
��
��

��

�
�



�

�


/��
���

� 
��

�
�"
��
��
*�

��
�

��
���

���
��

�

��
��

	


�

�"

���
���


��

�
��
��
�

�

��
���
��
�
�
��

��
��

��
���

��
��
��


�

#

�

��
��
��

���
��

��
��

�
��

�)�

!�
��
�


��
��

�

�

#��

��

��

�	

�

��

�


��
��
�


��"
��
��

�
�


�
��

�
���

���
���

�	
��
���


��
���


�
��


��
�	
��


���
���

��
��
�


�

��

�)�

.
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�


�
��
�
��
�

!�
��
��
��
��

�


��
��
���


	

�


�"
��
�#


���
��

�	
��
	�

��
��


��

#
�

��
��
#��

��
��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

��
��

�#

���

�*
��
��
��

��
��
"�
��
�

��

�

��
��


#��
��

���
#


��
��
�

��
��

��
��

	�
��

��
�

�


��
��
�


�

��
��
�

��
��



��
 )
��!

��
��
#

��
/��
���

��




��

���
���
��

���
��

��
���

��

�


�
�


�#
���

���
��
�

��
��
��

��

�
��

��
��

�

#��

���
��
��
�
��
��
�

���

�
��
�
�

��
	


���
�
�

�	
	�


	
���

��
/��

��
��
��
��
��

��
��


���
��
��

*�

�

��
��

��

#

���
��
	�

��
��
��
��
��
���

��

�
��

��

)�

%
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�

!�
��
�

�

��
��+

��

��
��

��
��

���

��

�

	


�

�"
��
�#


���
��

�
��
��

��#
��
��
�

�/
��



�


�

��
�/�
�
��

��
��

��
���

��
�

�

�

��

���

��

#
���

*

/�#

�

��
��

��

	

��
�/
�

	�

��
���

��
��

��
�

�

��

���

��
��
��

 

�
��

�

#��
��
��
��

���

�

��

���

��
�#


��
	�


�
��
��
��
�


�

��
��

��
�

���

��
�
��

���
�

�

�
���
��
���

��
���
�

��

��


�
��




)�

!�
��
�
��

���
�

�

�
���
��
��


���
.�

���
��
�

���

��
��

���
��

�

�

��
��+

��

��
��
��

��#
��
��

��
��
��

�

��

�

)�

���
��
��

���

�

/��
��

�
�
��

���
�

�

�
���
��
��


���
.�

���
��
�

���

��
��

��
���

�
��

��
��
��
��

��
��

�

��

�
�

��
��
�	

	�

�

��
��
��

�
��
��

��
�

���

��
��

��
�

��
���

��
��

��
��
���

	

��
���

���
��
��


��
�

���

��
��

��
��

�

��

���

��
�

��
��
�
��

��
��

��
��


#��
�
*

)�

!�
��
�
��

���
�

�

�
���
��
�
�


�
��
���

��
��
��
��
	


��

�#�


�
�

�
��

��
��

��
���


��

�
��
��
�#
#�
��
��
��

�


�


#��
��

�
 

�
��


�
��
� 
��
��

��
�

��
"�
�
�

��
��

��

��
���


��
��

��

�

��
�


�

�


�

#��

� 
�

��

�
��
��
�


��
��

��
��
" 

���
��
��

���
��

��
��


��

��

�
��
�

)�

0
��
��

��
��
		

���
��

�

���
��

���
�	

	�

�

��
��


��

�

��
��

�/�
��

��
��

��
��
��

��



�


� 


�
���
��
��
��

���

�

��

�
�


�
��
���

��
#��

��
��
��
���

	

���

��
�	
�


��



���

���
��

��
���

���
��

��
.�

���
�
��

�

�

#��

��
���
��

�
�
��

��
��


)�

@
��
��
��

���
�
�

�

���

�

��
��

��
�

���


�
��
���
��
��
��

��
��

�

��

�
�


�
���

��
��#

 �
��
���

��
�

�

#��


�
��


���
��
*�

�


)�

�E

�

��
��
/�

�
��

��
/��


�	
��
��


#��
�

���

�/
��

��
��
��

��#
 �
��

 �
�


��
�


��
�
��
*�

�


�

/�

�
��
�
���
���

	

��
���

�

��
�

� 

�

)�

��
��

�


�
.�

��
��
/�


��
��


�
*�
��
��


�
�"
��
��
���

��
�	


�
��


�
��

�
�


�
��
�#
��
��
��


�

�

��


��
��
���
��
��

��
���

��

/�


�
��


�
��
��
��

��
��
��	





�"

��
���

	�

�

��
��

�

���

���
��
��

��
��

�

��

��

��
��
��
��


�
��
��

��
�


��
��

	

��
��
���

��
�
��
��
�

��
�
��
��
�

��
��

��#
 )�

0
��
�

�

��
�"
��
	�
��

�
��
�

��
�
�

�


��

� 
�#�

���
��
��


�
*�
��
�

��
�
�

��
��

��
��

���
���

��
�
��

���
�


�
�
���
��
)�

��
�
%
&
��
��

���
.�

���

��


�
�
��

��
��
�

��

#

8

•
��
��
��


�

��
	


���
��
��
��

��
��
"�

��
��
��

�

���
��
��
��

	�
��

��
��
�

#��

��
��
��

���
#��

�
��
��

���
��
��
��
��
�� 

��
��

�

"7
��
���

�� 
�

#�

��
��
��

��
��

�
��

���
��
�

•
��

��
��
��
��

�
�

	

��

#

���
��
��

��
���


�
*

•

��

��
#��

��
��#

��
��
��


�#
�


�
���

��
��

��
�

Page 76



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
 C

o
u

n
ci

l -
A

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 (
IS

A
 2

60
)

17

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

"�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�


�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
��
��
�
�

��
��

��

��

�.
��
��
��

��


�
��
��

� 

�

�#�
���
��

��
#�
���

��

�
�


�

��
�

#��

��
��

��
��
�

���

���
��
��
�

�

��
���

��
	�

��
��

��
)�

��
���

�
�
�


��
��

���
��
��


�
��
���

��
8�

•
��
��
�	

	

��
��
��
��

��
��	

��
��
��
��
��

��
��

���
�
��

��
��
��
��
�


�
"7
��
���


�
�


��
��


��
��

��
 �

�
��

��
 �
��

=�

•
$
��
��
�!

�

��

�

�/
���

�	

��
��
��

��

��
���

��
��

��
���

��
�
�

��
��

��

�
#�
�
�� 

/�#
��
��

��
��
/��

�
	�

 

�
��

�/�
��
��


�
�
��

��

�

�"
�


��
�


��

��
��
�

�


��
	�
�
���

���
��
�

�

��
��=
�

•

�

��#
��

�	

��
��
" 

���
��
�

�

��
���
�


��

�
���

	�
�

��

���
��

��
�	

	�

	

���
��
�	
�


	

���


�
�

#��


�
��
�#�

��
��
�


�
��
#


��
��
��
��
���

��
#��

�
/�


##
��
��

�

���
��
��
��

��
�	
��
��
��
=��

��
�

•
��
��
���
���

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
�/�
�
��
�
���
��

��
��
��
��
��

�

"�


�
� 
���

��
	�

��
��

��	




���

�

���
���


	
��
��


#�*
� 
�

7�
��

��
��

���
��
�

�

�

�


�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
3�


�
��
��
�
�#
��
�
�
�

��
��
��
�

�
�

		
���

��
�

���

��
�

�

��
���
#


���
��

� 
��
���

��
��

�,
��

-
��
��

��
��

��
��
��
�

�#


��

�

8�

�
4
�

 
��
���
��
��
�

��

�
�

��
��
��

�

 �
��

��
��

,,
:/
<?

C�

5
�"

��
��
#�

�

��
��

���
�

�

�
�



�

��

�,
>/
�>

��
�

�
��
��
��
���
��
��

�&
�0
5�
��

�
�	
��
��
��
��

�
��

�

�
�
	�

 

��
�



��
��


�

���

��
��

�
,/
:�

��

�

�


�
��
�1


�
��
��
��
�
�


��
�
�
�
�

$
��
��
�!

�

��

�

�+

��

��
���
	�

��
���

��
�
�

��
��
��

�� 
�

�

�

��

��
��
" 

���
��
�
��

���
��


	
��
��


��
%
��
�/�
��

��
��

�

#�

��
��
4�
��

��
��
��5

�	

�

���
��
�

�

��
���
�
��
��

��
�

�

��

	


�

�"

���
� 
�#


���

�

��

���

��
��
��
#��

�
+
�
	�

"�
��
���

��
��

�
�

��
��
���

��
��

��
��

�

)�

!�
��
��

��
��	

��
��
��
��
�
�

��




��

�

��

��
��
" 

���
��
I
��

���
 �

�



��
��

��
�;

���
��

�

��
��

#

���
��
��

�
�
0

)��
$
��
��
�!

�

��

�

��
��




��

�

��
��

��

��
��
��

��.
��

���
 �
��
��
��


�

#

��
��

��
��

��
�

)�

4�
��
��

��

�

�/
��
��

��

�

#�	

�"
���

���
��
��

�
�"

�

��

��

��
�


�
"7
��
���


�
��
��
�
��

���
�

�

�
�



�

�+

�.

��
���
 �
��
��
��

�
	�


�
�


)�

0
��
�

�

��
�"
��
��

		
 �
�

��
�
�

�


�#

��
��
��
���

��
#��

�
+
�

�	
	�


�
��

��

�.
��

���
 �
�


�

��
��

�)

Page 77



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
 C

o
u

n
ci

l -
A

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 (
IS

A
 2

60
)

18

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

6�
�
��

���
��

7�

�
�
��

�

�

�
�
$

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
�
�

� 2
��
��
��
��

��
��6
��

��
��

��
��
��
���

��
��

��
��

#

��
�"
��
��

��
�	
��

�
��
��

���
���

��
#��

��
��
��
�
�

��
��

��
�

�



��
��
���

�
���
��
6�!

��
��


�
��

��
��


#��
�"
��
��

��
�#�


�
�

��

��

��
��


��
��
���

��
��
�


��
�

��


��
�


��
��
�

7
��

�
��
��
��
6��

��
��

��
��
��
���

��
�
� 
���
��
�
��
��

��
�"
��
��

��
��


��
�
�

�


�
��

�

�	
��

�
��
��

���
��
��
��

	�
��

��

�

 �
�


��
�

� �
�
$

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�%
�


�
�
��
4�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

� �
�
$

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
�
�

5






�

�
�
�
�


�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

"�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

-
�



��
��
�
��

��
��

/�
�?

�
(�


	
��
� 
�	
��
��
��
��

��
.�

�	
�
��

��

$
�





��
�	

��
��
��
��
�

��
��

���
��
�


+�
��

��
��

��
��
�

��

�
��
��
�

�

5
��

��
��

��

��
��

�
��
��

@
��
��
���

��
��
��

�"
��
��
��
�

�

��
��
��
"�

��
��

��

�

��
���

�

�

��

�

��
��
��
" 

�9
:<

/�
>�

/�
��

�

B
��

��
��

/�

	�
��

�/�
#�
��

���
��
��
��

�#�
���
��


�

��
��
��
"�

��
��

��

�

��
���

�

�

��

�

��
��
��
" 

�9
<�

C/
��

��

��
��
��

�"
��
��



��

�


��
��
��
"�

��
��

��

�

��
���

�

�

��

�

��
��
��
" 

�9
�,

/�
��

�

;
�#
��
���

�

��

�

���
��
��

�

	�

��
��


�

���

���
��
�


�
	�

��
��


��
��
��
�


�
��
��

��
��

	�
��

���
��
�
�

��
��

��
���

�

�

��
��

�

��
��
��
" 

�9
:�

/�
>?

/�
��

�

5
��

��
��

��

��
��

�
��
��
�
�

�

��

�

��
��
��
" 

�9
,/
:?

�/
��

��

-
�



��
��
�
��

��
>/
<,

��
(�


	
��
� 
�	
��
��
��
��

��
.�

�	
�
��

��
�

�

�
��

�� 
��



��

��

��
	�

	

��
� 
�	
��
��
��
��

��
.�

�	
�
��

���
�

�

��

�

��
��
��
" 

�9
>/
<,

�/
��

��

B
��

��
��

/�

	�
��

��#
��
��
��
��
��
��

�#�
���
��


��
�

��
��

��

�
��
��

�"
 �
9�

�>
/�
��

�

��
#�
�

���

��
��
��
�
�

��
��

��

�
��
��

�"
 �
9>

/�
�C

/�
��

�

Page 78



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
 C

o
u

n
ci

l -
A

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 (
IS

A
 2

60
)

19

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

�
�
$

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
�
�

5






�

�
�
�
�


�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

"�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

-
�



��
��
�
��

��
��

/,
��

�
(�


	
��
� 
/�	

��
��
��
��

��
.�

�	
�
��

��

5
��

��
��

��

��
��

�
��
��

�

�

�
��

�� 
��



��

�


��
��
��
"�

��
��

��

�

��
���

�

�

��

�

��
��
��
" 

�9
?/
<?

�/
��

��

5
��

��
��

��

��
��

�
��
��
�
�

�

��

�

��
��
��
" 

�9
?/
<?

�/
��

��

5
��

��
��

��

��

#
��

�

�
��

�� 
��



��

��

�

�

��

�

��
��
��
" 

�9
�/
,:

�/
��

��

�
��

���

�


��

�
�


�
�
��

�� 
��



��

��

�

��
��

��

�
��
��

�"
 �
9�

/,
:�

/�
��

�

-
�



��
��
�
��

��
�/
C<

<�
(�

�

�

��
��

#��
���

�
��
��

���
���

��
��

�

�	
��


�

�


�

(�
�


�

��
��

#��
���

�

���
��
"�

��
��

��

�

��
���

�

�

��

�

��
��
��
" 

�9
�/
C<

</
��

��

�
��
��

���
���

��
��
��
���

��
�


�
	�

��
��


��
��
��
�


�
��
��

��
��

	�
��

���
��
�
�

��
��

��
���

�

��
��

��

�
��
��

�"
 �
9�

/C
<<

/�
��

�

-
�



��
��
�
��

��
>�

��
;
�"

�

�

�

�
��
��
�

�

�

��

�

�3�
��
�
��
�"

�

�

�

��
��
��
"�

��
��

��

�

��
���

�

�

��

�

��
��
��
" 

�9
>�

�/
��

��

�
�	

���
���


�
��
�"
��
�

�


���
��
��
��

���
��
��

��
��
���

��
��
�

��"

��
��

��
���

�

�

��

�

��
��
��
" 

�9
>�

�/
��

��

�
��



�#�
��
��


��
,?

C�
;
�"

�

�

�

�
�

��

�
�

��
��

��
��

�

��
.�

��
��
��

�

�"
��
��

��
�

��
��
��
"�

��
��

��

�

��
���

�

�

��

�

��
��
��
" 

�9
,?

C/
��

��

��

�

�3�
��
�
��
�"

�

�

�

��
��
��
"�

��
��

��

�

��
���

�

��
��

��

�
��
��

�"
 �
9,

?C
/�
��

�

�
��



�#�
��
��


��
��

��
$
�





��

�	
��

��
��
��
�

��
��

���
��
�/�

��
��
�


��
��

��
�/�
��
��

��
�

� 
��
��

�
	�
��

��
��

�
�
��
��
�

�

!�
��

��

��
��

��
�


�3
�	

��
�#�
��

$
��
��
���

�

�
��

!�
��

��

��
��

��
�


�3

	

��
�#�
��
��
��

���
�	

��
��
��
��
��

�

�

��

�

��
��
��
" 

�9
��

�/
��

��

$
�





��
�	

��
��
��
��
�

��
��

���
��
�/�
��

��
�


��
��

��
�/�
��
��

��
�

� 
��
��

�	
��
��

��
��

�
��
��
�

��

�

��
��

��

�
��
��

�"
 �

9�
��

/�
��

�

;
�
�

�


�

��
�

�/
:�

��
'


��
3��

��
���

��

�
�
��

�

�

'

��

3��
��

���
�"

���
���


�

'

��

3��
��

���
��


�
�
��

�

��
��,

��
-

��
��

��
��

��
�
�

��
��

��

�
��
��

�"
 �
9�

/:
��

/�
��

�

'

��

3��
��

���
�"

���
���


��
��,

��
-
��
��

��
��

��
�
�

��
��

��

�
��
��

�"
 �
9�

/:
��

/�
��

�

;
�
�

�


�

��
�

�J
��

�

�

���
��

��
��



��

�

�
��

��

��

#��
���

��
�"
��
��

��
�
�

��
��

��
��
�

�

�

���
��

��
��



��

��

�
�
�


�

��
��
�

�"
��
��
��

��
��
�

���

#��
��
���

��
	





�"
���
� 
�

#��

���
��
�	
���
#��

��
���

��
��
��(

� 
�

�

��
�

�
��	


�
���

�



�
��

�
��

��

��

#��
���

��
�"
��
��

��
�
�

��
���

��
��
��

�
�


�

��
��
�

�"
��
��
"�


�
��

���
	�
�

��
��
��
�

���

#��
��
���

��
��

��
��

��	




���

�

�

�

Page 79



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
 C

o
u

n
ci

l -
A

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 (
IS

A
 2

60
)

20

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

�
�
$

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
� 
��


�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

� !�
��
�

�

��
���
��


��
	�

��
��

���
��
��

�

	�
��
�


��
�

��


���
#��

��
��
�
��

��
��

�

��


���
��
�

�

��
��+

�


�
��
��
�


��
�

��
��

��
��

��
�

�"
��
�
��
��
��
��
��

�#
���

��
�#�
��

���
��

�

��

�#


�
���

��
��

�

	�
��

���
��

)�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$

�
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�%
�


�
�
��
4�
��
�
�
� 
��


�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

� !�
��
��
��
��
�


�	
�


	


�
��
��

7�

�
�
��

�

��


���
��
�

�

��
��+

�


���
�


�	
��
��

�

��

��

��
��

���
��
�

�

��
���
��


��

�
��

��
�)�

Page 80



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
 C

o
u

n
ci

l -
A

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 (
IS

A
 2

60
)

21

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

�
��

��
�

��
	�
��

�

.
�
�
�

2
�
�

.
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

!
�
�
�
 
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

.
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

��
8
��
��
��
��
��
���
"�
��
��
�

!�
��
��

�
�#�
��

��
�


�
���

��
�
�

��
�
�


�
��
�"
��

	

	�

��
��
��
�

�




�
��

�	





�"

��
��
��

��
�

��
��
���

�

��
�	
��


��

#

��
��
��
�


�
��


�

��
��
"�

�
��
��
��

��
)��
�
�	
��
�

��
��
��
�


��
���
��
�

��


�

�

��
�"
��
��
��
��
��
"�

��
��
��
��
��
�


�
��

��
��

�
��
��
��

���
��
�

�

��
��+

��

��
��
��
���

��
��
)�

E
��
��

�
��
��
��

��
	�
��

��
��
��


��

#
���

��
��

�
��
��
��
"�


�
��


��

�

���
��
��

/��
��

���
��
	�


	
��
� 
��
��
�
��

��

#�

��
��
��

��
�"
�

��
��


��
��
��

�� 
��

�

��
���

�)
��!

��
�#�
��

���
��

�

��
���

��

�


��
���

���
��
#��

��
��
�

�

�

��
�

��

���
��

�

�"
��
��

��
���

*�
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��

�

#��

��
��



��
��
�

��
�	
��


�)
��

$
�


�	
��

��

�

��
��

��
�

�

	

��
��
�!

��
��

��
��
��

,�
�@

��

"

��
��
��

��

��
.
��
��
��

�

�
��

�
���
��
��
�-
��
��
�

�

�

��
���
��
��
��

"�

�


��
��
��
��
��
�

�	
��
3�
��

��

�


�
��
�"
��
�
���

��
��

#
#��

��
���

��
"�

��
��

"�
�

	�

�

�
�

�

���
��

��
��
��
�


��
��
��
 )
�

-
��

��
�
�

�
��
��
��

!�
��
�
���

��

#
#�


#��
��


�
��
�"

�

��

���
�"
��
�


�
	�
��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
���

��
#�
��

��

�

*�

#

�

��
��
��
��
��
�#�
��

��
��
���
��

��
��
�

�


/��
��

���
��
�





��
��
��

�"
��

��
�"

��
	�


�
�
�

�

���
��

��
��
�

��
		

�

	�

��
��
)�

E
��
��

#

�B
��
��

�#

��-


�
� 
�

,�
�;

��
��

"�
���

��
��

Page 81



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
 C

o
u

n
ci

l -
A

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 (
IS

A
 2

60
)

22

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

.
�
�
�

2
�
�

.
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

!
�
�
�
 
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

.
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

,�
'
��
��
�-
��!
��
��
��
��
�

!�
��
"�

��
��

"�
�	
�


��

�


��

�


�
��
�"
��

��
��
��

��
��


��
�


��
��
��
��
���
��


�"
�

��

�

��
��

��
��
��

�

#��
��

��
��
��

���
�"

�

�

��
��

���
��

�

��

��

�

�

��
��

�
��
��
�

��
��
��

)�

-
��

��
�
�

�
��
��
��

!�
��
�

�

��
���
��


��
��
��

"�
��


#�"
��

��
�"

��	
�


��

�


��
��
�


��
�

�#


���
��
�

�


�� 
	�


�

#�

��
"�
)��
4


���
��

��
�7

�

�� 
�

#��

��

�
��
�"

�

/��

�#�
���
��
��
��

�

#��

�"
�

�

��


��
��

��
��
*�

��
��

��
��
��
"�

��
��

"�
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
�


��
��
��
 )
��(

�

"�
��


��
���

�

"�
���

��
��
��
��
��
#


��
��
�

��
��
�

��
��
��
.�

���
��
#


��
��
�#�


�
���

��
H
H
;
5
��
��
��

�
 �
�


�
	�

��
��


 

��
�
��

��
��
���

��
	�


�
�
�

�

��
�

�"
�

��

�

��
��

��

�
��

��
��

�	
��
��
��
��

��
�


���
��
�

��
��
��
��
��

��

���
�
��

�

�


���
��
�

��


�	
�


��
��
���

��
��
�


��
�

)��
0


�
*�
�
���

���
��
��
��
��

��
�
�

		
���

�

��
�

�"
��
��

��
��

��
�*

��
��


��
�


��
��
��
��
��
#

��

��
�

��
�
���
�"
��
��

��
��
"�
��
�
��

��
��
.�

���
��
#


��#
��
��
��

 �
��

/�

��
��
��
�
�

�
���
��
��

"�
��
��
�

�

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
 

�
�


#
���

��
��
��
��
��

��
��
�"

�

���

�"
�

�

�

�"
��
��

��
���

*�
�)
��E


�
��

��
/��

��
��


��
�##

��
��

��

��

��
��
��

	

��
��
�

��

#
���

��
�


���
��
�

��

#�
��

��
��
��

��

�"
�

��

�

��
�

���

��
��

�#�
��
��
��

�
��
��
�

��
��
��

��

��
�	
�


3�
��
�1�

��
��





�
	�

��
�	

�

�

��
� 

���
	�

��
�

��
��
��
#��

��
�"
��

��
�"

��	
�


��

�


��
��

��
��
�
�

��*
��
 �
�

�"
��

�
��
��

��
)��
�

$
�


�	
��

��

�

��
��

��
�

�

	

��
��
�!

��
��

��
��
��

,�
�-

��
��

��
��

��

>�


��

�
��
���
��
��
��
��

�
���
�


�
�

��
��
��
��
� 
��
��



�#�
��

��

�

+�

�

�
��

�� 
��




��

+�

�


�
��
�"
��
��
��
��

��
�

�

��
�


��
��
��
��
���

� 
��
��
��
��



�#�
��

�
�


��
��
�� 

��
��

��
��

�

��
��

�

��
��
��
�


��
��
��

"�

�


)�

-
��

��
�
�

�
��
��
��

;
��
��
��
��

��
3�
�/
�@

##
��
��

��


�
��
��
��
��
��

�

���
��
��
��
�


�#

��
��
�

��

#

�(
�


	�
��
 �
(�
��

��
��

��
�
.�

�	
�
��

���



��

/�

��
��
��
�

�

/��

�
��

���
��
���

��
��
�


��
�

�

��
��

��4
5
��
"�


�

)��
0


�
*�

��

��

���
��

 �
�


�
�
��

��
��

�

���
��
��
��
��

�

#��


�
�
��

�� 
��




��

��

��
	�

�	
��
��
�

��
#

��

��
	�
��

��
��
��


��

#

���
��
��

�
��
��
��


�
 �

#

�E
��
���

��
��




��

�#

�

�
��
��

	�
���
��

��
/��

��
�




�
��
��
��
�


�#

��
��
�

�


��
��

��
"�

��
��

��
��
�

���

��
��

��
3�
��
��
�


��
�

���

��
��
��
�
��

���
���

�
��
��
��

��
�

�)�

�

�

	

��
��
��

��

�

��
��

� 
��
��

�
4�
��

��
��
-

��
��

��
�

,�
�-

��
��

��
��

��

:�
�
��

��
�'
��
�"
��
��
��
�
��
!�
��
��8
��
��
�

9�
��
��

��

�
���
��
�

!�
��
�

�

��
��/
���

�	
��
��
��

�

�	
��

���
�

�

�

��
��
���


�
��

��/
�
�


�
��
���

3�



�


��

�

�

��
�


��
���

��
��
��
��

��
��


#��
��

�2

��
��

�

�

�
���
��
��


��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��

��
��
���
�


�

�

��
�"
��
��
�


�	

�

��
��

��
���

��
���

��

��

��
��

��
���
 �
��
�


��
�

�

#��

��
��
�


��
��
�)�

E
��
��

�
��
��
��

!�
�
�

�
���
�"
��
��
3�



�


�
��
�
���

��

�

��
��
���


�
��

���
��

��
��
��
��

��
��

��
��
��

��

�

���

��
��

�3
��

)�

�

�

	

��
��
��

��

�

��
��

� 
��
��

�
4�
��

��
��
-

��
��

��
�

,�
�-

��
��

��
��

��

Page 82



� � �

�
� �

�
�
�
6 
��
�
�3
��
�
��
��
�
6�
�
6

�
�

�
K
��
��

��
$
��
��
�!

�

��

�

��
%
&
�'

'(
)��

���
���

��

��

�

��
��

�)
�

� D$
��
��
�!

�

��

�

�D

��
��
�


�$
��
��
�!

�

��

�

��
%
&
�'
'(

/��
���
�
���

��
���

"�
���
 �
	�

��
��

�

��
	)
�

� $
��
��
�!

�

��

�

��
%
&
�'
'(

��

��
��

��
"�

��#
���

��
���

��
�$

��
��
�!

�

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
�

��

��'
��
��+
$
��
��
�!

�

��

�

��

��
��
��

��
�

��

�+�
)�$

��
��
�!

�

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
�

��

���
��

���
��
�
��

"�
��#

���

��

��
��

�
��
��


�
��
�
��
��
	�

��
��

�

��
	)
�

��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

�"
 �
��
��
�
��

"�
��#

���

��

��
�	

��
��

��
� 
)�

� !�
�
�

	�

	




��
��


��
��

��
" 

�$
��
��
�!

�

��

�

��
%
&
�'
'(

��
��

��

���

��
���
��

	

��
�

�
�

"7
��

���

�
��
��
��

�

���

��

�/
�

��
��
��

��
���

��
�
�

��
��
��

#
��
�
	

��
�#�
��
�


��
��
��
J�
��
��
��


#��
��

��
��

��
�)�

� !�
��
��
��
��
��
��

�

�.
�


��
��
�
���

��
���

�
�
	�


	




��
��
��
��
�
�

�


�
��

�

��
��

�

#��
��

���
��"

�

�
)
��

���
��
#

��

��
�

��
��
�

��
�
�

	�

	




��
��


���
��
�

��

�
�
���

�� 
�#


���
��

�	
��
	



�
�

#��

��

�	

�

��




��
��

��
�


���

�
�"
��
��

�
�


�
��
�

��
� 

�

��
��
�

	�
��
��

��

���

�

���
�	

��



��

�


�
��
�#�


�
�$

��
��
�!

�

��

�

��
%
&
�'
'(

�

Page 83



Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank



� � �

��
��

��
�	
�

���
�

��
�

���
�

��
��

��
��	


�

�

�

��

���
��

��
�

�
� � � �
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
	


�
�
�

� � ��
Agenda Item 11Page 85



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l –
P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
R

ev
ie

w
 –

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

1

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

�
��

��
��

�

��
�
��

�
���
��
��
�
�
��
��

��

��
��
��
��
�

���
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
�

��

��
�
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��

��

 
�

 

�
��
��
!�
��
�

�"
�

�

Page 86



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l –
P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
R

ev
ie

w
 –

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

1
1

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

� ��
�

��
��

���
��

��






�

��

�
�


��
��

��
��



�
��

��
��

��
���

���
�

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

��

���
��

���
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��


��

�

��
���

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
� �

�
!�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��



��

��"
#�

� 
��$

��
��

��
��



��

���
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
%�

��
��

�&�
��

��
��

��

�

�

��

���
���

�

��

�

��

�
��


�
��

��



��

��

�

��

��
�


��
��

��
��

��

��

���
��

���
��



��

���
��

���
���

��
��




�

��

�

�

���

��
���

��
���

��
��

��
�


���
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

 ��
'

��
���

��
��

�
��

��
�


��
���

�

���

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
���

��

�

��




�

�

��
��

��
��


��
�


��
��

���
��

��
��

���
��

��
���

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��


(
��

���
���

��
��


�
���

��
��

 �

�


�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�




��

!�
��


�
��






��

�

��
��

��
�


��
��

���
�


��
��

��
��%

�
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��






��

��

�

���
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

�

��

��
���

��
��

���

�

���
���

��
(�

��
�


���
��

��

�

��
�


��
��

���
��

��
��

��

�

��





��


�
��

� 
��!

��
��

��
��

���
�


��


�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��




(
��

��
�


��
��

�

��

��
���

��
��

��
��


�
��






��

�

��
��


�
��

�

���

�

���

��
��

��
��

��



��
���

���
��

��
��

 �)
��

��
��

&��
��

��
���

���
��

��
��

���
���

��
��

���
��

���
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
�

��
��

�






��

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
���

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��

�


�
���

�

��

���
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��




��

���
��

��
��

��
���

��
 �

�


��


��
��
�

�
�
�


�
�


�
�
��


�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�

!�
��

�
��

��
���

�

���



��

��
��

���
���

��
��

��
�



�

�

�

��

��

��


�
��



��

��
 ��

*�
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

��

��
�


��
��

�
��


�
��

��
���

�

��

�

�


��
���

��
��

���
��

���
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

� �
�)

��
��

��
&�


���
��

��
��

��
��

��
���


�
��

��
���

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

���
��

��

�

��
��

�
��

��
�







��
�


���
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

���
�


��
��

�

���


�
��

��
��

��
��

� 
��'

��
���

��
��

���
��

�

��

���
�


���
��

��
�


��
�


��
�


��
���

��

��


�
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��




���

��
��

���
�


��
���

��
 ��

!�
��

�
��

��
���

�
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

�

���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

���
��

���

�

��
��


�
��

��

�

��
��


�
��

���
��

��
���



��


�
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
���

���
��

�

�(

���
�


���
��

��
��


�
���

�

���


�
��

��
��

���
�


 �

�
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

Page 87



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l –
P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
R

ev
ie

w
 –

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

1
2

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

��
��


�
�
�
��


�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

� '
��

�"
#�

#%
��

�

��

���
��


�
���

���
��



��

��
��

���
��

��
��

���
+��

��
�

��
��

��,
���

��
���

��
��

��

�

��
��

�
��

��
�


��
��

���
��

�

��


�
��



��

��
���


�
���

��
�

��
��

���
�


���
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�




�


�
�


��
��


��

�

��



��
��

��
���

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��


��
�


��
�


���
��

��
��

��
���

���
��

��
��

� �
�

!�
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

���
���

�

��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��-
���

��
��

��
�



�

�

�

��

��

�

�

��

�

��

��
���

.�

•
��

��
��

��

�

��
�


��
��

��

�

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
�



�

�

�

��

��

��


�
��



��

��
�


��
���

��
�


��
���

�
��

��
��

���

�

��
��

��
��

��

��

�


�


�
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
�

���
��

��
��

��
��


��
�

��

��

�

��

�/�

�

��
�

•
��

��
���

��

�

�

���

��
��


��
��

�

��

� �

�
�


�
�
�

��
�
�
�
��
��


��
�

� '
��

���
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

���
��

�
��

��
��-

���
��

��
��

�

��


�
��



��

��
���

���
��

��
��

�


�


�
�


��
��


�
��

�
��

��
��

���
��

�

��

���
���

��
��

���
��

��
���

�

��

��
� 

��0
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

���
�

��
��

�

��

��
�

��
��

��
���

��
��


�
��

��
��




�


�
��

���
�


��
��

�

��

��
�

���
���

��
�

��
��

��-
���

��
��

��
�




�


�
�


��
���

��
��

��
��

� �
�0

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
��



��

���
���

��
��

��

���

��
��

��
���

���
�




�


�
�


��
���

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
���


�
��

��
�

��
��

���
��

���
�.

�

•
�

�

��

��
��

��


�

��
��

��
��

�%�
��

��
��

���
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

���
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��




�

�

�

��

���
��

��
��

��
�/�


�
��

•
�

��
��

�

��

�1
��

�




��

�

��
��

��
�


��
��

�%�

�

��
��

�






��

��
���

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

�

��

��
�

�

�

���
��

��
��

���
��

��
��



��

��
��

�

��

��
�


��
�"

��

�

��
��

���
���


�
���

��
��

��
��


�
���

��
��

 ��

2�
���

�
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

&��
��


�
��

��
��

���
�



�

�

�

��

���
�


���
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

�

(�

�

�


��
��

��
�


���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

���
��

�3
���

��
��

��
�&

��
��

��
���

�

��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
 ��

2�
���

�

��

��
��

��


�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
.�

•
�

��
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

��


�

��
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
���

�

��

��
�


��
��

�
���

���
��

�
��

��
��-

��
��


�
���

��
��

��
�



�

�

�

��

���
��

��
��

��
�/�

•
��

�
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

���
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
���

�

�


��
��

�

��

��
��



��

��

�


��
��

/�

�

��

•
�

�

���

��
���



��

�

��

�

���

��
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
��



��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�&�

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��

�

���
��

��
��

�


�


�
�


��
���

��
��

��
��

���
��

��

�

��
��

� 
�

2�
���

��
�


��
�




��


�
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

.�

•
�

��
��

��
���

��

�

��





��


�
��

��
��

�

��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

���
�


��
��

�

��

��
�

���
���

��
�

��
��

��-
���

�

���

��
��

��
��



�

�

�

��

���
��

��
��

��
�/�

•
���

��
�&�

�
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

���
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

��

�

��
�


��
/�

•
��

�
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

���
��

���
��

���
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

���
��

���
�


�

��

��
��


��
��

�

��

��

�


�
��

�/�

�

��

•
�

�

���

��
���



��

�

��

�

���

��
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��


��
�

��
�

�

��

���

�

��
��

��
��

��
��


��
��

��
��

�

��

���
��

��
��

�

��

�"
 �

"
*�

��
��

��
���

��

�

��
�


�(
��

��
��

�

Page 88



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l –
P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
R

ev
ie

w
 –

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

1
3

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

!�
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
���

��
��

���
�

��
�.

�

•
��

��
��

��
���

��
�


��
�


���
��

��
�
�

��
��

��
���

��
��

��

�

���
��

��
��

�


�


�
�


��
��


�
�


��
�


��
��

/�

•
��

��
��

��
�

���
���

���
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
�


���
��

��
��

��
�


���

�

�

��

�

��

��
/�


��
��

•
��

��
��

���
��

�

��

���
��

��
�

�

��

���
��

��
��

�
���

��

�

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
 �

�


�
�
�

��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

� 4
��

��
���

��
�

��
��

��
�1

��
���

��

�

���
�&

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
���

��
���

���
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

��
��

��
��

��

�

��
�


���
���

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��

��


�
��



��

��
���

���
��

��
�

��
��

�

�&

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

���
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
 ��

'
��

�5
�	

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��"

#�
#%

��
�


���
��

��
��

��
���

�
���

��
��

��
��

�

��

&��
��

�

��

&��
��

��
���

��
��

��
 �

 
�
�
�

��
��
��
��
�
�


��
�

� !�
���

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

���
�


��
���

���
��

�
��

��
���

��
���

��




�
��

��
�


���
��

��
��

�

��

��
�

�
��

(�

�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��


��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
���

���
��


�
���

��
�

���
��

���
��

��
���

���
���

��
��

��
��

��
� �

'
��

���
��

��
���

��

�

���
��


��
��

���
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
���


�
��

��
��

��
��

��

��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��


���
��

��
��

��
���

��
���

���



��
��

�

��

��
���

�




�

�

�

��

��

��


�
��



��

��
���


�
�


��
��

��
��

��
 ��

!�
��

�
��

��
���

��
��

��
�


��
��

���
��

��
��

��
�

�

��

��

�

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


��
���

��





��

�

���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

�

�

��
��

��
���



��

�

��

���
��



&��

��
(�

��
���

���
�

��
��

��
�


���
��


��
��

��

�

�

��

��
��

�

��

 �

0
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
���

��
���

���
��

��
��

���
�


��

��

���
���

��

�

��
���

��
��

��
�


�

�&�

��
�

��

��

���
��

�&�
��

���
��


�
��

���
��

&��
���





�

�&
�


��

���

��
���

��
���

��
���


�
��

��
��

���
��

��
�


��
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
�

���
��

���
���

��
��

��
 �

�
�
�
�


�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

� 0
��

�
��

��
���

(�
���

���
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��

�

��
��

��
���

��
�


��
���


�
��

�

��

��
�%

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
���

��
��

��
��

���
��

(�
��

���
��

�
��

��
��-

���
��

��
��

� �

!
��
�
��
"
�


��
�

�
� 
#
�$
$
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
	


�
�
�

� � � �
�

�

Page 89



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l –
P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
R

ev
ie

w
 –

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

1
4

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

%
&
�
��
��
��
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

� �
��
��
�
�

��
�
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

� !�
��

�
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

�


�


�
�


��
��


��

�

��



��
��

���
�"

#�
#&

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
���

��
��

�

��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��



�

�

�

��

���
��

��
��

��
� �

�!
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��



��

��
��

��
�


�

��

��
���

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
�


�
��

��
��

�


�

�

��

��

�

��
��

�

�

��





��

���
���

���
��

��
���

��
���

��

���

��
��

��
��

���
���

���
�

 ��
!�

��
�

��
��

���

�

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

�

�

��

�

���

��
��







��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
�6


��

�

��
"#

��
 �

!�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��


��
��

�

���

��
��

���
�

��
��

���

�

��

�

���
���

��
�

�
��

��
���

���
��

��
�6�

��
�"

#�
� 

��)
��

��
��

&�

���

��
���

�

�&

�

�


��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

���
��


�
��

���
��

��
���

��
��

�
��

��
��

���
���

��
��

���
�'

��
��

��
�"

#�
� 

��1
��


���
��

��&
���

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
�




�


�
�


��
���

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��

��

��
��

 �0
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

���
���


�
���

��
�

��
��

���
�


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��


�
��

��
���

��

�

��

�

���
���

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
&��

��
��

���
��

���

�

���
���

�
�


��
��


�
���

��
��

�

��

���
��

��
���

��
���

���

�

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

�

��

��

�

�

��

��
��

��
��

7�
���

��

�

��

�

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
���

��
���

���
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

� �
�1

��

���

��
���

��
���

���
��

�

��

&��
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
���

���
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
 �

!�
��

�
��

��
���

�

���

��
��

��
��

�

���


�
��

��
��

��
��







��
��

�

��

�

�


��
���

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

���
���

��
���

��
��

���
��

��
��

���
��

��
���

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

� 
��

�
��

��
7�

��
���

&��
��

��
�


��
�


��
�


��
���

���
��

��
��

�


�


�
��

���
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

�

�


�
��

��
&��

��
��


�
��

��
��

�

��

��
&��

��
��

��
��

��
��

� �

'
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
��


�
��
��

1
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��



�

�

�

��

��

��

��

�

��

���

��
��







��
��

��
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

��

�

�
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��







��
��

���
��

��
���

��



���
���

���
��

��
���

��

�

��

��

��
�


�
���

�


�

�

���

�
��

��
���



�


��
�


��
��

��
��

�� 
�

� �


�
��
�
��


��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

� !�
��

��
��

��
��



�

�

�

��

���
��

��
��

��
��


��
��

�

��

��
��

���
��


�
��

��
�


���
���

���
��

���
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��


��
���

��
��

���
���

���
�&�

��

�

��
��

���
��

��
��

�&�
��

��



��
�


���
��

��
7�

���
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�



�
��

�


�


�
�


��
��


��

�

��



��
��

 ��
!�

��
���

���
�

��
��

��
��


�
���

��
��

�
��

���
��

��
��

���

�

��
��

���



��
�


��
�


���
��

��
��

��
��


��
��

��
��

���
���


�
��


���
��


�
��

��
��

��
�


� �
�*�

�

�

��
���

�&
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��



��
��

�
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
���

�


�

��
��

��



��
��

�

��

���
��

��
���

���
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
���

���

�

��
��

��
��

��

�

�
��

��
��

� �
�!

��
��


�
��

���

�

��
��


�
�


��
�




��

��

�

��
��

��
�


��
���

��
7�

���
��

��
��


���




�
��

��
��

��
��

��

�

���
��

��
��

��
 ��

!�
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

���
�


���
�


��
�


���
��

��
��

��

���

��
��


���

�

��
���

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

&��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


��
���

��
���

���
��

��
���

��
�


��
�


���
��

��
��

��
��


�
� 

�

1
���

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

���
��

��
��

�

��

�

��


��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
&��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
���

��
��

��
���


�
��


���
��

��
��

� �
��

��
��

7�
��

���
���

��
�
�

��

�

��
���

��

�

��
���

�

�

��
�

��
��

���
��

��
��


�
��

�

��

�

���

��
(�

 ��
2�

���
�




��

�&
��

��
���

��
8�

���
���

��
��

9�
��

��
��

�:
��

��
��

:
��

��
��



��

��+
� 

� 
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�*

;1
��

�

��

��:
%�

��
���

7�
��


�
��

�, 
��!

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

���

�

��9
!�

��
:

��
��

��
:

��
��

��



��
���

�

��

�+:
,��

�

��

��
���

��
��

��
��

�

��

���
���

��
�

��
��

��
���

��
��

��

�

��
�


�&�
��

��
��

��

�

<�
��

��
��

���
��


�
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

�

�&�

��
�


��
��

��
���

��
���

��
���

�

���

��
�


��
��

��
���

�

�-

 ��
!�

���
�


��
�


��
���

��

�

��

���

��
��

��
�


��
�



(
��

���
�



��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��

�

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
 ��

*�
��

��
��

��
�

&��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

�

��


��
��

���
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


��
���

��
��


�
�


���
��

��
��

��


�


�
��

���

�

��

�

���
�


��
��

���
��

��
��


�
��

 ��

8
:

��

�

��
��

���
��

��
��

Page 90



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l –
P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
R

ev
ie

w
 –

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

1
5

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

'
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
��


�
�	
��

�
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

�

��

�&
��


��
�


��
�


��
���

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
���

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��


�
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
 �

� $
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�

��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

� '
��

���
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

�


�


�
�


��
���

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
���


�
���

��
�


��
�

��



��
��

��
���

��

�

��
��

��
��


���
(�

��
��

7�
���



��

��
��

��
���


�
���

��
�


��
�


��
�


��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��

��

��
��

 ��
2�

���
�




��

��
��

��
���

�
��


�
��

���
���

��

�

��
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

�


�

��
�


�
��



��

��
��

��
��

��
��


��
���

��
�


��
��

�

��

��
 ��

1
���

&��
��

�

��

�%�
��

��
�


��
��

��
���

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
&��

��
��


�
���

��
��

��
��

���
���

�&�

�

��
��



��

��
��

�
���

��

�

(�
��

��
��

��
��

�


�

��
�&

�
��

��
�


��9
�

�

���

���
��

��
��

�


�


�
�


��
�- 

��!
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��




�

��
��

�

��

���
���

��
��

�
�


�
�


���






�

��
��

��
��


���
��

���
��

�&�
��

��

�

��
��

���
��

�

��

��
��

���
�&

��
�


��

��

���
��

��
��

���
�




�


�
��


�
��

��
��

�&�
��

���
�

��
��

��
��

��



��
��

��
�


���
��

��
��


�

�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
 �

!�
��

��
��

��
��



�

�

�

��

���
��

��
��

��
��


��
�"

=�
�


��
���

��
��


�
��

��
��


�
��


�
�


��
��

��



��
���

��
��

��
��

�

��


��
��

��
��

��
��

�

���

��

�

��
���


�
�


��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

��

�

� 
��'

��
��

��
�

���
���


�
�

��
��

�
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��



��
��

��

�

��
�


��
�


��
���


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

�


�

��
��


�
��

��
7�

���



��
��

�

��

��
��

�

���

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
&��

��
��

��
��

��
�



(
��

��
�


��

�

��
���

��
��


�
�


��
�


�
��

� 
��*

��

�

��
���

�&
��

��
��

���
��

���

�

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��

�

���
��

�

��

��
���


�
���

��
�


��
��

��
�


��
&��

��
��

�


(

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
���

��

��

��
���

��
��


�
��

�
��

���
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��

�

���
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


��
���

��
��

���
��

���
�>

� 
���

*�
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
���

��
�&

���
��

��
���


�
���

(�
��


�
��

��
��

��
�



�

�

��
���

���
��

��
�

��
���

�
��

��
��

��

���

��



��
��

��
���

��



��
���

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


��

���

��
�


��
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��



��
��

�

� 

���

'
��

�

��&

��
��

��
��

��
��

���

�

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

���
��


�
��

���
���

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
���

��
��


��
��

�

��


��
���

���
��

���
���

��
��

��

�

��
���

�


(

��
��

���
��

�




��
�


��
��

 ��
0

��
��

��
��

���
�


���
��

��
��

��
���


�
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
&��

��
���

��
���

��
���


�
��

��
�

��
��

�






��


�
��


�
��

��
���

��



���
�


���
��

��
��

��
 ��

!�
��

�
��

��
���

��
��

��
���

��
���

��

���



��

�




��
��

�?�
�


�%
��

��
?��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��

��

���
�(

���
��

�

�(

���
�


���
��

��
��

��
��



�

�

��
���

��
��

��
�

��
�


 ��
'

��
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
���

��
��

���
���

��
���

�

��

�




�&
���

���
�




��

��

�

��

�

&��
��

��
�

��
��

���
��

��
��

���
��

��
�


���
��

���
��

��
��

�

�(

��
��


�
��

��

�

��
��

�

��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
���


�
��

��
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

�
���

��

�

��
� 

��

'
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
��


�
�(
��

�
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

�


�


�
�


��
���

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

���
��

�

��

���
��


��

�

��
��

�
��

���
��

��
���



� 

��4
��

���
��

�

�(

���
�


��
��

��
��

�


�


�
��

���
��




(

��
��

�

��

��

�

��
�


��
�


��
��

��
��

���
&��

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
�


���

�

��

�

��

�

��
��

��
��

��

�

��
�

��
���

� 
�

� ��
&


�&
�
�
�
�
��


��
�
�
�
�


��
��
�
�&
��
�
�
�

� !�
��

�
��

��
���

��
��

��
���

���
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��

��

��

�

��
��

���
��

��
��


���
��

�
���

�
��


(
��

��
��

��
�


��
���


�
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��






��
��


�
��

� 
��!

��
��

�




��
��


�
��

��
��


�
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��



�


��
�


��
���

�7
��

��
��

��
�

��





��

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
���

� �

!�
��

�

��

��
��


�
��

��
��

�*�
!�


�
��

��
��

���
��

��
�


��
���

��
��

���
��

��
��

��

��

��
��

���
��

���
�


���
�



��

���
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
 ��

*�
���

��

��

��

�

���
�


��*
�

!�
�


��
��


�
��

��
�


��
��


(�
��

��
��

�

�

��
��

��

��


��
�


���
���


�
��

�
���

��
�


��
��

��
��

 ��
*�

�*�
!�


�
��

��
���

��
��

��
��


�
���

��
��

��
��

&��
��

��
�

���

�

���
(�

��

�

��

��

���
7�

��
��

���
���

��
��

��
��

���
7�

��



��
��



�
��

��




�
��

��

�

���
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��

��

��
��

�

��

���
���

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
���



��

�

��

��
���

��
��

� �
�!

��
��


��
��

���
��

���
��

���
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��


�&
���

���
��

���
��

�7
�


���
�&

��
���

���
��

���
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
 �

2�
���

�

��

�


�

��
���

��
��

��
�&�

��
��

*�
!�

�

��

��

�

��
��

�


�

��
��

��
�


���
��

��



��
��

 ��
)

��
��

��
&�


�
�


�(
��

���
��

��
��



��

���
��

��
���

���
���


�
���

��
��


�
���

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
� �

��

@
��

��
��

��
��

�


�


�
�


��
���

��
��


�
��

���
��

�
��

��
��

��
���



��

��
�


��



��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

�� 
��

*�
��

�

��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
�


��
���

��
��



��

��
��

��
��

��
��

� 
���

��
��

��
��

���
���

��
���

��
��

���
��

���
��

�
��

��
���

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��


�
���

��
��

��
���

���
��

��
��



��

��
��

��

�

��
�


��
���

��
���

�
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

�
���

���

�

��
���

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
 ��

!�
��

�
��

��
��-

���
��

��
��

�


�


�
�


��
��


�
�


��
�


��
��

��
���

��
��



��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

�
���

���

�

��
�


���
��

��
��

���
��

��
� �

!�
��

�

�


��
��

���
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
&��

��
��


�
�)

�
&��

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

���

��
��



�
��

��
��

���
��

��
�


��

��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�7
��

��
��

&��
��

��

�

���
��

�



��

�

��
��

��
���


�
���


�
���

��
�

���
��

�

��

��
 ��

!�
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
�

��
��

���
���

��
��

��
��

�

��

���
��(

��
��

��
��

�

��

���
��

��
���

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
�


���
��

��
��

��
� �

�

Page 91



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l –
P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
R

ev
ie

w
 –

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

1
6

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

'
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
��


�
�)
��

��
��

��
��



�

�

�

��

���
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

7�
���

���
��

�

���

���
��

��
�


��
���

��(
��

�
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
�&�

��
��

�

��*

�!
�


��
�)

�
&��

��
��

��
���

��
��


�
� �

� '


��
�

��
�
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

� 	

�

��
��

���
��

���
��

��
��

�
��

��
���

�

��

��
��

���
��

��
��

�


�


�
�


��
���


�
(�

 ��
1

��
�


��
���

��
��

���
��

��

��

���
7�

���
��

��
�


��
���

���
���

��
��

���
��

��
��

���
��

%�
��

��
��

��
��

�&�
�

��
���

��
��

��
���


�
��

��
��

��
��



�

�

�

��

��

��


��


�

���

�

���
���

��
���

��
��


�
���

��
� 

��'
��

��
���


�
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��	


�

�

��
&��

��
��

��
��

���
��

���
��

��
��

��
��


(
��

��
��

��
��



�

�

�

��

���
��

��
��

��
���

���
��


�
��


�
���

���
��

���
�


��
��

��

�

���
��

 �

��
��

��
��



�

�

��
��


��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��

�

��
��

���
��

�
��

��
���

��
��

���
��

��
���

��

�

�

��

��
�


�
��

��
��

��
��

 ��
;�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�



�

�

��
���

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

�

���

��




�
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
�


���
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

�

��

��
�


��
�



�

�

��
���

�

��

��
���

��
��

��

�

�

��

�



��
���

��
���

7�
���

��
��


�
�


��
���

��
��

��
���

���
���

��
��

��
�



�

�

�

��

���
��

��
��

��
� �

!�
��

�

�(

��
���

�

���

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

�


�


�
�


��
���

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

���
�


�
���

(�
��


�
���



��

��
���

��
���

�

��


��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

���
���

��
���

��
��


�
��

��
��


��
7�


�
��

��
�(

���
��

�
��

�

��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
���

��

���



���

��
��



��

���
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
�


(�
�

��
�


��
��


�
�


��
��

��
�


���
 ��

0
��

��
���

��
���


�
���

��
�

��
��

���
�

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
�


�

��

��
��

�

���

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

���
���

��
��

��
�



�

�

��
���

��
��

���
���

��
��

��
���

��

��

��
�


�
��

��
��

���
���

��
��

��
��

�


�


�
�


��
���

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
� 

��'
��

��
�

���
���

��
�

��
��

���
���

(�
�

��
��

���
��

��
��

���
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�


�


�
�


��
���

�

��

��
��


�
��

��
���

��




�

�

�

��

���
��

��
��

��
��

 ��

!�
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��




��

�

���
��

��
��

��

��

��
��

���
���


�

�

���
���

�


�


�
��


�
��

��
���

��
�

��
��

��
��

 ��
1

���



�

��

��
��

���
��

���




��

�

��
��

��
��


(
��

��
�


��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��




�

�

�

��

���
�


��
��

��

�

��

�

��
�

��
���

7�
��

��
��

��
�



�

�

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

� 
��!

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

���
��

��




���
��

��
��

��

�

��



��
���

��
��

�

��


��
��


�
��

�

��


�

�

��
 �

'
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
��


�
�*
��

�
��

��
�

���
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
�



�

�

��
� �

��
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

���
��


��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
���

�




�

�

��
��

��
��

��
���

���
��

��
��

��
 ��

�
��

���
��

���
��

��
��

���
���

���
���

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�




�

�

��
���

��
��

��
��

�

���

� 
�

� ��


�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��


�
��
�
&
��
�
�
�

� !�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��



��

�

���
���

��
��

��
���

��

���

��
��

��
��

���



��
�


��
�


���
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
�


��
��

�
��

��
��

���
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

���
�&�


�
���

���
��

���
���

��
��

���
��

���

�

�&�
�


��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

 ��
!�

���
���

��
��

��
���

��

�

��
��

��
��


�
���

� 
���

��
��

�
���


�
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
�


��
���

��
��

��

��

��
�


��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��



��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��

�

���
��

��
��

�


�


�
��

���

�

��
��

��
���


�
��

� 
�

'
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
��


�
�+
��

�
��

��
��

��

�

���
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��


��
�


��
�


���
��

��
��

��
��


��
��

��
��

�

(�

��

�

���
���

��
���

�
��

��
��

��
��

��


�


�
�


��
���

��
��

��
��

� �

� ��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
&


��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�

� !�
��

�
��

��
���

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
���

���
�


��
���

��



��

�

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

� �
�!

��
��

���
��

��
��


��
�

��
��

�

�(

���
���

��
�


��
�


���
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
���


�
���

��
(�

��
���

��
���

�

��

���

�

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
� �

�!
��

��

�

��

���

��
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

���
���

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��


��
�


���

(

��
��

��
��

���
��


�
��

���
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��

��

���
���


�
��

��
�


���
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

���
��

��
 ��

0
��

��
���

��
���


�
���

��
�

��
��

���
�

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
�


��
���

�

��


�
��

��
��

���
��

��
�



�
��

��



��
��

�
��

��
�&

���
���

�




��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

(�
��

��
��

��
��+

��
��

�

��?

)
��

��
�


��
�

!�
��

�

��

�1
��


�
���

�1
��

��
?,�

��
�


��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

�


�


�
�


��
���

�

��

��
��

��
��

�






��

 ��

'
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
��


�
�,
��

�
��

��
��

��

�

���
��

��
��

�

��

�

��

�(
��

���
��

��
���

��



��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��

��

��
���

�

��


�
��

�

�

��
��

��

��

��
 �

�

Page 92



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l –
P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
R

ev
ie

w
 –

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

1
7

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

�


�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�




��

� !�
��


�



��
���

��
���

��
��

��
��


�
���

��

��

��
��

��
��

�

��

���
��

��

���

�

��

��
��

��


�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

��



��
�


��
��

�
�
��

��



���
���

���
��

��

�

��
���

�

���

�

��

��
�


��

���

��
��


��

��

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
 ��

!�
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
���

��
��


�
��

���
�


�A
=#

#&
##

#�
��

�A
�&

8#
B&

##
#�

��
���

�
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

���
��

���
��

� 
�

!�
��

��
��

��
���


�
��

��
��

���
��

���
��

���
��


�
��

��
��

��
��


�
���

��
��

��
�



�

�

�

��

���
��

��
��

��
� �

�
0

��
�


��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
��




�


�
��

��
��

� �
�!

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

�

���

��
�


��
��

�

��

��
���


�
�


��
��

�(
���

���
���

��



���
��

��
���

���
�

��
 ��

!�
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��



�

�

��
�


�

��

��
��

�

�

�

��

��
��

���
���

��
��

�

��

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��

�

���
��


�
�


��
�


���
���


�
��

��
��

��
��

��

�

���

�

���
���

��
��

��





���

��
���

���
��

��
��

��
��


���
��

��
��

��
� �

�
!�

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
��(

���
���

�

��

��
��

�
���

��
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

 ��
!�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

��

��"
#�

��

�

��
�


�
��

��
�


��
��

�

�


��
��

���
��

��
��

��
 ��

!�
��

��
��

��
���


�
��

��
��

��
�


��
���

��
��

�
���

�

�


��
��

��
��


�
��

�

��

���
��

���
��

��
���

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
�


�

��

��
���

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
�







� 
��*

��

���

���
���

��
���

��
���

(�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��


�

��

�
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��

��

��

���

�

���

��

�

���
��

�

���

��
��


���
���

��
���

�

��

�

��



�

�

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
��



��


�
��

��

�

��

�

���
��

��

�


�
��

���
��

��
� �

�!
��

���
��

��
��

���

�

���
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

���
��

���
��

��
�


���
�


��
��

�

��

��

�

��
��

��

��

�

��

��
��

���
��

��
�


(�
� 

�

1
��


���
��

���
��

���
���

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

��

��
��


�
���


�
��

��
��

&��
��

��
��

��
��

��

�

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��



��

&��
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

%�
��

��
�&�

��
��

��
��


�
�


��
���

��
��



��

�

��

��
�
�

��
��



��


��
�


��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��


��
���

��
���

��



��
���

��
���

���
��

��




�
��


�
�


�
��

��
���

��
���

��
��

��
�


���
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

���
*�

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��


��

�

��
��

��
��

��
� �

!�
��

��
��

���

�

��
���

��
��


��
�


��
���

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
���

��
��

���
���


�
��

��
��

(�
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


���
���

��
��

��
�


��
� �

'
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
��


�
�-
��

*

��

�

��

���
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

���
��

��
���

���
�


��
��

��
��

��
��


��
���


�
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�



�

�

��
� �

�

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� !�
���

��
��

��
���

��

��

��
��

��




��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�


�


�
�


��
���

��
��

��
� 

��*
���


�
�


�
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��



��
���

���
��

���
���

��
��

��
���

��



��
��

�

��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
�

��
��

��-
���

���
���

��
� �

�!
��

���
��


��
��

��
��

�
���

��
��

���

�

���
��

�
��

��
���

��
��

��
��


�
��

�
��

��
��


�
�


��
��




��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��


�


�
�


��
� �

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

�
���

��
���

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

��


�


�
�


��
���

�

��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
���

��
�


�
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

��

�
��


�
���


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
� �

1
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

��

��

�

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�



�

�

��
��


�
��

��
��

�(
��

�
�


��
��

���
��


�
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
�


��
���

���
��

���
��

��
��

 �

'
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
��


�
�.
��

��
��

��
���

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
�


��
��

���
��


�
��

��
���


�
��

��
��

���

�

���

�

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

���

��
��

��
��

� �

� �


��


��
��
��
�
�


�
�


�
�
��


�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

� !�
��


�
��






��

�

��
��

��
�


��
��

���
�


�


�

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
�







��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
�


��
��

���
��

��
���


�
���

���
��

(�
��

�

���

��
��


���

�

��
�


���
��

��
��

��
��



��

���
���

��
��

��
 ��

!�
��

��

�

��
��

��
��


�
��

�%�
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��


���
�


���
��

��
��

���
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

�


�

��
�


��
��

��
���

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
���

��
�

��
��

���
��

��
���



��

�


�

��
���

��
��

��
��

 ��
!�

��
��

��
�



�
��

��
���

��
�


��
���

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
�&

�	
��

�

��

�)
��

��
&�0

��
��

��
�)

��
��

�

��

�;

�

�

��

�)
��

��
 �

��

�

��
!�

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
���



��

���
���

���
��


�
��

��

��


��
��

��
��



�
��

���
��

��
��

��
 ��

��

�

��
��

��
���

��
���

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

�

��

���
���

��
���

��
���

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

�
�

��
��

� 
��!

��
��

���
��


�
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

���
���

��
��

��
��

��

�

���
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

���
�


�
�


�

�

��
��

C
�


��
�**

���
��

��
��

��

�

��
�


��
���

��
�

��
��

���
���

��
��

��
���

��
��

���
��

��
��


�
�


��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

�

���

��

�

��
��

��
���

��
 ��

!�
��


�



���
���

��
�


��
�




��


�
��

��
��

�

��

��
�


��
��

��

�

��
���

���
��

���
���

��
��

���
��

���
�


� 
��!

��
��


�
��

��
.�

•
��

��
��

���
��

��



��
���

���
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

���
���

��
��

�/
�

Page 93



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l –
P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
R

ev
ie

w
 –

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

1
8

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

•
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

�&�
��

��
�

��
��

��-
���


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��


��
��


�
(�

��
�



�
��

��

�

��
/�


�
��

•

�

��
��

��
�


��
�


���
��

��
��

��

��

���
��

�

��

��
��

��

�

���
��



� �

1
���

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

���
��

��
��



��

��
��

&��
��

���
���

��
���

���
��

��
���

��
�

��
��

�
�

��
��

�&
���

��
��






��
��

��
��

�
��

��
���

��
��


��
��

��
��


�
��


�




�
��

�

��

��

�

��
��

��
�


���
���

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

���

��
��

���

�

���
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
���

���
��

��
���

��

�

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
�


��
�!

�
�&

���
��

��
��

���
�


��
��

��
���

��
��


�
��

��
�


��
��

� �
��

�


��


��
��
��
�
�
�


��
��
�
�&
��
�
�
�

� !�
��

�
��

��
���

���
��

�(
��

��
��

���
���

��
��

�

��


��
��

��
��

��
��


�
���

���
��

(�
��

 �'
��

��
���

��
��

���
�

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
%�

��
(�

��
&��

��
��

���
��

��

�

��
D�

��
�(

���
��

��
��

��
��

#�



�

��

��
��

��
��


�
� �

�!
��

��
��

��
���


�
���

���
��

���

�

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

&��
���

���
��


���
�


���
��

��
��

��
���

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
���

��

�

�

��

��

��


�
��



��

��
���

��
�


��
���

���

�

���
��

��
���


�
��

��
��


�
��

��
���

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
��

���
��

��

�

��
���

��
��

(�
��

��
�


��
��

��
�


��
���

��
�


�

��

&�

��

��
��

��
���

&��
���

���
�

�

��

���
���

��
��

��
�


���

�

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
���


�
�


��
��

��
 ��

!�
��

�
��

��
���

�

���

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
�

��
���




��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
���

��
��)

�
&�*

�
!�


�
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

�
�

��
(�

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
 �

)
�

���
��

��
�


��
���

��
��

��
���


�
���

��
��

��

�

��
��

�
���

��
�


��
�


��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��


�
��

���
��

�
��

(�
��

��
��

���
�


��
��


��
���


�
�


��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

�

��

�

��

��
�


��
 ��

!�
���

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
�


��

�

��
���




�

��

�

��
� 

��!
��

�)
�

���
��

��
��

���
��

���
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
(�

��
��

�

��

�



��
���

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

���
�


��
��

��
��

�&
��

��
��

��

�

��

�

��
���

��
�


��
� 

��!
��

���

�

�
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

�

��

��
�


��
��

��

�

��
��


��
��

��
��


�
��

���
��

��
��

(�
��

��
&�


�
��

��
��

���
��

��
��


�
��

�

���

��
��

��
�


�(
���

��
��

��
�


���
���

��
�


��
�&

��
��

��
���

�

��


�
�


���

�

���
��

�
��

��
���




�

��
���

���
���

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
�


��
���

���
���

��
��


�
��


�
��

��
��

��

��

�

��

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�


�

��

��

���

�

��

��


�
� 

���

1
��


��
���

��
��

�

���

��
���

���
���

��
��

��
&�*

�
!�

���
��

��

��


�
���

��
��

��
��


�
���

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

� �
�)

��
��

��
���

��
1

��
�




��


�
��

��
��

�

��

��
���

�

��

��
��

��




��
��

�
��

��
���

��
�

��
��

���
��

��
��

���
���

�

��*

�
!�

���

�

��
��

��
��


���

�

���
���

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
�


��
 ��

!�
���



�


��
���


�
�*�

!�
�7

��
�


��
���


�
��

��
��

���
��

���
��

��
�


��
�


���
��

���
��

���
�


��

�

��
��

���
��



��

��
�


��
�


��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

��

���
�


��
��

 ��

�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
��


�
�
�
�

� !�
��


�
��

��
��

�
��

��
���

�

���

��
��

��
��

�

��

�

��

���
���

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��



��

���
�


���
���

��
��

�






� 

��!
��

��
���

��
��

�.�

•
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

���
��

��
��

��
���

��
��


�
�2


�
��


��
��


�
��

�
�


��
��

�)
��

��
/�


��
�

•
��

��
��

���



��
��


��
�


�

��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

�

���

��
��

��
��

(�
��

���

�

��
��

���
��

�
��

��
�

�
��

��
� 

�

!�
��

��
��


�
��

���

�

��
��

��
���

��
��

�

��

�

��

��
��

��
��

(�
��

��
��

���
�


��
��


��
��


�
��


��
��

��
��

��
���

�

���

��
�


��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
 ��

*�
���

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
��



��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

�

���

��
��

��
��

��
�


�

��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
(�

��
��

��
���

�

��

���
���

���
��

��

�

��
&��



��

��
��

�
�

��
(�

�

���

��
�


��
��

��
��

��

��

���
��

��

�

��
 �

!�
��

��
��

��
���

��
�


��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��


��
��

��
��

���

�

(�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

���

��
��

��
�


��
�

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
�


���
��


�
��

��
��

���
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

���
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


��
�


��
��

��
��


(�
� 

��
0

��
���

���
���

���
��

��
��

��
���

��
&��

��
���

��
��

��

�

���
��

���
��

��
��


�
���

���
��

��
���

�

��

��
��

��

�

��
��

�
��



��

��
���

��
��

��
��

���
&��

��
��

�
�
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

�
�
��

���
�


���
��

��
���


�
��

�

� 

��1
�

��

��

��
?�


�
��

�

��

?��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

���



��

�

��
��

��
��+

��
��

��
���

��
�


��
��


��
��

�,
��

��
��

�



��
��

��
�


���
���

���
��

&�

���

��
���

�

��

��
��

��
��

�&�
�

��
��

��
���

��
��

��

�

���
��

��






��

���



��
���

��
���

��
��

��
���

��
 ��

*�
��

�


�

��
��


�
��

���
��

��
��

�

���

��
(�

��
�




���

��
��

��
��

�

��

���
��

�

�

���
��

�
��

��
���

���
��


�(
��

��
��

��
���

���
���

��
��

��

�

���
�&

��
��

���
��

�
��

��
���

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��

�

���
�


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

���
��

���
�


��
��

�

��


��
��

��
 �

'
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
��


�
��


��

:
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��






��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


���
���

��
�


��
�




��


�
��

��
��

�

��

��
�

�
��

��
���


�
(�

��
��

��
��

��

�


��
��

���
�


��
�


��

��

��
��

%�
��


�
��


�
��

��
��

���
��

 �

� ��
���

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��


�
��






��

�

��
��

��
�


��
��

��

�

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
��


��
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

�
��

��
�


��
��

(�
��

��
��

��
��


�
� �

�1
��

�

��

���
���

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
���

���
��

��
��

��
��

�
��


��
�


��
��

���
�


��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

��

��
�




��

��

�

��
 ��

!�
��

��

�

��
���

(�
���

�

��


��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
���

���
���

��
���

��
�


��

��

��
��

��
�







��
��

�

��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��

�

 ��
0

��
��

�)
�

��

�

�

���

���
��


��
��

��
��

��
���

���
��

��
�


��
��

&��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��


�
���

��
��

��

��

��
��

��
���

���
��

���
���

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
�







��
��

��
�

���
��

��
��

���
���

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
�'

��
��

��
 ��

!�
�


���
�


��
���

��
���

(�
�


��
��

�

��

��
�

���
���

��
��

��
��

��

���

��
��

�

Page 94



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l –
P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
R

ev
ie

w
 –

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

1
9

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

��




�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
���


�
��


��
��

��
��

��
��


�
���

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

���
���

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
���

��
��

��




&��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��

�

��
��


�

�

���
�


��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��


�
���

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
���




�

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
�







� 
��

'
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
��


�
��
�
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


��

�

��



��
��

���
���

��
���




���

��
��

���
��

���
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��

�

��





��


�
��

��
��

�

��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

���




��
���

���
��

��
�


��
���

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
�


��
�


��
��

���
�

��
7�

���
� 

�

�

Page 95



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l –
P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
R

ev
ie

w
 –

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

1
10

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

1
1

��
��

��
��


�

� '
�
�
�

/


�

'
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
��


�
�

�
��


��
��
�

0
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�


�
�
�
�
��
�

'
�
�
�


�
�
��
��
��
�
�1
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��


�
��
�
��
�

1
 

�
��

�
��
��
��
#��
!!
��
��
���
��
���
��
��
��
�

1
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��



�

�

�

��

��

��

��

�

��

���

��
��







��
��

��
��

��
��

�

�

��
��

��
��

���

�

���
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

��






��

��
���

��
��

���
��



���

���
���

��
��

���
��


�
��


��
��

�

�

���
�



�
�


���
���

��
���



�


��
�


��
��

��
��

�� 
�

)
��

��
1

��
��

��

*�
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

�&
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��




�


�
�


��
���

��
��

��
��

�&�
���

��
��


��
��

��
��

��
�

'
��

��
��

�"
#�

�&
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

�

��
��

�*�
�


�8
�


��
���


�
��

��
��


��
�


��
��

� 
�

�

�

��

���

��
��







��

�

��
��

��
��

��
�	


�

�

��
�

6

��


�
��

"#
�"

�

2
 

�
��

�
��
��
��
#��
��
��
��
�!
��
$�

�
��

�
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

�

��

�&
��


��
�


��
�


��
���

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
���

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

���
��

�

���

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
 �

	
��

��



�
1

��
��

��
�


�
��


���
��

��






��


�
��

��
��

��
��

�	

�


�
��

�

6

��


�
��

"#
�"

�

3
 

�
��

�
��
��
��
#��
��
��
%
�

�
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

�


�


�
�


��
���

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

���
��

�

��

�
��

��

��


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���



� �
�4

��
���

��
�


�(
���

�

��

��
��

��
�



�

�

��
���

��




(
��

��
�


��
��


�
��

�

��

�

��

��
��

��
���

&��
�


��
��

��
��

��
��

�

���


�
��


�
��


�
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

�
��

���
� 

�

	
��

��



�
1

��
��

��

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

���
��

��
���

���
��

��
��

��

��

��
�

���
��

�

��

��
��

��
�


�(
���

��
��

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

 �

�

�

��

���

��
��







��

�

��
��

��
��

��
�	


�

�

��
�

6

��


�
��

"#
�"

�

4
 

�
��

�
��
��
��
#�

��
!�
��
��
��
��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��



�

�

�

��

���
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

7�
���

���
��

�

���

���
��

��
�


��
���

��
(�

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
�&�

��
��

�

��*

�!
�


��
�)

�
&��

��
��

��
���

��
��


�
� �

	
��

��



�
1

��
��

��

!�
���

�

��

��
���

��
��

��

�

��
���

���
��

��
��

���
��


�
��

��
�

*�
�


�8
 �

�

�

��

���

��
��







��

�

��
��

��
��

��
�	


�

�

��
�

6

��


�
��

"#
�"

�

Page 96



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l –
P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
R

ev
ie

w
 –

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

1
11

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

'
�
�
�

/


�

'
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
��


�
�

�
��


��
��
�

0
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�


�
�
�
�
��
�

'
�
�
�


�
�
��
��
��
�
�1
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��


�
��
�
��
�

5
 

�
��
$�

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

�
��

��
�

���
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
�



�

�

��
� �

��
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

���
��


��
��

��
���

�
��

���
��

���
��

��
���

�


�


�
��

��
��

��
��

���
���

��
��

��
��

 ��
�

��
���

��
���

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
���

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

�


�


�
��

���
��

��
��

��
�


���
� 

�

	
��

��



�
1

��
��

��
�


�
��


���
��

��






��


�
��

��
��

��
��

�	

�


�
��

�

1
��

���
"#

�"
�

6
 

�
��
���
�
!�
��

��
��
���
��
��
��
�%
��

�
��

��
��

��

�

���
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��


��
�


��
�


���
��

��
��

��
��


��
��

��
��

�

(�

��

�

���
���

��
���

���
��

��
��

��
��



�

�

�

��

���
��

��
��

��
� �

)
��

��
1

��
��

��
)

�

��

��
��


�
��


��

��

�1
��

��
��

	

�

��
�"

#�
"�

7
 

&
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
���
��
��
��

�
��

��
��

��

�

���
��

��
��

�

��

�

��

�(
��

���
��

��
���

��



��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��

��

�
��

��
�


��

�

��
�


��
��

��
�


��
��

 �

	
��

��



�
1

��
��

��

!�
���

�

��

��
��

��
��


�
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��

�

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��	


�

�

�

��

���
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

���
��

�
��

��
��

� �

)
�


��
��

��

�

��

��


��
�1

��
��

��

	

�

��
�"

#�
"�

8
 



��

!�
��
�'

	
��
��

*

��

�

��

���
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

���
��

��
���

���
�


��
��

��
��

��
��


��
���


�
��

��
��

(�
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
���

�
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�



�

�

��
� �

)
��

��
1

��
��

��
�

��
��	


�

�

��
�+�

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

�!
�




,�

	

�

��
�"

#�
"�

9
 

�
��
��

��
��
��



��
��

��
��

��
���

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
�


��
��

���
��


�
��

��
���


�
��

��
��

���

�

�
��


�
��

��
��

��
���

��



���
��

��
��

��
� �

	
��

��



�
1

��
��

��
)

�

��

��
��


�
��


��

��

�1
��

��
��

'
�%

��
��

��

1
0
 

 



��

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
!�
��
��
��

:
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��






��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


���
���

��
�


�
��






��

�

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
��

��
���


�
(�

��
��

��
��

��

�


��
��

���
�


��
�


��

��

�
��

�%
���


�
��


�
��

��
��

���
��

 �

)
��

��
1

��
��

��
)

�

��

��
��


�
��


��

��

�1
��

��
��

6

��


�
��

"#
�"

�

Page 97



P
ly

m
o

u
th

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l –
P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
R

ev
ie

w
 –

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

1
12

� ©
 2

01
1 

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 U
K

 L
L

P
.  

A
ll 

ri
g

h
ts

 r
es

er
ve

d
.

'
�
�
�

/


�

'
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
�
��


�
�

�
��


��
��
�

0
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�


�
�
�
�
��
�

'
�
�
�


�
�
��
��
��
�
�1
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��


�
��
�
��
�

1
1
 

 



��

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��

�

��
��

��
��

��
�


��

�

��



��
��

���
���

��
���




���

��
��

���
��

���
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��

�

��





��


�
��

��
��

�

��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

���




�
��

��
���

��
��

�

��

���
��

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��

�

�

��

�

��

��
���

���
7�

���
� 

�

)
��

��
1

��
��

��
1

��
���


�
��:

���
��

��
��

��2
��


�
��

&�
1

��
��

��E
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

6

��


�
��

"#
�"

�

�

Page 98



� � � �

�
� �

�
�
�
2�
��
�
�3
��


��
�

�
2�


2�
�
�

�
F

�"
#�

��
C

�

��

�!
��

��
��

��
4

$
�3

3�
 �1

���
���

��
���

��
��

��
� 

�
� GC

�

��

�!
��

��
��

�G
�


�

��

�C
�


��
�!

��
��

��
��

4
$

�3
3�

&�

���



���

��
��


��
���

��
�


��
��

��
��

� 
�

� C
�


��
�!

��
��

��
��

4
$

�3
3�

���
�


�

�


��
���

��

��

���
��

�C
�


��
�!

��
��

��
��

*�
��

��

�

��
�


��3
��

�+?
C

�

��

�!
��

��
��

��
*�

��
��


�
��

�

�?,

 �C
�


��
�!

��
��

��
��

*�
��

��

�

��
�


��

��

���
��



�


��
���

��

��


��
��

��
�


��
��

��
�

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
� 

�
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��



�


��
���

��

���

��
��

��
��

��
��

 �
� !�

���
��

��
��


�
���

�


�

��
��

�C
�


��
�!

��
��

��
��

4
$

�3
3�

�

��

���
���

�

���

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��


���
�&

�

�

��
�


��
��


��
���

��
��

��
��

�

���

��
���

��
��

��
�


��
<�

��
��

���
���

��

�

�

��

� �
� !�

��
��

��
��

��




��
�7

��
��

��
�

���
��

���
���

��
��

��

�

�

��

��
���

��
��

��
��

�

��

��
���

��
��


���

�

�� 
�1

���
��

��
�



�
��

��
��

�
��

���
��

��
��


�
���

���
��


�
��

���
���

���
���

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
���

��
��

��
�


��
�


��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�


��
��

��
��

�
�


��
��

���
���

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

�

�C

�

��

�!
��

��
��

��
4

$
�3

3�
�

Page 99



Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank



� �

20
10

-1
1 

A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
 u

p
d

at
e 

- 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
1 

W
o

rk
 a

re
a 

R
ea

so
n

 
p

er
fo

rm
ed

 
W

o
rk

 o
b

je
ct

iv
e 

D
ra

ft
 t

o
 le

ad
 

o
ff

ic
er

 
P

C
C

 le
ad

 
o

ff
ic

er
 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 t

o
 d

at
e 

F
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

In
te

rim
 R

ep
or

t &
 U

pd
at

e 
to

 
F

in
an

ci
al

 A
ud

it 
P

la
n 

C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

T
o 

ga
in

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 fr

om
 s

ys
te

m
s 

of
 fi

na
nc

ia
l 

co
nt

ro
l f

or
 o

pi
ni

on
 

Ju
ne

 2
01

1 
M

al
co

lm
 C

oe
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
.  

F
in

al
 r

ep
or

t p
re

se
nt

ed
 to

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
on

 2
7 

Ju
ne

 2
01

1 

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t t
o 

T
ho

se
 

C
ha

rg
ed

 w
ith

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

(I
S

A
26

0 
re

po
rt

) 

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t 

T
o 

su
m

m
ar

is
e 

th
e 

fin
di

ng
s 

fr
om

 o
ur

 fi
na

l 
ac

co
un

ts
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 C
od

e 
w

or
k 

th
at

 im
pa

ct
s 

on
 

ou
r 

op
in

io
n 

an
d 

di
sc

us
s 

w
ith

 th
os

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
w

ith
 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
11

 
A

da
m

 B
ro

om
e 

C
om

pl
et

ed
.  

F
in

al
 r

ep
or

t p
re

se
nt

ed
 to

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
on

 2
3 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
11

 

A
cc

ou
nt

s 
op

in
io

n 
C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
T

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
an

 o
pi

ni
on

 o
n 

th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

11
 

A
da

m
 B

ro
om

e 
A

ud
it 

of
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 c

om
pl

et
e.

  O
pi

ni
on

 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 o

n 
23

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
11

 

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

M
o

n
ey

 (
V

fM
) 

co
n

cl
u

si
o

n
 

V
fM

 r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
T

o 
id

en
tif

y 
ar

ea
s 

of
 r

is
k 

to
 th

e 
V

fM
 c

on
cl

us
io

n 
an

d 
w

he
re

 m
or

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
w

or
k 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
11

 
A

da
m

 B
ro

om
e 

R
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t c
om

pl
et

e 

P
ro

cu
re

 to
 p

ay
 (

P
2P

) 
C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
Lo

ca
l r

is
k 

ba
se

d 
w

or
k 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

M
al

co
lm

 C
oe

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

.  
F

in
al

 r
ep

or
t p

re
se

nt
ed

 to
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

on
 2

7 
Ju

ne
 2

01
1 

F
in

an
ci

al
 r

es
ili

en
ce

 
C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
Lo

ca
l r

is
k 

ba
se

d 
w

or
k,

 w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
ke

y 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 b

ud
ge

t p
re

ss
ur

es
 in

 th
e 

M
T

F
S

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

11
 

M
al

co
lm

 C
oe

 
F

ie
ld

w
or

k 
co

m
pl

et
e,

 c
on

cl
ud

ed
 a

de
qu

at
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 V

fM
 c

on
cl

us
io

n.
  

D
ra

ft 
re

po
rt

 to
 b

e 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

en
d 

of
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

11
 

P
ro

je
ct

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

Lo
ca

l r
is

k 
ba

se
d 

w
or

k,
 a

gr
ee

d 
tr

ac
er

s 
w

er
e 

C
om

pt
on

 P
rim

ar
y 

S
ch

oo
l a

nd
 th

e 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
st

ra
te

gy
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
11

 
M

al
co

lm
 C

oe
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
.  

F
in

al
 r

ep
or

t p
re

se
nt

ed
 to

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
on

 2
3 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
11

 

V
fM

 c
on

cl
us

io
n 

C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

T
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

co
nc

lu
si

on
 o

n 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
V

fM
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
11

 
A

da
m

 B
ro

om
e 

V
fM

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t c

om
pl

et
e.

  C
on

cl
us

io
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 

be
 is

su
ed

 o
n 

23
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

11
 

O
th

er
 r

ep
o

rt
s 

A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

Le
tte

r 
C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
T

o 
su

m
m

ar
is

e 
ke

y 
fin

di
ng

s 
an

d 
co

nc
lu

si
on

s 
fr

om
 th

e 
w

or
k 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 u

nd
er

 o
ur

 a
ud

it 
pl

an
 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

11
 

B
ar

ry
 K

ee
l 

T
o 

be
 d

ra
fte

d 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

is
su

e 
of

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
op

in
io

n 
an

d 
V

fM
 c

on
cl

us
io

n 

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
W

or
k 

R
ep

or
t 

A
ge

nt
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 

T
o 

ce
rt

ify
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

11
 

A
da

m
 B

ro
om

e 
W

or
k 

st
ar

te
d 

in
 A

ug
us

t a
nd

 is
 d

ue
 to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

11
 

�

Agenda Item 12Page 101



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Audit Committee Work Plan 2011/12 

 
 

  2011 2012 

Item Cabinet Member / 
Lead Officer J J A S O N D J F M 

 
Internal Audit Annual Report 
 

Cllr Bowyer / DfCS 
(Sue Watts) 27 

  
 

  
 

  
 

            
 
Statement of Accounts 2010/11 
 

Cllr Bowyer / DfCS 
(Sandra Wilson) 27 

  
 

  
 

  
 

            
 
Operational Risk Management  - 
Update Report 
 

Cllr Bowyer / DfCS 
(Mike Hocking) 27 

  

 

  

16 

  

 

            

Risk Management Annual Report Cllr Bowyer / DfCS 
(Mike Hocking) 27 

  
 

  
 

  
 

            

Annual Governance Statement Cllr Bowyer / DfCS 
(Mike Hocking) 27 

  
 

  
 

  
 

            
 
Strategic Risk Register Monitoring 
Report 
 

Cllr Bowyer / DfCS 
(Mike Hocking)  

  

23 

  

 

  

16 

            

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 103



 
Audit Committee Work Plan 2011/12 

 
 

  2011 2012 

Item Cabinet Member / 
Lead Officer J J A S O N D J F M 

 
Six Month Internal Audit Progress 
Report 
 

Cllr Bowyer / DfCS 
(Sue Watts)  

  

 

  

16 

  

 

            

Internal Audit Annual Plan Cllr Bowyer / DfCS 
(Sue Watts)  

  
 

  
 

  
16 

            

Interim Report and Update to 
Financial Audit Plan 2010/2011 

External Auditor 
Grant Thornton 27 

  
 

  
 

  
 

            

Review of Procure to Pay Project External Auditor 
Grant Thornton 27 

  
 

  
 

  
 

            
Annual Report to Those Charged 
with Governance (ISA260 Report) 
2010/2011 

External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
23 

  
 

  
 

            

Financial Resilience Review External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
 

  
16 

  
 

            

P
age 104



 
Audit Committee Work Plan 2011/12 

 
 

  2011 2012 

Item Cabinet Member / 
Lead Officer J J A S O N D J F M 

Project Management Review External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
23 

  
 

  
 

            

Annual Audit Letter 2010/2011 External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
 

  
16 

  
 

            

Certification Work Report 
2010/2011 

External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
 

  
16 

  
 

            

Audit Plan 2011/2012 External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
 

  
 

  
16 

            

Audit Fee Letter 2012/2013 External Auditor 
Grant Thornton  

  
 

  
 

  
16 

            
 

P
age 105



P
age 106

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	6 DIVERTING CHILDREN FROM CARE PROJECT INITIATION DOCUMENT
	8 STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER MONITORING REPORT
	1 September Strategic Risk Register Thirteen Draft

	9 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
	SoA statements full v2
	SoA Letter of representation v2

	10 ANNUAL REPORT TO THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (ISA 260 REPORT)
	11 PROJECT MANAGEMENT REVIEW
	12 2010/11 AUDIT PLAN UPDATE
	14 AUDIT COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PLAN

